10.

11.
12.

13.

City of Port Colborne
Regular Meeting of Committee of the Whole 21-19
Monday, August 12, 2019 — 6:30 p.m.

PORT COILBORNE Council Chambers, 3™ Floor, 66 Charlotte Street

Agenda
Call to Order: Mayor William C. Steele
National Anthem:
Introduction of Addendum and Delegation Items:
Confirmation of Agenda:
Disclosures of Interest:

Adoption of Minutes:
(a) Regular meeting of Committee of the Whole 20-19, held on July 22, 2019.

Determination of ltems Requiring Separate Discussion:

Approval of ltems Not Requiring Separate Discussion:

Presentations:

Delegations (10 Minutes Maximum):

(a) Sandeep Chera, Operations Manager, B.C. Investments Ltd., Operating as Storage

Guyz Port Colborne Re: Request Street Name Change of Ramey Road, Port
Colborne (Page No. 7)

Mayor’s Report:
Regional Councillor's Report:
Councillors’ Items:

(a)  Councillors’ Issues/Enquiries
(b)  Staff Responses to Previous Councillors’ Enquiries

14. Consideration of ltems Requiring Separate Discussion:

15.

16.

Notice of Motion:

Adjournment:



Committee of the Whole Agenda August 12, 2019

Upcoming Committee of the Whole and Council Meetings
Monday, August 26, 2019 Committee of the Whole/Council — 6:30 P.M.

Monday, September 9, 2019 Committee of the Whole/Council — 6:30 P.M.
Monday, September 23, 2019  Committee of the Whole/Council — 6:30 P.M.

Tuesday, October 15, 2019 Committee of the Whole/Council — 6:30 P.M.
Monday, October 28, 2019 Committee of the Whole/Council — 6:30 P.M.

Note: If not otherwise attached to the staff report, by-laws are published and available for review under
the “Consideration of By-laws" section of the Council agenda.



Committee of the Whole Agenda August 12, 2019

Committee Items:

Notes

Item

Description / Recommendation

Page

WCS MB EB
RB GB FD

AD DK HW

Motion by Councillor A. Desmarais Re: Living Wage Employer

Whereas more and more people working for low wages are facing
impossible choices such as whether to buy food or heat the house,
whether to feed the children or pay the rent. The results can be
spiralling debt, constant anxiety and long-term health problems. In
many cases the adults in a family are working long hours, often at two
or three jobs, just to pay for basic necessities, and

Whereas the living wage is the hourly rate of pay that enables wage
earners living in a household to:
= Feed, clothe and provide shelter for their family

* Promote healthy child development

= Participate in activities that are an ordinary element of
life in the community

= Avoid the chronic stress of living in poverty, and

Whereas the living wage for the Niagara Region has been calculated
to be $17.99 per hour (The Niagara Poverty Reduction Network —
Calculating the Living Wage in the Niagara Region 2018), and

Whereas we, the Corporation of the City of Port Colborne strive to
make decisions and take actions that have a positive impact on our
community, our staff, and the people we serve.

Therefore Be It Resolved That:

The Corporation of the City of Port Colborne becomes a Living Wage
Employer at the Supporter Level immediately; and

That Council directs Chief Administrative Officer Scott Luey to work
with responsible departments to achieve Leader Level status at the
time of the 2020 budget deliberations.

Note: Notice of Motion was given at the July 22, 2019 Council
Meeting.

9 & 21

Note: If not otherwise attached to the staff report, by-laws are published and available for review under
the “Consideration of By-laws" section of the Council agenda.




Committee of the Whole Agenda August 12, 2019

WCS MB EB Engineering and Operations Department, Engineering Division, 37
Report 2019-124, Subject: Clarence Street Crosswalk,

RB GB FD Investigation Regarding Safety Concerns

AL DK HW That staff be directed to implement Option “A”, the temporary
installation of median delineators on Clarence Street, east and west
of Catharine Street and to install additional signage stating “Stop for
Pedestrians’, at an estimated installation price of $3,000, the funds
to cover the cost of this works be taken from G/L # 0-500-74210-
3215.

WCS MB EB Chief Administrative Officer Department, Report 2019-126, 47
Subject: Transit Update

RB GB FD

AD HW That Chief Administrative Officer Report 2019-126, Subject: Transit

% Update, be received for information.

WCS MB EB Planning and Development Department, Planning Division, 53
Report 2019-122, Subject: Recommendation Report: Proposed

RB GB FD Expansion of the Downtown Central Business District

55 5K En Community Improvement Plan
That the expansion of the project area for the Downtown Central
Business District Community Improvement to include 176 Elm Street,
be approved.

WCS MB EB Planning and Development Department, Planning Division, 61
Report 2019-123, Subject: Environmental Advisory Committee

RB GB FD Memorandum on the Vale-Community-Based Action Plan

AD DK HW That the Director of Planning and Development be directed to send a
letter to the Ministry of the Environment, Conservation and Parks
requesting clarification with respect to the safe soil levels of the Port
Colborne Community Based Risk Assessment Chemicals of Concern
and levels for use in Ontario Regulation 153/04.

WCS MB EB Planning and Development Department, Planning Division, 65
Report 2019-127, Subject: Proposed Development Agreements

RB GB FD for Lawrence Barnai, 1628 Minor Road

AD DK HW

That two development agreements be entered into with Lawrence
Barnai for 1628 Minor Road and that the Mayor and Clerk be
authorized to sign and execute said agreements.

Note: If not otherwise attached to the staff report, by-laws are published and available for review under
the “Consideration of By-laws” section of the Council agenda.




Committee of the Whole Agenda

August 12, 2019

Miscellaneous Correspondence

WCS

RB

AD

MB
GB

DK

EB

FD

HW

7.

Memorandum from Nancy Giles, EA to CAO and Mayor and
Staff Liaison to the Grant Policy Committee Re:
Recommendations of Grant Policy Committee

That the memorandum from Nancy Giles, EA to CAO and Mayor and
Staff Liaison to the Grant Policy Committee Re: Recommendations
of Grant Policy Committee, be received for information; and

That donation/sponsorship requests be approved for a total of $10,
325 for the second allocation for the year 2019 as follows:

Community Living Port Colborne Wainfleet — to provide financial
assistance to the children of Port Colborne who are unable to
register for recreation programs due to lack of funds - $1,700

Friends of Port Colborne Lighthouses — to assist with the cost of
insurance to allow tours of the Port Colborne Lighthouses - $1,400

Friends of Roselawn Centre — to assist with the cost of purchasing
a new stove for the Roselawn Centre - $1,200 (Note: these funds will
only be disbursed if the City proceeds with the project)

Niagara Nutrition Partners — to assist with the purchase of food to
run the nutrition programs in Port Colborne schools - $2,500

Port Colborne Fair Trade Town Committee — to purchase a new
banner, advertising and printing for the Fair Trade Crawl and a 10
year celebration cake - $725

Port Colborne Historical & Marine Museum Auxiliary — to assist
with renovations to Arabella’s Tea Room - $2,800.

7

WCS
RB

AD

MB
GB

DK

EB

FD

HW

Bryan Elliott, Ice Dogs Game Coordinator Re: Request for
Proclamation of Niagara Ice Dogs Day in Port Colborne

That Friday, August 30, 2019 be proclaimed as “Niagara Ice Dogs
Day” in the City of Port Colborne, in accordance with the request
received from Bryan Elliott, Ice Dogs Game Coordinator.

79

WCS

RB

AD

MB
GB
DK

EB
FD

HW

Rankin Construction Inc. Re: Peer Review for Port Colborne
Quarries Site Alteration Permit

That the correspondence received from Tom Rankin, P. Eng., CEO
Rankin Construction Inc. Re: Peer Review for Port Colborne
Quarries Site Alteration Permit, be received for information.

81

Note: If not otherwise attached to the staff report, by-laws are published and available for review under
the “Consideration of By-laws" section of the Council agenda.




Committee of the Whole Agenda August 12, 2019

WCS MB EB | 10. | Vance Badawey, Member of Parliament, Niagara Centre Re: 83
SME Project Stream of the Climate Action Incentive Fund for
RB GB FD Small and Medium Sized Businesses
AD DK HW That the correspondence received from Vance Badawey, Member of
Parliament Niagara Centre Re: SME Project Stream of the Climate
Action Incentive Fund for Small and Medium Sized Businesses, be
received for information.
Click on the attached link to view the news release and application
details: https://www.canada.ca/en/environment-climate
change/news/2019/07/small-and-medium-sized-businesses-in-ontario{
hew-brunswick-manitoba-and-saskatchewan-can-now-apply-for-funding4
for-energy-saving-projects.html
WCS MB EB | 11. | Niagara Housing Statement Final Summary Report (Report PDS 85
27-2019)
RB GB FD
That the correspondence received from the Niagara Housing
AD DK HW Statement Final Summary Report, be received for information.
WCS MB EB | 12. | Ministry of Municipal Affairs and Housing Re: Provincial Policy 141
Statement Review — Draft Policies
RB GB FD
That the correspondence received from Steve Clark, Minister,
AD DK HW Ministry of Municipal Affairs and Housing Re: Provincial Policy
Statement Review — Draft Policies, be received for information.
Outside Resolutions — Requests for Endorsement
WCS MB EB | 13. | Town of Fort Erie Re: Whistleblowing Policy 143
RB GB FD That the resolution received from the Town of Fort Erie Re:
Whistleblowing Policy, be received for information.
AD DK HW
WCS MB EB | 14. | City of Thorold Re: Bill 115 — Beer Retailing in Ontario 145

RB. GB FD That the resolution received from the City of Thorold Re: Bill 115 —
Beer Retailing in Ontario, be received for information.

AD DK HW

Responses to City of Port Colborne Resolutions

Note: If not otherwise attached to the staff report, by-laws are published and available for review under
the “Consideration of By-laws” section of the Council agenda.



https://www.canada.ca/en/environment-climate-change/news/2019/07/small-and-medium-sized-businesses-in-ontario-new-brunswick-manitoba-and-saskatchewan-can-now-apply-for-funding-for-energy-saving-projects.html

Storage Guyz Port Colborne
2250 Ramey Road - Port Colborne - Ontario - L3K 5V5 -

August 5, 2019

City Of Port Colborne
66 Charlotte Street
Port Colborne, Ontario
L3K-3C8

To The City Of Port Colborne - City Council

I am contacting you on behalf of B.C. Investments Ltd. operating as Storage Guyz Port Colborne, owners of the self
storage facilityat 2250 Ramey Road, Port Colborne, owners of a 3.85 acre property (Roll Number: 271104000514830),
and owners of a 13.65 acre property (Roll Number: 271104000513500) all situated on Ramey Road, Port Colborne. In
addition. all of our properties are situated on the Ramey Road segment that is on the north side of HWY 140.

We would like to request a street name change for only our section of Ramey Road (street portion located north of HWY
140), there are two Ramey Roads on either side of HWY 140 and many of our customers get confused and end up on the
wrong Ramey Road. We own majority of the lands fronting on the street we are requesting the name change and we are
committed to investing and growing our business within the City of Port Colborne.

We are requesting a name change to better identify our location as well as our identity within the City of Port Colborne.

Thank you for your time in advance.

"Z"—‘—ﬁ
sl

-Sandeep Chera
B.C. Investments Ltd.
Operations Manager




This page intentionally left blank.



CALCULATING THE LIVING WAGE

IN NIAGARA REGION

2018

The Niagara Poverty Reduction Network




ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

This report was made possible through the valuable
input and collaboration of the Niagara Poverty
Reduction Network Wages and Work Task group.

The methodology presented in this report was adapted
from the Canadian Living Wage Framework: A National
Methodology for Calculating the Living Wage in Your
Community and the Canadian Centre for Policy
Alternatives Ontario Family Expense Workbook to
develop the living wage calculation. The Family
Expense Workbook was updated by the Ontario Living
Wage Network and the living wage calculation
generated using the CCPA-Ontario Living Wage
Calculator. The tool used to calculate community
expenses, taxes and government transfers is updated
on an annual basis. The 2018 calculator update was
completed by Iglika Ivanova from the Canadian Centre
for Policy Alternatives in British Columbia.

TABLE OF CONTENT

AcCknowladgements., oy ssssenaarassvsirsraiiaes ssniwiniins 1
Whatils'a Living Wage? civsswsssssssspssnmssiossinsassyensvain &2
How is A Living Wage Calculated? .......ccovvviiiiiiiieninnns 3
Summary of Annual Household Expenses ........covuvvsne. 5
Summary of Annual Family INCOME ..cvviviiniiiiiienninns 6

Who Could Implement a Living Wage in Niagara?.......7
ADPEAGIE Poriavisnsaismmnsnisst s s A s s 9
S (a0} ol L AR Aol G R TR 10

This brief provides context on the living wage
calculation for Niagara region in 2018, a description of
the methodology used to calculate a living wage, and
a look at who could implement a living wage.

10



WHAT IS A LIVING WAGE?

In Canada, a living wage is currently a voluntary commitment that can be made by public, private
and not-for-profit sector employers to compensate directly-employed and contract-employed
full-time and part-time workers. It is a guide for employers who wish to pay fairer wages for work
and labour. Fairer wages are wages that allow a family to be able to meet their basic household cost
of living needs, as well as to be included in the mainstream community; in other words, an inclusive
wage.

A living wage is not the same as the minimum wage, which is the legal minimum all employers must
pay. The living wage sets a higher test - it reflects what earners in a family need to be paid on

an hourly basis based on the actual costs of living and being included in a specific community.

The living wage is calculated as an evidence-based hourly rate at which a household consisting of
two working parents with two children can meet its basic needs, once government transfers have
been added to the family’s income and taxes and payroll deductions have been subtracted.

Included is this calculation are food, shelter, clothing, transportation, child care, private health
insurance for prescription drugs, vision, and dental coverage, continuing education for adults to
upgrade skills, and items that allow for fuller participation in society, such as communication, family
leisure outings and local recreation. The calculation is neither national nor provincial - it is done for
a municipality or region to reflect real and unique local living costs and the hourly wage required to
meet those needs.

A living wage is by no means a luxury wage. Many items that could be considered as an important
component of mainstream quality of life are not included in the reference calculation, including
savings for a child’s education, retirement, home ownership, or even debt repayment. It provides

a conservative estimate of what that family needs to earn in order to meet basic day-to-day cost of
living needs and to participate in the social life of their community?.

Calculating a living wage provides an opportunity for a community to:

e discuss work, wages, and compensation in different ways;
e act as a guide for employers who want to ensure their workforce can adequately meet their
family’s basic household cost of living and community inclusion needs.

11



HOW IS A LIVING WAGE CALCULATED?

A living wage calculation examines the expenditures necessary to meet basic needs and to
participate both economically and socially in a community. The resulting hourly wage represents
the income necessary to meet both family expenditures and pay taxes and payroll deductions. It is
determined using the Ontario Living Wage Network’s Living Wage calculator for Ontario, which is
adapted from the National Living Wage Framework?, takes into account a conservative estimate of
family expenses, as well as the tax, transfer, and payroll deduction rules for the province.

This framework incorporates a consistent definition and methodology that is being deployed across
the country to ensure uniformity and credibility of approach. Taxes, transfers, and even hours of
work vary widely from province to province. Cost of living, such as rent, and access to public
services, such as child care and transit also vary. For this reason, there are variations in the living
wage calculation from community to community and province to province.

In 2018, the Ontario Living Wage Network reviewed and updated the methodology for calculating
the cost of living in Ontario. The key methodology change is an adjustment of work hours per week
for each adult. In the past, Ontario communities have calculated the cost of living based on a 37.5-
hour work week. In reviewing the methodology, the decision was made to move to a 35-hour work
week. According to Statistics Canada, the average usual hours for workers 15 years and older in
Canada is 35 hours per week?3,

The living wage calculation starts with a list (and accompanying estimated cost) of necessary
expenses for a standard reference family of four (two adults both aged 35 and both working full-time
jobs (35 hours/week each), a three-year old child and a seven-year old child) to:

» meet basic needs (i.e. housing, nutritious food, transportation);
e participate in the economic and social fabric of their community (i.e. recreational opportumtles),
e purchase items that can help them escape marginal subsistence (i.e. household items)

The list of family expenses contains no extravagances. It does not allow families to save for their
children’s post-secondary education. It does not acknowledge that many working families carry debt
obligations, such as student loans. It does not allow for home ownership and its many additional
expenses. But it does recognize that assets, resources, and services such as rent, transportation,
child care, food, clothing, internet, telephone, and laundry are essential items that every family
requires to meet basic needs in an advanced economy and developed country such as Canada in
the 21st century.

In calculating the living wage for Niagara region, expenses were determined from credible and
reliable sources such as Niagara Region Public Health, Canada Mortgage and Housing Corporation

12



(CMHC), and Statistics Canada’s Market Basket Measure (MBM). Some expenses are eligible for
subsidies, such as child care available through Niagara Region Community Services.

Once total family expense has been added up, the calculation moves to the income side of
the equation, to incorporate applicable employment income and government transfers. The living
wage incorporates relevant government assistance, such as child benefits.

The final step in calculating a community or region’s living wage is to calculate the employment
income this family needs to meet both household expenses and to pay taxes and payroll deductions.
This is done by dividing total employment income by the annual number of hours worked

(3,640 hours, based on two adults each working a 35-hour work week for 52 weeks).

The living wage calculation covers the basic needs and social inclusion of a majority of its family
units living in its communities. Although a standard reference family of four is used for calculation
purposes, a living wage supports the diversity of families in our community through the life cycle,
so that young adults are in a position to consider starting a family and older workers have some
extra income as they age and require different supports. A living wage is also sufficient to meet
the needs of a single adult or a lone parent with one child.

FIGURE 1: WHO A LIVING WAGE CAN SUPPORT

The methodology for calculating Niagara region’s living wage includes the following scenario:

e A healthy family of four — two parents, both aged 35, and two children, one aged three and one
aged seven

e One child in full-time daycare

e One child in before and after-school care and in camps during summer and school breaks

o Full-time hours of employment per week (35) for each of the two parents

o Each parent taking one college course per year to improve skills and employment capacity

e Cost of living including rental housing, transportation, food, clothing, child care, laundry,
telephone, medical and life insurance, and other reasonable social inclusion expenses

e Inclusion of any applicable tax credits, returns, government benefits, and subsidies

13



SUMMARY OF ANNUAL HOUSEHOLD EXPENSES

TABLE 1: NIAGARA REGION'S 2018 LIVING WAGE: SUMMARY OF ANNUAL HOUSEHOLD EXPENSES

ITEM ANNUAL AMOUNT
(rounded to the nearest dollar figure)
Food $8,786
Clothing/Footwear $3,201
SHELTER
Rent, 3 bedroom apartment $13,692
Utilities $1,316
Tenant Insurance $191
Transportation/Vehicle $13,196
CHILD CARE (before subsidy)
Daycare/Camps $14,125
ECONOMIC AND COMMUNITY PARTICIPATION/INCLUSION
Cell Phone $678
Internet and Cable $650
Other - Includes Family Outings, Personal Care, Laundry, Recreation,
. Household Items/Furnishings, Schoo! Supplies/Fees, Reading $9,038
Materials,
Bank Fees, Birthday Presents
OTHER
Non-OHIP Medical Insurance $2,719
Critical Illness and Life Insurance $510
Adult Education $632
Contingency $2,749

14



SUMMARY OF ANNUAL FAMILY INCOME

TABLE 2: NIAGARA REGION’S 2018 LIVING WAGE - SUMMARY OF ANNUAL FAMILY INCOME

HOUSEHOLD INCOME, TAXES, & PAYROLL DEDUCTIONS* ANNUAL AMOUNT
Total Household Employment Income Required $65,474 (or $32,737 per job)
2018 Hourly Living Wage $17.99

GOVERNMENT TRANSFERS & SUBSIDIES

Canada Child Benefit (CCB) $8,262

Child Care Subsidy $6,735

Ontario Trillium Benefit $43
Total Transfers/Subsidies $15,040
Total Household Income Before Deduction $80,514

(Household Employment Income + Transfer/Subsidies)

Government Taxes & Payroll Deductions

Federal and Provincial Tax after Credits $5,050
CPP and EI Contributions $3,981
Total Taxes/Deductions $9,031
Total Household Income After Deductions $71,483

(Household Employment Income + Transfer/Subsidies -
Tax/Payroll Deductions)

(Total Family Household Expenses - Table 1) ($71,483)

*Appendix A provides a detalled description of the government benefits, taxes, transfers, and other payroll deductions assoclated with the 2018
Niagara region living wage calculation.

15



WHO COULD IMPLEMENT A LIVING WAGE IN NIAGARA?

There are a range of possibilities:

Municipal/Regional government: The Region of Niagara, as well as its 12 municipal
governments, could adopt a living wage strategy in all employment and procurement policies to
ensure that all staff and contract workers are paid Niagara region’s living wage. The City of
Cambridge, Ontario® is one example of a municipal government that recently passed a motion to
become a living wage employer, while the City of Toronto is considering living wage
recommendations in its Municipal Poverty Reduction Strategy®.

Broader public service sector: The broader public service, including hospitals and post-
secondary institutions, could adopt an organization-wide living wage policy that would ensure all
staff and contract workers are paid Niagara region’s living wage. The Hamilton-Wentworth
District School Board is one example of a public sector employer that has adopted a living wage
policy as a way to send a strong message on the importance of inclusive wages to reduce

poverty®.

Social profit/social service sector and granting agencies: Many employers in Niagara
region, including many non-profit organizations, offer employment opportunities that are funded
by some combination of government institutions and community foundations. These granting
organizations have considerable influence over the pay offered through their grants as they seek
to support programs that provide the highest level of service for the lowest cost possible. Moving
forward, grantors could consider the quality of the jobs supported by the funding and move to
ensure that employment opportunities consider including Niagara region’s living wage. Positive
Living, located in St. Catharines, is an example of a non-profit certified living wage employer.

Private sector: There is a growing and strong argument that private sector employers have
much to gain by embracing the living wage movement and a good jobs strategy. Although public
debate over a higher minimum wage is often subject to objections that the demands are too
great, there is much evidence to suggest that the choice to pay low-paid workers higher wages is
good for business of all sizes, good for the community, and good for the employees. Waterloo,
Ontario has several private sector living wage champions, including GCP Industrial Products and
Grosche International and Pen Financial Credit Union.

16



To date, seven employers based in Niagara region have become recognized as certified Living Wage
employers.

Regardless of the sector, the fundamental principles and implications of a living wage remain
the same:

¢ Income is the most important determinant of one’s health. Higher wages mean healthier workers
and healthier workers are more productive and absent less often;

e Higher wages lead to reduced staff turnover, which means lower training and recruitment costs
for employers;

e Recognizing employees’ contribution to the employer’s bottom line by compensating them with
competitive, inclusionary wages to meet the needs covered in a living wage calculation enhances
reputation among consumers and the community6.

e A living wage is one of many tools in a toolbox to assist in helping to meet a family’s basic cost
of living needs and opportunities for community participation - it is not a stand-alone policy or
decision. It works more effectively when implemented in conjunction with increased availability
of reasonably-priced housing, more accessible and affordable child care and public transit
options, employee benefit plans, skills training, economic development initiatives, and other
broad public policies and programs.

17



APPENDIX A

The following section provides a detailed description of the government benefits, taxes, transfers,
and other payroll deductions associated with the 2018 Niagara region living wage calculation and
income level:

CANADA CHILD BENEFIT

The Canada Child Benefit (CCB) is a tax-free monthly payment made to eligible families to help them
with the cost of raising children under 18 years of age?. The CCB might include the child disability
benefit and any related provincial and territorial programs.

CHILD CARE SUBSIDY

In Ontario, the provincial government provides lump sum funding to municipalities across
the province to provide child care subsidies for families in financial need. The subsidy works on
a sliding scale, offering greater support for families with the lowest incomes.

ONTARIO TRILLIUM BENEFIT

The Ontario Trillium Benefit (OTB) combines the following three credits to help pay for energy costs
as well as sales and property tax: Northern Ontario Energy Credit, Ontario Energy and Property Tax
Credit, and Ontario Sales Tax Credit.*

FEDERAL AND PROVINCIAL INCOME TAX

Each living wage calculation takes into account the amount of money an income earner pays in
federal and provincial taxes, after all government credits and deductions.

CANADA PENSION PLAN AND EMPLOYMENT INSURANCE CONTRIBUTIONS

With few exceptions, every person who is employed and earns over $3,500 per year in Canada must
contribute to the Canada Pension Plan (CPP)?, Workers must also contribute to the Employment
Insurance (EI) fund. Both contributions are subject to a yearly maximum. Generally, both
contributions are deducted from one’s paycheque.

18



SOURCES

1. Richards, T., Cohen, M., Klein, 5., and Littman, D (2008) - Working for a Living 2008:
Making paid work meet basic family needs in Vancouver and Victoria \Vancouver: CCPS-BC -

policyalternatives.ca
2. National Living Wage Framework (2015) - livingwagecanada.ca
3. Ontario Living Wage Network (2018), Employer Certification Program - ontariolivingwage.ca

4, Waterloo Record (2016), Cambridge Becomes First in Ontario to Endorse Living Wage Policy -

therecord.com
5. City of Toronto (2015), Interim Poverty Reduction Strategy - toronto.ca
6. Hamilton Spectator (2013), School board sends message on poverty - thespec.com
7. Living Wage Canada (2015), Two new living wage giants in Hamilton - livingwagecanada.ca
8. Living Wage Waterloo (2015), Waterloo Region Living Wage Employers - livingwagewr.org

9. Hennessy, T., Tiessen, K, & Yalnizyan, Y (2013) - Making Every Job a Good Job: A benchmark for

setting Ontario’s minimum wage, Toronto: CCPA-Ontario - policyalternatives.ca
10. Canada Revenue Agency (2016), Canada Child Benefit - cra-arc.gc.ca

11. Ontario Government (2018) Ontario Trillium Benefit — www.ontario.ca/page/ontario-trillium-

benefit

12. Government of Canada (2016), Canada Pension Plan - canada.ca

10

19



20



A Guide to Becoming a
Living Wage Employer

ONTARID

~ 7' LIVING
ONTARIOLIVINGWAGE.CA ' WAGE /

NETWORK




g A Guide to Becoming a Living Wage employer

» CONTENTS

BRI, oot v e O et o s, e i T i 2
WY BaEOme &LIVING WWaGE EMBIGYETY .cvecronmsenssssssssmersmorasmermsssmsssmssrommsiissssrommsmmsmmiessssfss 3
Benefits of becoming a Living Wage EMPIOYEL......coov v cennnecirnssresssssiecsssressssesssssssasesses 3
VEICIE U L IVEEN VTR mvsncssonsis cissescovmmnmmesnats focs disorsassive e i s ssss e e s e 3
G T N P S S 3
COHTTETHE L ISH LY WHSEIE DR v convrsamons omnsucmmiminsimes vt s s ST SaS e A S resd 4
Conditions for becoming a living Wage BMPIOYEN.........cccoecvvereriiririeirccers e snressisaesssserssaesessasnss 4
PhaSed IMPIMEMTATION. .........ovoruireesieserceisiesirsesiessrssseeseeesssessesesesecsssssesssssssesstessesses s ens s sesess s ssesssans 4
ADPIYING to bBcamo & LIVING VWAGO EIDIOVEN. «xvussmemimimmmenmsmiimms s issssamssmsimassmissmiasss 5
ORI oo vt oo S RS SR Ao ST i 6
VISIBTIGG OF Tl LIMI0 MBI o «canseancomvomsrmns somssimms s ionsssssisiis sopmis s s sy 6
Ermployer paid DEnefits aAnd The TVING WA, suwmmssssussssmommsmsssinsssmm s i 6
Trainggs, Interns, Go-0p and PractiCuim PIBOOTIBINS. .« mssimsmssmmmiorssemsvseimsmsisioakosisiies 6
Externally contracted (Third-Party) staff and the living Wage.........ccccceveceerieiinieciiciierieccseeneeaas 7
LT RTIVEL PN TBBIMBIIES cvcsvons coro covamssnson s s os o on o S AT N SO A AR e 8
L T 8
LIn WAOD SR IOVEE SNSRI oo smembsmmms i e 9
AL IS DIEAING LINHTY VORDE IO, .oesinssisissomsnsssons sansss vonsaiasies mas monsn s s e e asisasss 9
IRV oo sonvimmsimmmeminss st s R RS s 9
Appendix 1: living wage employer implementation plan for COMpany X.......cccccvvvvvvinvreiirecneenn, 10
Appendix 2: example of internal IVINg Wage PONCY.........ccvmrrsismmerimmmsmmimnsimssssssisimsssmssismssssssseas 12
Appendix 3: example of living wage clause for service provider Contracts.........cccovvvvivvceniiinnnnn, 14
DRI i o s v S R B B S S T S T SRR P el 15



UNTARIULIVINGWALE.UA B

b WHY BECOME A LIVING WAGE EMPLOYER?

Living Wage Employers are responsible employers who care about their employees
and the community. They recognize that paying a living wage constitutes a critical
investment in the long-term prosperity of the economy by fostering a dedicated,
skilled and healthy workforce. The Living Wage Employer Program recognizes and

celebrates employers that pay their direct and indirect employees a living wage.

} BENEFITS OF BECOMING A LIVING WAGE EMPLOYER

» Employees who earn a living wage experience increased mental and physical
health, and economic well-being.

» Living Wage Employers receive public recognition for demonstrating a commitment
to socially responsible practices, making them more attractive to potential employees
and customers.

» Employers paying a living wage experience a decrease in employee turnover

and absenteeism, increased retention and productivity, and savings on rehiring and
retraining.

» Employers can use the living wage as a tool within their recruitment strategy for
lower paying occupations.

»  WHAT IS THE LIVING WAGE?

A living wage is the hourly wage a worker needs to earn to cover their basic
expenses and participate in their community. It is re-calculated periodically to
ensure that it accurately reflects changing living expenses. Living wage rates are
based on the National Living Wage Framework.

> WHY IS IT NECESSARY?

More and more people are working for low wages. They are facing impossible choices
— buy food or heat the house, feed the children or pay the rent. The result can be
spiralling debt, constant anxiety, and long-term health problems. In many cases it
means that the adults in a family are working long hours, often at two or three jobs,
just to pay for basic necessities.

P 353



Bl A Guide to Becoming a Living Wage Employer

D  CURRENT LIVING WAGE RATES

Current living wage rates for employees not receiving any non-mandatory benefits can
be found by visiting:

www.ontariolivingwage.ca/living_wage_by_region

If an organization provides any benefits such as health, dental and prescription drug
coverage please contact the Living Wage program for a personalized calculation for
the organization.

»  CONDITIONS FOR BECOMING A LIVING WAGE EMPLOYER

» Employers agree to ensure that all direct full time, part-time and contract employees
are paid the living wage rate for their area. If employees are paid relevant non-
mandatory benefits, the living wage hourly rate that must be paid will take account of
this.

» Employers agree to insert a living wage clause (stipulating that contracted workers
and subcontracted workers are to be paid a living wage) in all future contracts
where staff who are not direct employees are contracted to provide services to their

organization on a regular, ongoing basis.

»  PHASED IMPLEMENTATION

The Living Wage Employer Program currently provides phased implementation with
three levels of certification for organizations:

SUPPORTER: All direct full-time employees are paid a living wage. Committed to
begin raising the pay of all direct part-time employees to the living wage rate.

LEADER: All direct full-time and part-time employees are paid a living wage.
Committed to including living wage in service contracts for externally contracted
(third party) employees that provide service on a regular basis.

CHAMPION: All direct full-time and part-time employees are paid a living wage, and
all externally (third party) contracted staff that provide service on a regular basis are

t 4 24



UNTARTULIVINGWADLE. LA -

paid a living wage or will be when the contract renews.

»  APPLYING TO BECOME A LIVING WAGE EMPLOYER

Employers prepare and submit a draft Living Wage Employer Implementation Plan
that should include the following details:

1. Employer details

» Employer name and addresses of all offices/worksites/premises
» Basic description of company, nature of the workplace
» Contact person’s details in relation to this application

2. Direct employees

» Approximate number of direct staff that will be affected by Living Wage
Employer status

» For organizations that have collective agreements in place, it is expected
that they will inform the relevant union(s) of their intention to apply for living
wage status.

Confirmation of this should be included in the plan

» Initial timeline for bringing all direct employees to a living wage rate

» Mechanism that will be used internally to ensure that all staff are
maintained at a living wage rate on an annual basis as per conditions

3. Contracted service staff

» Brief description of your current service contracting process

» Estimated number and type of service contracts that will be affected by
your certification as a Living Wage Employer

» Mechanism that will be used internally to ensure that all relevant service
contracts will include a relevant living wage clause at time of renewal or
initial awarding

4. Overseeing the plan

» How this plan will be overseen
» Who has responsibility for overseeing the plan



B A Guide to Becoming a Living Wage Employer

»  SUPPORT

Ontario Living Wage Network will provide advice and support to employers
implementing the Living Wage including best practice guides, case studies from
leading employers, a business case, presentations, and model procurement
frameworks.

D UPDATING OF THE LIVING WAGE

Local Living Wage rates are updated annually or bi-annually to take into account living
expense changes and changes to government transfers and deductions. Living Wage
Employers will be notified of changes to the Living Wage rate. Employers agree to
align their current living wage rates to the new calculation within six months.

»  EMPLOYER PAID BENEFITS AND THE LIVING WAGE

To calculate the living wage rate for an employer we take into account their
employees'’ total compensation package (wages + benefits). If employees receive
non-mandatory benefits, the living wage rate is adjusted to take this into account.

} TRAINEES, INTERNS, CO-OP AND PRACTICUM PLACEMENTS

Employers are allowed to have a small number of trainees, students in practicum or
co-op placements or interns that are paid below the living wage as long as they don't
represent a core part of the total staff makeup (no more than 10% for most employers;
in the case of small not-for-profits where the total staff complement is five workers, no
more than 20%). Staff that are on probation are not counted as part of the living wage
determination process but once their probation period is over, they must receive a
living wage.

Notwithstanding the 10% exemption for trainees, interns, co-op and practicum

positions, living wage employers are encouraged to pay a living wage to these
employees if they are able or as close to the living wage as possible.

6 4 26



UNTANTULIVINQWAUE. LA -

UNPAID INTERNS AND THE LIVING WAGE
Under Ontario’s Employment Standards Act, unpaid internships are only permitted
if the internship falls under one of the three narrow exceptions:

1. Internships that are part of a program approved by a secondary school board,
college, or university; or
2. Internships that provide training for certain professions (e.g. architecture, law,
public accounting, veterinary science, dentistry, optometry); or
3. Internships that meet all six conditions required for the intern to be considered a
“trainee”:
1. The training is similar to that which is given in a vocational school
2. The training is for the benefit of the individual
3. The person providing the training derives little, if any, benefit from the activity
of the individual while he or she is being trained
4. The individual does not displace employees of the person providing the

5. The individual is not accorded a right to become an employee of the person
providing the training

6. The individual is advised that he or she will receive no remuneration for the
time that he or she spends in training.

Ontario Living Wage Network expects enrolled employers to comply with the
Employment Standards Act in their use of unpaid interns.

EXTERNALLY CONTRACTED (THIRD-PARTY) STAFF AND THE
LIVING WAGE

Externally contracted staff refers to staff that many businesses use to provide services
such as janitorial, security, or catering. This clause covers external (third-party)
contracts that provide services for the organization on a regular ongoing basis, that
is, for at least 120 hours of labour per year. Ad hoc contract work (for repairs or
maintenance, for example) is exempted from this clause.

Living Wage Employers are encouraged to inform contractors about the Living Wage
Program and how it may affect the terms of their agreements. A Living Wage clause

Py



B A Guide to Becoming a Living Wage Employer

should be included in all future agreements and renegotiated agreements with hired
contractors. Organizations do not need to renegotiate existing contracts before they
come up for renewal in order to be compliant. All future agreements, whether new or
being renewed, must incorporate the Living Wage standards. Living Wage Champions
need to undertake the following:

A. If the staff are directly contracted by the organization. When the contract comes
up for renewal the organization should include a living wage clause as part of its
Request for Proposals (RFP). It is expected that, after selecting a suitable contractor, a
living wage clause will be inserted in the contract as per the RFP.

B. If the staff are not directly contracted by the organization, but do provide
services - for example, as part of a tenancy agreement. The organization should
advocate for a living wage clause to be included in the agreement/contract when it
comes up for renewal.

BEST EFFORT CLAUSE

If an organization can clearly show
that it made its best efforts to fulfil
this clause it will be allowed to keep
its Living Wage Champion status.
(For example if an organization
received no responses to a RFP that
included a Living Wage Clause.)

»  COLLECTIVE AGREEMENTS

It is expected that Organizations that
have collective agreements in place
will inform the relevant union(s) of
their intention to apply for living wage
status. Collective agreements will be
treated as contracts, as per above.

»  MONITORING

If an employer is found to have not fulfilled the criteria within their Living Wage
Declaration, the Living Wage Program will work with the employer to identify whether

5 4 28



UNTARIULIVINGWARE.UA =

continued involvement in the program is possible.

D LIVING WAGE EMPLOYER CERTIFICATION

Once the employer has been certified as a Living Wage employer, it becomes entitled to:
» Living Wage Employer window decals for store front display where appropriate,
» A Living Wage Employer electronic logo for use on websites and print materials,

» Recognition on our website and any of our periodic publications.

We encourage new Living Wage Employers to celebrate their certification as a Living
Wage Employer with staff and board members, as well as announcing their status in
local media and trade publications.

} ABOUT THE ONTARIO LIVING WAGE NETWORK

The Ontario Living Wage Network is a collaborative of employers, employees, non-
profit organizations, community groups, researchers and proponents of decent work
standards for all Ontario workers. The purpose of the Ontario Living Wage Network
is to strengthen and support local community efforts and provincial initiatives to
encourage employers across Ontario to provide decent work that pays a living wage
for all of their employees.

»  DEFINITIONS

» Direct employees. Direct employees include permanent employees and contract
staff who are on the payroll of the employer.

» Indirect employees. Indirect or externally contracted staff refers to staff that many
businesses use to provide services such as janitorial, security, or catering. It includes
contractors working on their own account, such as an independent cleaner or
bookkeeper, and staff of a business contracted to do regular work for the organization
on site.

» Full-time. For the purposes of the living wage employer program, full-time staff refers
to employees working 35 or more hours a week.

» Part-time. For the purposes of the living wage employer program, part-time staff
refers to employees working fewer than 35 hours a week.

» 999



B A Guide to Becoming a Living Wage Employer

» APPENDIX 1:

LIVING WAGE EMPLOYER IMPLEMENTATION PLAN FOR COMPANY X

1. Introduction

Company X is proud of its record as a responsible employer. To date, it has won
numerous awards recognizing this commitment. Company X provides a wide range
of eye care solutions. It was founded in 1970 and we currently have 7 retail outlets
throughout Ontario. We currently employ 85 staff, 50 full-time and 35 part-time.

2. Direct Employees

Based on an analysis undertaken by our HR Manger, we currently have 5 full-time and
10 part-time staff that are below the current living wage rate. These positions are all
retail assistant positions. The five fulltime staff receive full Health benefits and when
this is taken into account, we need to increase their base hourly wage by $0.75/hr to
reach the living wage rate. The 10 part-time positions are not paid benefits and thus,
their base hourly wage needs to be increased by $2.10/hr to reach the living wage
rate. This provides us with an equity challenge as it would mean that similar positions
would be paid quite different base hourly wage rates. To address this, we have
decided to provide benefits to all part time staff and increase their base hourly wage
by $1.00 to bring them up to a living wage rate.

The company’s HR manager will be responsible for making these changes within
3 months of being declared a Living Wage employer. In June of every year, the HR
manager undertakes a comprehensive wage review for all staff members and our
Living Wage Employer commitments will be included as part of this review.

Our staff is non-unionized so we have no collective agreements.

3. Contracted Service Staff

We currently lease all our premises and security services are provided as part of
these leasing arrangements. Our leases vary from 1to 10 years. As we don't directly
contract security services we can't guarantee that we will be able to ensure a living
wage clause, but we will endeavour to follow the criteria +in the ‘best effort clause’ set
out in the Living Wage Employer conditions.

10 4 30



UNTARTULIVINGWALUE. LA ==

We have 3 service contracts that fall under Living Wage criteria.

» Computer System Maintenance and support. This contract is an annual contract
renewed at the start of every year. We commit to include an appropriate living wage
clause when it is next renewed. However we estimate that no workers will be affected
by this.

» Eye Equipment Maintenance. We have a three-year contract which is due for
renewal in Oct. 2017. We commit to include an appropriate living wage clause in the
new contract at this date. Again, we estimate that no workers will be affected by this
as it is highly specialized work.

» Janitorial/Cleaning. This contract covers all our premises and is due for renewal
in Nov. 2017. We commit to include an appropriate living wage clause in the new
contract at this date. We estimate that this will affect 15-20 workers.

4. Implementation

This plan was developed by the HR Manager and has been approved by the

CEO and Board of the Company. The HR Manager will be responsible for its
implementation. A section on our Living Wage Employer commitments will be included
in the annual HR report to the Board.

Signed

Date




B A Guide to Becoming a Living Wage Employer

» APPENDIX 2.
EXAMPLE OF INTERNAL LIVING WAGE POLICY

Purpose

At [Name of Employer], it is important to us to be aware of, and maintain, corporate
social responsibility.

We strive to make decisions and take actions that have a positive impact on our
community, our staff, and the people we serve. As a responsible employer, we believe
that our employees need to earn a wage that sustains a lifestyle that meets the needs
of daily living and provide some discretionary income. We recognise that paying

a living wages constitutes a critical investment in the long-term prosperity of our
organization by fostering a dedicated, skilled and healthy workforce.

Definition

The living wage is the hourly rate of pay that enables wage earners living in a
household to:

» Feed, clothe and provide shelter for their family
» Promote healthy child development
» Participate in activities that are an ordinary element of life in the community

» Avoid the chronic stress of living in poverty

This hourly rate is calculated every two years by the Ontario Living Wage Network,
based on the living expenses of a family of four with two children aged 3 and 8,
with both parents working full-time. Local living expenses are calculated for Food,
Clothing and Footwear, Shelter, Transportation, Child Care, Non-OHIP Health Care,
Parents’ education, Contingency Fund and Other (such as personal care, furniture,
household supplies). The cost of government deductions (provincial and federal
taxes, Employment Insurance and Canada Pension contributions) and the value of
government transfers like the Canada Child Tax Benefit are also factored into the
calculation.



UNTARIULIVINGWALE. LA =

Application (Dependent on level of recognition)

The policy applies to all employees employed by [Name of Employer], as well as all
employees employed by a contractor or sub-contractor who perform services directly
or indirectly for [Name of Employer] on a regular ongoing basis.

Direct Staff

» Staff earning only a salary or wage will earn at least a Living Wage. When the living
wage is recalculated, any increases in the living wage will be passed onto staff within
6 months of the new calculation.

Contracted Staff

» Where services are contracted, e.g. food service, cleaning, etc., we choose
vendors/ service providers that pay a living wage to their staff. This clause covers
external contracts that provide services for our company on a regular, ongoing basis;
that is, for at least 120 hours of labour per year.

» Living Wage clauses are included in all agreements and renegotiated agreements
with contractors we hire.

Benefits in Consideration

» Ininstances where non-mandatory benefits are provided to staff, the basic hourly
wage due to staff may be adjusted to reflect the positive impact these benefits have
on the employee’s ability to meet basic needs and have some discretionary income.

» These benefits include health, dental, vision and prescription coverage for staff
covered by this policy.

Benefits may be provided on a cost shared basis; however, the premiums paid by
the employee cannot reduce the wage to below an acceptable level with respect to a
Living Wage.

Accountability

[Name of Company] maintains its participation in this policy through the Living
Wage Employer Program. We are accountable for upholding and keeping current
with this policy. [Name of Company] will ensure that a relevant process is in place
for employees to raise any issues relating to the Living Wage Policy in a safe and
confidential manner.

p 1333



B A Guide to Becoming a Living Wage Employer

» APPENDIX 3:

EXAMPLE OF LIVING WAGE CLAUSE FOR SERVICE PROVIDER CONTRACTS

The following is an example of a Living Wage contract clause for insertion into
contracts with service providers to guarantee Living Wage provision. These contract
clauses are offered as starting points in order to assist drafting of appropriate
provisions. These contract clauses are not recommended clauses, nor do they
substitute the requirement to seek legal advice.

The Ontario Living Wage Network is not responsible for the use or operation of any or
all of these clauses and accepts no liability arising out of such use or operation.

..................................................................................................

D  General
1.1 It is a condition of this Agreement that, for the duration of this Agreement:

(a) the Contractor pays all employees who are employed by the Contractor to perform
services pursuant to this agreement not less than the Living Wage, as set by the
Ontario Living Wage Network; and

(b) notwithstanding 1.1 (a), the contractor has up to 6 months from the date on which
any increase in the Living Wage is adjusted by Ontario Living Wage Network, to
increase any or all wages such that the Contracted Employees continue to be paid
not less than the Living Wage.

Sub Contracting
1.2 If the Contractor sub-contracts all or part of the provision of the Services to a

sub-contractor pursuant to clause [1.1 |, the Contractor shall ensure that any sub-
contractor adheres to clause 1.1 as though it were the contractor.

Termination of Contract
A breach by the Contractor of its obligations pursuant to clauses 1.1 and 1.2 shall

constitute a material breach by the Contractor of this Agreement which shall entitle the
client to terminate this Agreement.

" 4 34



UNTARIULIVINGDWAGE.CA 1

CONTACT US

Ontario Living Wage Network
www.ontariolivingwage.ca
manager@ontariolivingwage.ca

Chatham-Kent
prosperity@uwock.ca

Guelph-Wellington
info@gwpoverty.ca

Hamilton
tom@hamiltonpoverty.ca

Kingston
camjay2001@yahoo.ca

Sudbury
sweacoutreach@gmail.com

Waterloo Region
manager@livingwagewr.org

Financial support for the Living Wage Employer
Program comes from Kindred Credit Union.

ag KINDRED
- Credit Union

BANKING WITH PURPOSE

May 2017



This page intentionally left blanki

36



LdR b Engineering and Operations Department
PORT COLBORNE Engineering Division

Report Number: 2019-124 Date: August 12, 2019

Subject: Clarence Street Crosswalk, Investigation Regarding Safety Concerns

1) PURPOSE

This report was prepared by Gimuel Ledesma and Kyle Rutter, Engineering Students, at
the Direction of Chris Lee, Director of Engineering and Operations, in response to the
safety concerns received by City Council about the Clarence and Catharine Street
intersection crossover. City Council directed staff to investigate the concerns and to
provide options with respect to safety at the intersection.

2) HISTORY/BACKGROUND

Clarence Street is a two-lane, two-way arterial road having a legal speed limit of 50 km/h.
The area of study extends from Elm Street in the west to King Street in the east, with a
predominantly straight alignment. The section in question has a 13.5 metre road width,
with on-street parking and sidewalks located on both sides of the road. The properties on
both blocks leading up to the crossover have predominantly commercial uses. The
crossover is located on the east leg of the Clarence and Catharine Streets intersection.
Catharine Street is one way only traffic heading south and two way traffic heading north.

The Clarence Street crossover was installed late 2018, with the intent to safely assist
pedestrian traffic within the intersection traveling north to south across Clarence Street.

Through field observations, the intersection is notably congested on Fridays during
Market Square activities between the hours of 6:00 a.m. and 1:00 p.m., with heavy
concentrations of both vehicles and pedestrians. This is a definite outlier compared to all
other days of the week.

3) STAFF COMMENTS AND DISCUSSIONS

City staff conducted field observations on Wednesday, July 3, 2019 and on Friday, July
5, 2019, at two separate times during the day, once in the morning and once in the
afternoon. Listed below are noted observations:

Wednesday, July 3, 2019 —a.m. and p.m.

e The morning and afternoon operations at the study area were observed by staff to be
normal. Their observations revealed that motorists were yielding to pedestrians and
pedestrians were operating the crossover and the associated signals in proper
fashion. There appeared to be no operational nor conflicting issues between vehicles
and pedestrians at the said crossover and study area in general during these noted

37



times. It should be noted, that a number of pedestrians did “jaywalk” between
intersections.

On Friday, July 5, 2019, staff noted that the following problems are present at the
crossover location:

e Motorists fail to yield to pedestrians
It is noted that vehicles are stopping in the middle of the intersection seemingly not
knowing where to stop

e Pedestrians were crossing on the west side of the intersection and not at the
delineated crossover
Pedestrians failed to activate the crossover button
Signs can be obstructed by illegal loading and unloading activities at the intersection

Niagara Regional Police Staff (NRP) also conducted recent monitoring of the intersection.
Their findings are summarized below:

¢ All motor vehicles observed were in compliance and slowed or stopped for pedestrians
as required
e Many pedestrians failed to activate the lights prior to entering the intersection.

They also stated that the signage may be confusing to some drivers, that all signs should
say “Stop for Pedestrians” and that additional pedestrian signage stating “Wait for Traffic
to Stop” could be helpful.

As background to the study, staff also performed a 5 year collision report investigation
along the study area and found that there were a total of 16 reported incidents recorded
from January 2014 to December 2018.

e Clarence Street at Catharine Street (crossover location) - 6
» Clarence Street Between Elm Street and Catharine Street - 7
e Clarence Street Between Catharine Street and King Street - 3

Staff were also able to determine that there are no reported incidents in the study area
following the Clarence and Catharine Street pedestrian crossover installation. However,
due to indicated operational issues and previously mentioned safety concerns, staff wish
to present a number of possible actions/options:

Staff Suggestions/Possible Options:

a) As an interim (August — October) — flexible delineator posts

To properly manage traffic, flexible delineator posts can be installed to channel traffic and
slow vehicle speeds, all in an attempt to prevent collision. Flexible delineator posts can

be erected for the duration of August to November (balance of summer/fall of 2019), with
installation again in 2020 for the spring/summer/fall season. (Note, issues regarding posts

Engineering and Operations Department, Engineering Division Report 2019-124  Page 2 of 9

38



being swiped/damaged by vehicles or snow plows during winter months in other
municipalities is the reason for this). It is recommended that they be installed and removed
seasonally, until such time as the public gains familiarity on how to properly operate and
interact with the crossover. It is estimated that this option will cost approximately $3,000
to install initially.

In addition, continual monitoring of the condition of the painted stop bars is required in
both west and east approaches of the intersection, as they clearly indicate the location of
the crossover.

It is also recommended that staff investigate the possibility of increasing the size of the
warning signs currently indicating the crossover location.

b) Pavement markings to delineate traffic

Pavement markings can also be used to channel traffic and slow vehicle speed, but can
be easily ignored at times by motorists. These markings are also not visible during any
winter months, therefore this is not a recommended option.

c) As an interim, stationing of a crossing guard on Farmers’ Market days (Fridays)

Staff reviewed the possibility of posting crossing guards at the intersection. As per the
guidelines from the Ontario Traffic Council, crossing guards are used in school zones and
construction zones. The Clarence Street crosswalk is neither of these zones. A crossing
guard only has the authority to interfere with traffic or assist pedestrians at those
designated locations.

As a note, the intersection currently does not meet any of the warrants for a crossing
guard, therefore posting a crossing guard at this location is not an option.

d) As an interim, stationing of a traffic/police officer on Farmers’ Market days:
(Fridays)

Due to the high congestion of pedestrians and vehicles on Fridays as discussed above,
posting a police officer to direct traffic on Fridays is an option staff investigated.

As per the Niagara Regional Police, if a police officer is to be hired on Special Duty (for
traffic control), first, there is no guarantee that an officer will accept/sign up for the task.
Secondly, cost must be taken into consideration. There is a minimum billing requirement
for 3 hours for a Special Duty Police Officer at a cost of approximately $100 per hour.
They can be posted between August to November or until such time that the public would
gain familiarity with how to properly operate the new crosswalk. That approximate cost
would be $600 per day on Farmers’ Market day (+/- $25,000 annually — 40 Weeks)

Engineering and Operations Department, Engineering Division Report 2019-124  Page 3 of 9

39



Conclusion
Based on the review of the suggestions provided by staff, it is recommended that flexible
delineator posts be installed along the centreline of the roadway on both sides leading up

to the crossover. It is further recommended that visible lines be painted to aid motorists
and pedestrians and assist with the functionality of the crossover.

4) OPTIONS AND FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS:
a) Do Nothing

Leave current existing controls in place at the intersection of Clarence Street at Catharine
Street.

b) Other Options

Flexible delineator posts installed with additional “Yield for Pedestrians” signage, at an
estimated cost of $3,000.

5) COMPLIANCE WITH STRATEGIC PLAN INITIATIVES

None.
6) ATTACHMENTS

Proposed Plan
Collision Report Details for the study area.

7) RECOMMENDATION

That staff be directed to implement Option “A”", the temporary installation of median
delineators on Clarence Street, east and west of Catharine Street and to install additional
signage stating “Stop for Pedestrians”, at an estimated installation price of $3,000, the
funds to cover the cost of this works be taken from G/L # 0-500-74210-3215

Engineering and Operations Department, Engineering Division Report 2019-124 Page 4 of 9

40



8) SIGNATURES

Prepared on July 30, 2019 by:

Gimuel Ledesma and Kyle Rutter
Engineering Students

Reviewed by:

W%%ﬂ

Brenda Garrett
Director of Corporate Services

Reviewed by:

Chris Lee
Director of Engineering and Operations

Reviewed and respectfully submitted by:

C. Scott Luey
Chief Administrative Officer

Engineering and Operations Department, Engineering Division Report 2019-124  Page 5 of 9

41



Temporary Flexi Delineators

_ Crosswalk Location

-
A

Engineering and Operations Department, Engineering Division Report 2019-124  Page 6 of 9

42



$Z1-61.0Z Hoday uoisinig BuuesulBug ‘Juswyedsq suonesadQ pue Buuesulbug

6 1o ) ebed

m 1/5/ m Collision Details Report

From: January 1, 2014

To: December 31, 2018

Location .......... Catharine Street @ Clarence Streset Municipality....... PORT COLBORNE
Traffic Control.... Unknown Total Collisions.... 6
Collision ID Date/DayTims Srvironment  Impact Typs Classificstion Directon Surfaoe Cond'n Venhicie Manosuver Yenicle type First Everd Dirtver Action No. Fad
1447179 2014-Jun-10. Tue 1832 Clear Angle P.D. oniy Seuth Dry Going ahead ile, Ofther moter Failed to yisld right-of-
sEtonwagon  vehusie way
Comments: ol ehargad Easy Dy Gomg amnead Auwomotie, Oiher moter Diriving propery
smion wegen  vehicle
15-105343 2015-D=c-08 Sun 1350 Clear Siceswipe PD.enly Rlorh Dy Pulling away from  Passengervan  Other motor Failed to yeald nght-of
shoulder or cut vehicle way
Comments” North Dry Gomng ansad Automobile, Other mator Dmving properly
sistom wagen  wehicle
1620874 2018-Apr-17. Bun.14:14  Clear Angle Oingr Scuth Dy Going ahesd Automokbsis, Other moter Failsd to yeid nghtot
=ation wagon  wehicle wsy
Comments: Unknoam Offience Viest Dre Gomg anead Motoreyels Other maotor Drniing property
veticie
1753208 2017-Jur-18, Mon.BE:80 Cilear Rear end Non-fatal injury East Dry Going anead Passenger van  Other mator Following iso close
vehiole
Commenis: ¢! charged East Dry Stoppad Automotbile, Other motor Driving propery
siaton wagon  vehicle
17102765 2017-Oct-23, Mon,18:58 Clear Rear end ipn-reportable Wegt Diry Stopped Automokbile. Other motor Driving property
siation wagen  vehicle
Comments: 02 charged West Dy Going ahezad Automokile, Other motor Following ico close
sistion wagon  vehicle
18117138  2018-Mov-27. Tue.12:3C Snow SV unattended Shush Parked Automoktie. Other moter
vahiciz staton wagon  wvehicle
Comments:
Thursday, June 20, 2019 Page 10f 1

43



¥Z1-610z uodey uoisiaig Bupesuibug Juswpedsq suoneled pue Buuesuibug

6 10 g sbed

m %/ m Collision Details Report

From:

January 1,2014 Teo-

December 31, 2018

Traffic Control.... Unknown

Clarence Street btwn Cathanne Street & Elm Street

Municipality......

PORT COLBORNE
Total Collisions.... 7

Collision 1DV Date/DayTime Emvironment  impect Type  Classification  Direcion Sursse Cond'n Vericie Manceuver Vehicle type First Everd Dirhier Bcdion No. Ped
14-15127  2014-Fep-24, Mon, 1240 Clear Angle PD. enly East Wist Going ahead Teuek - tractar  Other mater Irmproper fum
vizhicle
Comments: gl charged South  Wet Tuming left Automohile, Other mates Driving property
staton wagon  wehiple
14-88534  2014-Oct-31. Fri.11:55  Ram Angle P.D. only East Wet Gong ahead Automabile, Other mates Failzd to yisld nght-c®
statonwageon  vehicle way
Comments: Norih Vet Tuming nght Automobile. Other motor Drwing properly
statonwagon  vehitle
16-7688s  2015-Jan-14, Wea,08:15 Clear Sideswipe HNon-reportable West oz Tuming right Auvtomokile, Other mater Driving properly
statonwagon  vehicle
Comments: West Stoppec Automotile, Ofther motor Driving propery
staton wagon  vehicle
15-7480 2015-Jan-28. Wea.12:08 Ciear Angie PD. enly West Dry Going anead Auwiomobile, Other motor Fallad to yaid righi-oi-
siaton wagen  vehicle w3y
Comments: North Tuming nght Aomobile. Other motor Drwing property
amtonwagon  wehicle
15-88624 20150012, Mon,18:20 Claar Rear end P.D. only horth Dry Turming nght Automobie, Other mator Folicwing oo close
staton wagon  vehicie
Comments: Morth Dy Going anead Automobile, QOther matar Driving property
s1aton wagon  wehicle
18TE0E0 20168-Aug-31, Wad 1318 Clear Angle Mom-fatal imjury Nori Diry Gomg anead Awomotdle., Othier mator Fail=d to yiehd nght-odf-
“taton wagon  wshacle w3y
Comments: d1 &2 cnarges East Dy Gomg ahead Awtomobiie, Other mater Speed oo fast for
saton wagon  vehicle eongition
1800837 20180007, Sun15:25 Cilear Sugsswmpe P D only East Dry Geing anhead Awtomotbile, Other mater Drniing property
siatmnwagon  wehicle
Comments: c2 charged Easzt Puliing away fram  Auomebile, Other mator Failed to yeld right-oi-
srawider or curo siatonwegon  wehicle way
Thursday, June 20, 2019 Page 1 of 1

44



¥Z1-610z Hoday uojsiag BuussuiBug ‘uswypedsq suonelsdp pue Buussuibug

6 10 6 abed

Niagara®

e T Collision Details Report
: 5 Region

From: January 1, 2014

To: December 31, 2018

Location ......... Clarence Street bitwn King Street & Cathanne Sireet

Traffic Conwrol.... Unknown

Municipality........
Total Collisions.... 2

PORT COLBORNE

Coliision ID Daste/Day/Time

Ervironment  impact Typs Classification Direcfion Surface Cond'n Vehicle Manosuver Vehicle type First Every Diriver Action No. Fed
16100123 2015-Mov-10. Thu 13:38 Clear Siseswipe P.D. only East Dry Geoing anead Auomokile, DOther mater Drving propary
stafion wagon  welicle
Comments. Unknoan Offznce East Ltsrging Automabile, Other motor Falled to peld nght-cf-
station wagon wehsls Wy
1812811 2018-F2b-11. Sun 14:40 Ram Crner Easzt Wet AgueTsing Plck-up truck Other maotor Diriving properly
vehicle
Comments: Wes1 Gong anead
18108082 2018-Oct28, Fn 1148 Clear Siceswnpe Non-fa1al injury West Dry Other Aulomoie, Cyclist Crher
sizhon wsgon
Comments: dl chargad Wes? Gomng anead Bieycte Other mator Dnving properly
vehicle
Thursday, June 20, 2019 Page 1 of 1

45



This page intentionally left blank.

46



Department: Chief Administrative Officer

PORT COLBORNE
Report Number: 2019-126 Date: August 12, 2019

Subject: Transit Update
1) PURPOSE

This CAO generated report is provided as an update for the Mayor and Council on
developments with the City’s transit service and the Region’s Inter-municipal Transit
initiative.

2) HISTORY, BACKGROUND, COUNCIL POLICY, PRACTICES

Municipal transit services in Port Colborne are provided by Welland Transit through a
contract between the City and Welland Transit. Currently, the City provides a “Community
Bus” that operates daily from 7 a.m. to 6 p.m. (Schedule 1) and the “Port Colborne Link”
(PC Link) that provides ten trips from Port Colborne to Welland and nine trips from
Welland to Port Colborne daily (Schedule 2).

In 2017, Niagara Region Council approved a staff report that, among other actions,
created an Inter-Municipal Transit Working Group that consists of Regional staff and a
staff member from Niagara’s twelve area municipalities. The City’s Chief Administrative
Officer was appointed by Council to represent Port Colborne on the working group.

3) STAFF COMMENTS AND DISCUSSIONS

The purpose of this report is to provide Council with an update in three key areas: the
activities of the Inter-Municipal Transit Working Group, the Provincial Gas Tax funding for
transit, and the status of the Port Colborne Welland Link.

Inter-Municipal Transit Working Group

Since its creation in 2017, the Inter-Municipal Working Group has been meeting regularly
to implement a workplan based on the service delivery strategy for Niagara that was
prepared by Dillon Consulting.

Key components of the workplan include milestones in the areas of governance,
operations, and system planning and service expansion. Progress has already been
made in the areas of:

- Customer service policies

- Customer service

- Provincial Gas Tax analysis

- Common Digital Platform — Transit App

- Implementing a Universal Support Person Pass for all transit systems

47



The working group has plans to continue to implement the work plan including, most
relevant to Port Colborne, the implementation of a common fare strategy — meaning all
ridership classes will pay the same fares in each jurisdiction.

Provincial Gas Tax

As part of the mandate of the working group, Regional staff have conducted an analysis
of the Provincial Gas Tax funding that is provided to Port Colborne. The province currently
provides two cents per litre of Provincial Gas Tax to expand and improve transit in Ontario.
This amount is calculated based on population and transit ridership. There is a maximum
entitliement based on the amount the municipality spends on transit. In Port Colborne, the
municipality does not spend enough annually to be entitled to the entire allocation. The
Region does qualify for the allocation that is available to the City based on the population,
ridership, and annual transit spending for Regional Transit. In 2019, the Region proposed
a memorandum of understanding (MOU) that will allow the Region to collect the amount
of Gas Tax that Port Colborne is ineligible to collect. The MOU was approved by the City's
Transit Advisory Committee at its May 2019 meeting and approved by Council at the July
22, 2019 Council meeting.

Port Colborne Welland Link

The City's inter-municipal route between Port Colborne and Welland is operated by
Welland Transit and is funded by both the City and the Region. When service
enhancements take place the cost of the additional services are borne by both the City
and the Region. The service level was increased in September 2018 and will be increased
again in September of this year. Welland Transit reports that there have been increases
in ridership commensurate with the increased investment in this transit route.

The Port Colborne Welland Link (PC Link) is an inter-municipal route and, as such, staff
have held the opinion that it should be funded as part of the Region’s budget for Regional
Transit. In its 2019 budget, Regional Council approved funding of the PC Link as a
Regional Transit route with the proviso that Port Colborne will continue to invest the same
amount in local transit that was previously spent on the PC Link route annually. The
Region will fund the PC Link beginning in 2019. Staff intend to bring forward proposals
for local service enhancement to the City’s Transit Advisory Committee in the future in
order to fulfill the requirement to maintain the City’s annual transit spending.

4) OPTIONS AND FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS:

There are no immediate financial considerations associated with this update. The City will
have a decision to make as far as allocating the additional transit spending that is
available as a result of the Region uploading the cost of the PC Link service. This decision
will be made at a later date.

Chief Administrative Officer Report 2019-126 Page 2 of 3

48



a) Do nothing.

This report is prepared as an update only, no action is required by Council. It is
recommended that Council receive this report for information. (RECOMMENDED).

b) Other Options

Council could choose to consider changes to the level of transit service provided in the
City. (NOT RECOMMENDED).

5) COMPLIANCE WITH STRATEGIC PLAN INITIATIVES
Not Applicable.
6) ATTACHMENTS

Schedule 1 — Port Colborne Community Bus Schedule and Route Map
Schedule 2 — Port Colborne Welland Link Schedule and Route Map

7) RECOMMENDATION

That Chief Administrative Officer Report 2019-126, Subject: Transit Update be received
for information.

8) SIGNATURES

Prepared on July 31, 2019 and respectfully submitted by:

C. Scott Luey
Chief Administrative Officer

Chief Administrative Officer Report 2019-126 Page 3 of 3

49



f

Port Colborne Community Bus

ROUTE SCHEDULES

1- PORT COLBORNE EAST

Flag Stop Bus Rotute

7:00 am 7:11 am 7:17 am 7:22 am 7:27 am
8:00 am 8:11 am 8:17 am 8:22 am 8:27 am
9:00 am 9:11 am 9:17 am 9:22am  [9:27 am
E10:00 am 10:11 am 10:17 am 10:22 am 10:27 am
:r11:00 am 11:11 am 11:17 am 11:22 am 11:27 am
1:00 pm 1:11 pm 1:17pm  [1:22pm  [1:27pm
2:00 pm 2:11 pm 2:17 pm [2:22 pm 2:27 pm
3:00 pm 3:11 pm 3:17 pm 3:22pm  [3:27 pm
4:00 pm 4:11 pm 4:17 pm 4:22 pm 4:27 pm
5:00 pm 5:11 pm 517 pm 5:22 pm 5:27 pm

2 - PORT COLBORNE WEST

Flag Stop Bus Route

P,
[t

ne

Monday To Friday
7:30 am 7:37 am 7:42 am 7:50 am 7:57 am
8:30 am 8:37 am 8:42 am 8:50am  |8:57 am
9:30 am 9:37 am 9:42 am 9:50 am 9:57 am
'110:30 am 10:37 am 10:42 am 10:50 am 10:57 am
11:30 am [11:37 am 11:42 am 11:50am  [11:57 am
1:30 pm 1:37 pm 1:42 pm 1:50 pm  [1:57 pm
2:30 pm 2:37 pm 2:42 pm 2:50 pm 2:57 pm
3:30 pm 3:37 pm 3:42 pm 3:50 pm  3:57 pm
}4:30 pm 4:37 pm 4:42 pm 4:50 pm 4:57 pm
[5:30 pm 5:37 pm 5:42 pm 5:50 pm 5:57 pm

50



Flag Stop

You can board the bus by waving lo

‘ the bus driver as Ihe bus approaches.
A/ Look for this symbol which highlights
areas where Flag Slop is in effect.




WELLANDIIansi

GOING YOUR WAY

¢%) PORT COLBORNE LINK

Time of Day
Port Colborne
City Hall (Depart)
Welland DT
Terminal (Depart)
Port Colborne
City Hall (Arrive)

Welland DT
" Terminal (rrive)

MONDAY ATURDAY

6:30 | 7:00 | 7:00 | 7:30
<| 730 | 8:00 | 800 | 8:30
<! &30 | 9:00 | 900 | 930

9:30 | 10:00 | - -

12:30 1:00 1:00 1:30

1:30 2:00 2:00 2:30

2:30 | 3:00 & =
- 5 430 | 5:00

5:00 5:30 5:30 6:00
6:00 6:30 6:30 7:00

7:00 7:30 7:30 8:00*
*Travels to Canal Bank & Ontario Rd. then out of service.

N Flag Stop for Port Colborne only

‘You can board the bus by waving to the driver as the bus approaches,
Look for the waving hand symbol on the maps, which highlights areas
where Flag Stop is in effect.

S wEua)) |
-Nap B /f{ /
\5 s A B ivlalnst i
) j ,,n Bnnmtm {
mml [
o 'u"' ! We}fand 'i/ &
| Co g o)
.,,.@::z, 4 ‘/ -~
e W 1\% B ’: T
T Townline B = ;/ .
i L "
, ¢ ,
Tl S
q y
A /f Y

1 In d
£ | )
Erom wﬁ St
) J ",ﬁ"t | mm ﬂpm:.
= I S
Fﬂi“.L n"'* L ] i

Transat Informatlon:
905-735-1700 ext. 2291
www.welland.ca



Planning and Development Department
Planning Division

PORT COLBORNE

Report Number: 2019-122 Date: August 12, 2019

SUBJECT: Recommendation Report: Proposed Expansion of the Downtown
Central Business District Community Improvement Plan

1) PURPOSE:

The purpose of this report is to obtain Council's approval of the proposed expansion of
the project area for the Downtown Central Business District Community Improvement
Plan (CBD CIP) project area to include 176 Elm Street.

2) HISTORY, BACKGROUND, COUNCIL POLICY, PRACTICES

On July 22, 2019, Council received Planning and Development Department, Planning
Division Report 2019-115, a Public Meeting Report for a Proposed Amendment to the
CBD CIP that would include 176 Elm Street.

The statutory public meeting pursuant to Sections 17 and 28 of the Planning Act was
held on July 22, 2019 and the draft minutes of the meeting are attached hereto as
Appendix A.

An Open House was held on June 27, 2019 that was open to all members of the public.
3 people (Mike Smith, Nicholas Smith and Councillor Bagu) attended the Open House
and were supportive of the inclusion.

3) STAFF COMMENTS AND DISCUSSIONS

As no members of public submitted comments or spoke at the public meeting, staff can
provide the following review as it relates to the inclusion of 176 Elm Street:

* The rationale for needs: The existing building requires renovations/structural changes
to permit new residential units to be created.

* The goals of the existing CBD CIP: focus public attention on local priorities and
municipal initiatives; target areas in transition or in need of repair, rehabilitation and
redevelopment; facilitate and encourage community change in a coordinated manner;
and stimulate private sector investment through municipal incentive based programs.

» A description of the project area characteristics: Great physical form and setting,
relatively healthy downtown, connected grid pattern of streets, strong street presence of
buildings, good supply of parking, buildings in very good condition but lacking a high
quality visual character, worn building facades and signs, little visual interest along the
street, inconsistent and worn streetscape, and no strong first impression.

* Is the property near the CBD CIP project area? Yes, it is across the street from other
properties on the north side of Charlotte Street that are in the project area.

53



* Does it have potential for conversion to commercial or mixed use? Yes subject to a
zoning change new residential units can be permitted in addition to business office use.

* |Is it in need of improvement? The existing building requires renovations/structural
changes to permit new residential units to be created.

Therefore, based on the above, staff can support the inclusion of 176 Elm Street to the
Project Area for the CBD CIP.

4) OPTIONS AND FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS:

a) Do nothing.

Council can choose to do nothing and not leave the Project Area CBD CIP as is.
b) Other Options

Council can request further justification be completed.

5) COMPLIANCE WITH STRATEGIC PLAN INITIATIVES

Not applicable.

6) ATTACHMENTS

Appendix A: Draft Public Meeting Minutes
Appendix B: Proposed CBD CIP Project Area

7) RECOMMNDATION

That the expansion of the project area for the Downtown Central Business District
Community Improvement to include 176 EIm Street, be approved.

8)  SIGNATURES

Prepared on July 23, 2019 by: Reviewed and respectfully submitted by:

pRquilina, MCIP, RPP, CPT C. Scott Luey
Director of Planning and Development Chief Administrative Officer

Planning and Development Department, Planning Division Report 2019-122 Page 2 of 2

54



City of Port Colborne
Special Council Meeting 20-19

Minutes
Date: July 22, 2019
Time: 6:30 p.m.
Place: Council Chambers, Municipal Offices, 66 Charlotte Street, Port Colborne

Members Present: M. Bagu, Councillor
E. Beauregard, Councillor
G. Bruno, Councillor
R. Bodner, Councillor
F. Danch, Councillor
A. Desmarais, Councillor
D. Kalailieff, Councillor
W. Steele, Mayor (presiding officer)
H. Wells, Councillor

Staff Present: D. Aquilina, Director of Planning & Development
B. Garrett, Director of Corporate Services
A. LaPointe, Manager of Legislative Services/City Clerk
C. Lee, Director of Engineering & Operations
S. Luey, Chief Administrative Officer
H. Mahon, Planning Technician/Clerk (minutes)

Also in attendance were interested citizens, members of the news media and WeeStreem.
1. Call to Order:
Mayor Steele called the meeting to order.

2. National Anthem:

Those in attendance stood for O Canada.

3. Confirmation of Agenda:

No. Moved by Councillor Wells
Seconded by Councillor Bruno

That the agenda dated July 22, 2019 be confirmed, as circulated or as amended.
CARRIED.

55



Minutes — Special Council Meeting 20-19 Page 2 of 4

4.,

Disclosures of Interest:

Nil.

Public Hearing Under the Planning Act:

Planning and Development Department, Planning division, Report No. 2019-115,
Public Meeting Report for Proposes Amendment to include 176 Elm Street to the
Downtown Central Business District Community Improvement Plan (CBD CIP)
Project

()

ii)

Purpose of Meeting:

Dan Aquilina advised that the purpose of this meeting, pursuant to Sections 17 &
28 of the Planning Act, is to present a proposed expansion to the Downtown Central
Business District Community Improvement Plan.

Method of Notice

Mr. Aquilina advised that Notice of the Public Meeting was administered in
accordance with Section 17(15) and 22(1) of the Planning Act as amended,
Section 3 of Ontario Regulation 543/06.

The Notice of Public Meeting was published in the Thursday June 20, 2019
edition of Niagara This Week. No written comments were received. Mr. Aquilina
also advised that a Public Open House had been held on June 27 where a total
of 3 people attended. Two of whom were the owners of the property and the
third person being Councillor Bagu.

Explanation of Procedure

Mr. Aquilina advised that the procedure to be followed this evening will be to
present Planning and Development Services Department Report 2019-115, to
hear any comments from Council to Planning Staff, to open the meeting to the
public for comments and/or questions, and to announce the requirements of the
Planning Act for written notice request of passage of the proposed addition to the
Community Improvement Plan.

Presentation of the Community Improvement Plan

Mr. Aquilina provided some background information and made reference to the
Power Point presentation which identified the proposed expansion to include 176
Elm Street.

Mr. Aquilina noted that the Downtown Central Business District Community
Improvement Plan (CBD CIP)was adopted in 2010. Prior to the adoption, the CBD
CIP project area was approved in 2009 by By-law. In 2011 the CBD CIP was
expanded to the northerly intersection of Sugarloaf Street and included the block
of properties bounded by Kent and Victoria streets on the east side of King Street.

56



Minutes — Special Council Meeting 20-19 Page 3 of 4
The expansion included to the south side of Princess Street between EIm Street
and Fielden Avenue.

Mr. Aquilina noted that the CBD CIP has been the most successful to date of all

the CIP's. There has been considerable investment made by the property owners
which has resulted in significant facade improvements.

V) Questions of Clarification to Planning Staff/Consultant
Nil.

vi) Oral Presentations and/or Questions from the Public
Nil.

vii)  Announcement Respecting Written Notice of the expansion of the
Community Improvement Plan

Mr. Aquilina advised that if anyone wishes “to be notified of the adoption
of the proposed Community Improvement Plan they must make a written
request to the clerk. Only those persons and public bodies that give the
clerk a written request for the adoption by-law will be given notice.”

viii)  Explanation of Future Meetings

Mr. Aquilina advised that this concludes the Statutory Public Hearing,
held pursuant to Sections 17 and 28 of the Planning Act. The proposal
will be placed on the August 12, 2019 Council Meeting for Council's
consideration.

6. Adjournment:

No.  Moved by Councillor Bodner
Seconded by Councillor Beauregard

That the Council meeting be adjourned at approximately 6:40 p.m.

CARRIED.
William C. Steele Amber LaPointe
Mayor City Clerk

Minutes prepared by the Department of Planning and Development.

57



Minutes — Special Council Meeting 20-19

fhm

Page 4 of 4

58



LLCLEEL ]

FIELDEN AVE

l

CITY

2>  FOGHORN LANEWAY

SH ST

HORN LANE

CITY RAIL LINE

ELM ST

EL

*,é Proposed CBD CIP PROJECT AREA
%
g
S
<
(8]
KENT ST
% VICTORIA ST
% ADELAIDE ST
& B
- g
SUGARLOAF ST
" I'—T_]_r—r_.—\ —

59



This page intentionally left blank.

60



Planning and Development Department
Planning Division

PORT COLBORNE
Report Number: 2019-123 Date: August 12, 2019

SUBJECT: Environmental Advisory Committee Memorandum on the Vale-
Community-Based Action Plan

1)  PURPOSE:

The purpose of the report is to provide Council with information on the review of the
Environmental Advisory Committee Memorandum on the Vale Community-Based Action
Plan and a recommendation.

2) HISTORY, BACKGROUND, COUNCIL POLICY, PRACTICES

On July 22, 2019, the following Memorandum from the Environmental Advisory
Committee, Re: Vale Community-Based Action Plan was received by Council:

“That Council supports the recommendation of the Environmental Advisory Committee
as follows; That whereas Vale and the Ministry of the Environment, Conservation and
Parks (MECP) disagree on the application of Ontario Regulation 153/04 to lands where
Vale's proposed action plan applies and this may have profound implications where
landowners apply to develop their lands, and; The Port Colborne Environmental
Advisory Committee, therefore, recommends to Council that staff be directed to
examine the additional planning and design requirements, if any, where applications for
approval under the Planning Act are concerned in the area to which the Vale's action
plan applies. The review should determine what additional investigations and potential
remedial actions the Region of Niagara, the Regional Health Department or its
successor, and the MECP may require during the review of planning applications when
a landowner makes application under the Planning Act to develop their lands. This
review should also include comments from each of Regional Planning and Public Health
staff and the MECP as to what their requirements may be and where they could apply
these, if any are required, be supported, and that the Region be so notified.”

Community Based Risk Assessment (CBRA) History

In 2000, based on historic emissions (1914-1984) from Inco (now Vale), and at the
request of the Ministry of Environment (MOE, now MECP), Vale and the City agreed to
a CBRA process based on the Site Specific Risk Assessment Process described in the
MOE's “Guidelines for Use at Contaminated Sites in Ontario.” On October 1, 2004, the
Guideline was replaced by Ontario Regulation 153/04 (Records of Site Condition).

It was agreed upon, through a “Scope of Work”, that the CBRA process would be
carried out to determine the potential risk associated with elevated levels of nickel,
copper, cobalt and arsenic (the chemicals of concerns - CoCs) in soil to human health,
agricultural crops and the natural environment. The CBRA would derive what levels of
CoCs found in Port Colborne soils would be considered safe for human health,
agricultural crops and the natural environment. The CBRA would also address
remediation measures where required.

61



As part of the process, Council approved a Terms of Reference and authorized the
creation of a volunteer Public Liaison Committee (PLC). Council also engaged the
services of an independent consultant to provide professional services to the PLC and
City. An arrangement was made so that Vale would pay for all professional services of
the independent consultant at no cost to the City.

3) STAFF COMMENTS AND DISCUSSIONS

The CBRA has been a very lengthy process (19 years) that has involved members of
the community, consultants, health care professionals, scientists, doctors, professors,
various stakeholders, government agencies and employees. Given the amount of
scientific research, analysis, complexities, technical matters, studies and peer reviews,
the CBRA process has taken considerable time to complete. The MECP reported that
in 2010 there were 231 public meetings covering more than 1,200 hours of public
consultation.

Numerous studies, risk assessments and reports have been prepared by Vale's
consultants to determine potential risks under the CBRA. Three major studies were
completed as part of the CBRA by Vale, namely: a Human Health Risk Assessment
(HHRA) at 20,000 parts per million (ppm), Ecological Risk Assessments (ERA) for
Crops at 750-2300 ppm and the Natural Environment at 3000-3500 ppm. Other studies
included a Community Health Monitoring Study (CHAP). A Technical Subcommittee
(TSC) undertook the task to review technical matters to the PLC and experts (ECA)
from the University of Toronto were involved in reviewing components of the CHAP
study. An Integration Report was also completed by Vale to conclude Phase 1 of the
CBRA and to address how remediation (Phase 2) would occur on a site by site basis.
The Independent Consultant provided the PLC with technical review of Vale's reports.
The Independent Consultant (Watters Environmental) prepared reports of their review
and were forwarded to the MOE by the City.

On July 8, 2010, the PLC concluded its work under the CBRA and submitted the “The
Final Public Liaison Committee Report on the Port Colborne Community Based Risk
Assessment” to the MOE. The report remains at the City’s Public Library. As previously
reported to Council, members of the PLC, Harry Wells - Chairman (now Councillor),
Vivian Moskalyk and Rosemari Poission are commended for their commitment to the
CBRA.

Current CBRA Process

On June 10, 2019, Vale presented to City Council their Port Colborne Community-
Based Action Plan. In reviewing their presentation, and the Ministry of the Environment,
Conservation and Parks (MECP) comments, there appears to no disagreement on the
application of Ontario Regulation 153/04.

Upon review of Vale’'s Community-Based Action Plan, its objective is to present a
general outline on steps necessary and scientific foundations of the CBRA to conclude
that there are no unacceptable health risks to individuals living in Port Colborne as a
result of historical emissions of nickel, copper and cobalt.

Planning and Development Department, Planning Division Report 2019-123 Page 2 of 4

62



It indicates their results of the CBRA process and that information was gathered through
consultation with the MECP that helped guide the development of their framework. In
short, Vale’s goal is to reach a positive conclusion to the CBRA process.

Vale acknowledges that it is presenting a compromise position on a without prejudice
basis to the MECP in an effort to resolve differing points of view on both regulatory
matters and matters of science. Therefore, comments from the MECP are essential for
the City and current and future landowners as it relates to the safe soil levels of the
CBRA CoCs and levels for use in Ontario Regulation 153/04.

Staff recently met with George McKibbon, an Environmental Advisory Committee (EAC)
member, to provide clarity on their concemn to Council. Mr. McKibbon acknowledged
that there was no disagreement per se but rather the EAC’s concern centred around the
fact that the CBRA never concluded with what level of contaminants found in soils were
considered safe, that transfer of cleanup responsibility rests with the landowners when

they make planning applications and to what level as the MECP has never provided that
in writing.

In conclusion and review of the above, the recommendation below will provide the City
and current and future landowners where the MECP stands on matters relative to the
CBRA and Ontario Regulation 153/04.

'4) OPTIONS AND FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS

a) Do Nothing

N/A

b) Other Options

N/A

5) COMPLIANCE WITH STRATEGIC PLAN INITIATIVES

N/A

6) ATTACHMENTS

N/A

7) RECOMMNDATION

That the Director of Planning and Development be directed to send a letter to the
Ministry of the Environment, Conservation and Parks requesting clarification with

respect to the safe soil levels of the Port Colborne Community Based Risk Assessment
Chemicals of Concern and levels for use in Ontario Regulation 153/04.

Planning and Development Department, Planning Division Report 2019-123 Page 3 of 4

63



8) SIGNATURES

Prepared on July 31, 2019 by: Reviewed and respectfully submitted by:

C. Scott Luey
i 7 i ini i icer
Director of Planning and Development Chief Administrative Offic
Planning and Development Department, Planning Division Report 2019-123 Page 4 of 4

64



- po Planning and Development Department
PORT COLBORNE Planning Division
Report Number: 2019-127 Date: August 12, 2019

SUBJECT: Proposed Development Agreements for Lawrence Barnai, 1628 Minor
Road

1)  PURPOSE:

This report has been prepared to recommend Council's approval to enter into a
development agreement with Lawrence Barnai to ensure future development on Mr.
Barnai's property on the Minor Road is completed in accordance with requirements of
the Regional Municipality of Niagara (Region). A development agreement is a legal
undertaking between the City and the other signing parties that work will be completed
in a certain fashion or timeframe. Development agreements are registered on title for
the property in perpetuity to ensure compliance.

2) HISTORY, BACKGROUND, COUNCIL POLICY, PRACTICES

Lawrence Barnai obtained two consents to sever property on Minor Road from the
Committee of Adjustment in applications B13-18-PC and B14-18-PC (Notices of
Decision attached as Appendix A). One of the conditions that Mr. Barnai must clear
before the severances are given final certification is “enter into a development
agreement with the City of Port Colborne prior to any construction or site alteration, to
address the Region’s concerns”. The Region’s request for a development agreement
will address a tree savings plan to demonstrate that building envelopes will be focused
on areas outside of the woodland, the design of the new lots to ensure that they
incorporate all mitigation measures, design of the new dwelling to mitigate impacts of
light spillage, and cisterns and septic systems on the lots and the type of septic systems
that must be installed on the lots.

3) STAFF COMMENTS AND DISCUSSIONS

Staff have prepared the draft development agreements (Appendix B). Staff
recommends that Council approve these development agreements.

4) OPTIONS AND FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS:

a) Do Nothing

This option is not recommended as it would negatively impact development of Lawrence
Barnai's property at 1628 Minor Road.

b) Other Options

That Council accepts this report as information and not take any further action at this
time. This option is not recommended as it would negatively impact development of
Lawrence Barnai's property at 1628 Minor Road.

65



5) COMPLIANCE WITH STRATEGIC PLAN INITIATIVES

N/A
6) ATTACHMENTS

Appendix A Committee of Adjustment Notice of Decision for B13-18-PC and
B14-18-PC
Appendix B Draft Development Agreements

7) RECOMMENDATION

That two development agreements be entered into with Lawrence Barnai for 1628 Minor
Road and that the Mayor and Clerk be authorized to sign and execute said agreements.

8) SIGNATURES

Prepared on August 2nd, 2019 by: Reviewed by:
7 ‘ |
N T
(Mo T2 Hafsdn, CPSO
Evan Acs, MA, MSc Acting Director of Planning and Development
Planning

Reviewed and respecitfully submitted by:

C. Scott Cuey
Chief Administrative Officer

Planning and Development Department, Planning Division Report 2019-127 Page 2 of 2

66



( 4R CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF PORT COLBORNE
o NOTICE OF DECISION
PORT COLBORNE COMMITTEE OF ADJUSTMENT

Application B13-18-PC December 13, 2018
IN THE MATTER OF The Planning Act, R.S.0., 1990, Chapter P13, Section 53(1);

AND IN THE MATTER OF the property legally known as Part of Lot 33, Concession 2, former Township of

Humberstone; now in the City of Port Colborne, Regional Municipality of Niagara; municipally known as 1628 Minor
Road.

AND IN THE MATTER OF AN APPLICATION by the owner Lawrence Barnai for a severance under Section 53(1)
of the Planning Act, R.S.0. 1990, Chapter P. 13, so as to permit the conveyance of Part 1 having a lot frontage of
68.58m (225ft) with a total lot area of 1.045 ha (2.58ac) for a proposed residential use. Part 3 will retain a lot
frontage of 357.44m (1172.70ft) on Minor Road with a |ot area of 18.76%ha (46.37ac) for an existing residential and
agricultural use.

That application B13-18-PC be GRANTED subject to the following conditions:

1. That the applicant enter into a Development Agreement with the City of Port Colborne to require the completion
of a tree savings plan, implementation of mitigation measures, restriction on light spillage on to woodlands and
installation of a tertiary septic system, as specified in correspondence from the Niagara Region dated December
11,2018 referencing files D.06.07.CS-18-069 and D.06.07.CS-18-070.

2. That a drainage apportionment agreement be completed by the City's Drainage Superintendent or by an
approved engineer at the cost of the applicant.

3, That the owner submit a letter to the City indicating that (s)he is aware of the requirements of By-law
4748/130/05 which requires the collection of the parkland dedication at the time of the building permit
application based on the value of the property the day before issuance of the permit and that (s)he will advise
any future purchasers of this requirement.

4, That the applicant provides the Secretary-Treasurer with the deeds in triplicate for conveyance of the subject
parcel or a registrable legal description of the subject parcel, together with a copy of the deposited reference
plan, if applicable, for use in the issuance of the Certificate of Consent.

5. That a final certification fee of $200 payable to the City of Port Colborne be submitted to the Secretary-
Treasurer.

For the following reasons:

1. The application conforms to the palicies of the Official Plan and will comply with the provisions of Zoning By-law
6575/30/81, as amended.

2. This decision is rendered having regard to the provisions of subsection 51(24) of the Planning Act, R.S.0. 1990,

c.P.13. S o :
FINAL AND BINDING
DATED AT PORT COLBORNE this 11th day of December, 2018.
y H_.__‘_Ln/lffz?z_df_”/c—/_ e e
DECISIONS SIGNED: SECRETARY-TREASURER
“Dan O'Hara" “Bill Steele” "Bea Kenny" “Yvon Doucet"
Signature of Signature of Signature of Signature of Member Signature of
Member of Member of Member of Committee Member of
Committee Committee of Committee Committee

CERTIFIED & TRUE CQPY
Y )

SECHETARY.TREASURER

67



k \ CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF PORT COLBORNE
L NOTICE OF DECISION
PORT COLBORNE COMMITTEE OF ADJUSTMENT

Application B14-18-PC December 13, 2018

IN THE MATTER OF The Planning Act, R.S.0., 1990, Chapter P13, Section 53(1);

AND IN THE MATTER OF the property legally known as Part of Lot 33, Concession 2, former Township of
Humberstone; now in the City of Port Colborne, Regional Municipality of Niagara; municipally known as 1628
Minor Road.

AND IN THE MATTER OF AN APPLICATION by the owner Lawrence Barnai for a severance under
Section 53(1) of the Planning Act, R.S.0. 1990, Chapter P. 13, so as to permit the conveyance of Part 2
having a lot frontage of 68.58m (225ft) with a total lot area of 1.045 ha (2.58ac) for a proposed residential
use, Part 3 will retain a lot frontage of 357.44m (1172.70ft) on Minor Road with a lot area of 18.769ha
(46.37ac) for an existing residential and agricultural use.

That application B14-18-PC be GRANTED subject to the following conditions:

1. That the applicant enter into a Development Agreement with the City of Port Colborne to require the
completion of a tree savings plan, implementation of mitigation measures, restriction on light spillage
on to woodlands and installation of a tertiary septic system, as specified in correspondence from the
Niagara Region dated December 11,2018 referencing files D.06.07.CS-18-069 and D.06.07.CS-18-
070.

2, That a drainage apportionment agreement be completed by the City's Drainage Superintendent or by
an approved engineer at the cost of the applicant.

3. That the owner submit a letter to the City indicating that (s)he is aware of the requirements of By-law
4748/130/05 which requires the collection of the parkland dedication at the time of the building permit
application based on the value of the property the day before issuance of the permit and that (s)he will
advise any future purchasers of this requirement.

4, That the applicant provides the Secretary-Treasurer with the deeds in triplicate for conveyance of the
subject parcel or a registrable legal description of the subject parcel, together with a copy of the
deposited reference plan, if applicable, for use in the issuance of the Certificate of Consent.

5, That a final certification fee of $200 payable to the City of Port Colborne be submitted to the
Secretary-Treasurer. FINAL AND BINDIM G

For the following reasons: ~ -/K_Z%[_L«CJ/WL‘
SEGRETARY-TREASURER
1. The application conforms to the policies of the Official Plan and will comply with the provisions of
Zoning By-law 6575/30/81, as amended.

2. This decision is rendered having regard to the provisions of subsection 51(24) of the Planning Act,
R.S.0. 1990, ¢.P.13. CERTIFIEL A TRUE COPY

DATED AT PORT COLBORNE this 11th day of December, 2018. i’% o 2ms
) — it L KA
DECISIONS SIGNED: S —.Cf?é Pt T??m”
‘Dan O'Hara" “Bill Steele” ‘Bea Kenny” “Yvon Doucet”
Signature of Signature of Signature of Signature of Member Signature of
Member of Member of Member of Committee Member of
Committee Committee of Committee Committee

68



CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF PORT COLBORNE
. NOTICE OF DECISION
PORT COLBORNE COMMITTEE OF ADJUSTMENT

Application B13-18-PC December 13, 2018
IN THE MATTER OF The Planning Act, R.S.0., 1990, Chapter P13, Section 53(1);

AND IN THE MATTER OF the property legally known as Part of Lot 33, Concession 2, former Township of
Humberstone; now in the City of Port Colborne, Regional Municipality of Niagara; municipally known as 1628 Minor
Road.

AND IN THE MATTER OF AN APPLICATION by the owner Lawrence Barnai for a severance under Section 53(1)
of the Planning Act, R.S.0. 1990, Chapter P. 13, so as to permit the conveyance of Part 1 having a lot frontage of
68.58m (225ft) with a total lot area of 1.045 ha (2.58ac) for a proposed residential use. Part 3 will retain a lot
frontage of 357.44m (1172.70ft) on Minor Road with a lot area of 18.769ha (46.37ac) for an existing residential and
agricultural use.

That application B13-18-PC be GRANTED subject to the following conditions:

1 That the applicant enter into a Development Agreement with the City of Port Colborne to require the completion
of a tree savings plan, implementation of mitigation measures, restriction on light spillage on to woodlands and
installation of a tertiary septic system, as specified in correspondence from the Niagara Region dated December
11,2018 referencing files D.06.07.CS-18-069 and D.06.07.CS-18-070.

2. That a drainage apportionment agreement be completed by the City's Drainage Superintendent or by an
approved engineer at the cost of the applicant.

3. That the owner submit a letter to the City indicating that (s)he is aware of the requirements of By-law
4748/130/05 which requires the collection of the parkland dedication at the time of the building permit
application based on the value of the property the day before issuance of the permit and that (s)he will advise
any future purchasers of this requirement.

4, That the applicant provides the Secretary-Treasurer with the deeds in triplicate for conveyance of the subject
parcel or a registrable legal description of the subject parcel, together with a copy of the deposited reference
plan, if applicable, for use in the issuance of the Certificate of Consent.

5, That a final certification fee of $200 payable to the City of Port Colborne be submitted to the Secretary-
Treasurer.

For the following reasons:

1. The application conforms to the policies of the Official Plan and will comply with the provisions of Zoning By-law
6575/30/81, as amended.

2. This decision is rendered having regard to the provisions of subsection 51(24) of the Planning Act, R.S.0. 1990,

c.P.13. i 2 o
FINAL AND BINDIMNG
DATED AT PORT COLBORNE this 11th day of December, 2018. :
M Madex .
DECISIONS SIGNED: SECRETARY-TREASURER
‘Dan O'Hara" “Bill Steele” "Bea Kenny” “Yvon Doucet"
Signature of Signature of Signature of Signature of Member Signature of
Member of Member of Member of Committee Member of
Committee Committee of Committee Committee

CERTIFIED A TRUE COPY
L Mg der

SECRETARY-TREASURER

69



CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF PORT COLBORNE
NOTICE OF DECISION
PORT COLBORNE COMMITTEE OF ADJUSTMENT

4 ‘

Application B14-18-PC December 13, 2018

IN THE MATTER OF The Planning Act, R.S.0., 1990, Chapter P13, Section 53(1);

AND IN THE MATTER OF the property legally known as Part of Lot 33, Concession 2, former Township of
Humberstone; now in the City of Port Colborne, Regional Municipality of Niagara; municipally known as 1628
Minor Road.

AND IN THE MATTER OF AN APPLICATION by the owner Lawrence Barnai for a severance under
Section 53(1) of the Planning Act, R.S.0. 1990, Chapter P. 13, so as to permit the conveyance of Part 2
having a lot frontage of 68.58m (225ft) with a total lot area of 1.045 ha (2.58ac) for a proposed residential
use. Part 3 will retain a lot frontage of 357.44m (1172.70ft) on Minor Road with a lot area of 18.76%ha
(46.37ac) for an existing residential and agricultural use.

That application B14-18-PC be GRANTED subject to the following conditions:

1 That the applicant enter into a Development Agreement with the City of Port Colborne to require the
completion of a tree savings plan, implementation of mitigation measures, restriction on light spillage
on to woodlands and installation of a tertiary septic system, as specified in correspondence from the
Niagara Region dated December 11,2018 referencing files D.06.07.CS-18-069 and D.08.07.CS-18-
070.

2 That a drainage apportionment agreement be completed by the City's Drainage Superintendent or by
an approved engineer at the cost of the applicant.

3. That the owner submit a letter to the City indicating that (s)he is aware of the requirements of By-law
4748/130/05 which requires the collection of the parkland dedication at the time of the building permit
application based on the value of the property the day before issuance of the permit and that (s)he will
advise any future purchasers of this requirement.

4, That the applicant provides the Secretary-Treasurer with the deeds in triplicate for conveyance of the
subject parcel or a registrable legal description of the subject parcel, together with a copy of the
deposited reference plan, if applicable, for use in the issuance of the Certificate of Consent.

9 That a final certification fee of $200 payable to the City of Port Colborne be submitted to the
Secretary-Treasurer. FINAL AND BINDING

For the following reasons: _Mﬁ. v A

SECRETARY.TREASUREH
1. The application conforms to the policies of the Official Plan and will comply with the provisions of
Zoning By-law 6575/30/81, as amended.

2. This decision is rendered having regard to the provisions of subsection 51(24) of the Planning Act,
R.S.0. 1990, c.P.13. "::EF'TETH"'; £ 3 TRUE COPY

DATED AT PORT COLBORNE this 11th day of December, 2018. ;4 yry.
DECISIONS SIGNED: s’—c.?’:,l?":@; T TREASURER
"Dan O'Hara" "Bill Steele" ‘Bea Kenny” “Yvon Doucet”
Signature of Signature of Signature of Signature of Member Signature of
Member of Member of Member of Committee Member of
Committee Committee of Committee Committee

70



THIS DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT made this day of ,2019.

BETWEEN:

LAWRENCE BARNAI
hereinafter referred to as the "OWNER?”;

and

THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF PORT COLBORNE
hereinafter referred to as the “CITY”;

WHEREAS the Owner desires to develop the lands described in Schedule “A" attached
hereto (hereinafter referred to as the “Lands”);

AND WHEREAS on December 11, 2018 the Committee of Adjustment for the City
approved the creation of one residential building lot (Application B14-18-PC);

AND WHEREAS the Regional Municipality of Niagara (hereinafter referred to as the
"Region”) requires a Development Agreement between the Owner and the City regarding
specific conditions and processes to be followed during development of the Lands;

NOW THEREFORE the parties hereto agree as follows:

1. The Owner hereby warrants that it is the registered Owner of the Lands described
in Schedule “A” to this Development Agreement.

2. The Owner agrees that upon the execution of this Development Agreement, the
Lands shall be charged with the performance of the terms of this Development
Agreement and that the performance of such terms shall be binding upon the
Owner, its executors, administrators, successors, assigns, heirs, and successors
in title.

3. The Owner shall indemnify and save harmless the City from and against all
actions, causes of action, interest, claims, demands, costs, charges, damages,
expenses, and loss, which the City may at any time bear, incur, be liable for,
sustain or be put to for any reason of, or on account of, or by reason of, or in
consequence of, the City, as the case may be, entering into this Development
Agreement.

4. The Owner shall undertake or implement all requirements in Paragraphs 5, 6, 7
and 8 of this agreement prior to any tree removal, construction or site alteration to
the satisfaction of the Regional Municipality of Niagara.

5. A Tree Savings Plan is to be completed in accordance with definition 1.36 of the
Niagara Region Tree and Forest Conservation Bylaw (By-law No. 30-2008) and
approved by Niagara Region. The Plan shall demonstrate that building envelopes
will be focused on areas outside of the woodland, where possible. This is to be
done in conjunction with the site plan and grading plan.

6. The design of the new lots shall incorporate all Mitigation Measures identified in
section 7.0 (page 22) of the Environmental Impact Study (EIS) prepared by Colville
Consulting Inc., dated October 2018 onto all applicable plans and drawings.

y In addition to the Mitigation Measures identified in the EIS by Coleville Consulting,
the design of the new dwellings shall mitigate any impacts of light spillage on the
woodland through design of exterior lighting that is shielded to project light

71



downward instead of skyward.

8. All new lots shall include a tertiary septic system for denitrification and water supply
by cistern.

9. The Owner agrees and acknowledges that the City shall register this Development
Agreement on title to the Lands and that such registration may only be removed
with the written consent of the City and the Region.

SIGNED, SEALED & DELIVERED
IN THE PRESENCE OF:
OWNER

Lawrence Barnai

THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY
OF PORT COLBORNE

William C Steele, Mayor

Amber LaPointe, Clerk



SCHEDULE “A” = THE LANDS

Part 2 on Plan 59R-16444

On the West Side of Minor Road

In the City of Port Colborne

In the Regional Municipality of Niagara

73



THIS DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT made this day of , 2019.

BETWEEN:

LAWRENCE BARNAI

hereinafter referred to as the "OWNER”;
and

THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF PORT COLBORNE
hereinafter referred to as the "CITY"™;

WHEREAS the Owner desires to develop the lands described in Schedule “A" attached
hereto (hereinafter referred to as the “Lands”);

AND WHEREAS on December 11, 2018 the Committee of Adjustment for the City
approved the creation of one residential building lot (Application B13-18-PC);

AND WHEREAS the Regional Municipality of Niagara (hereinafter referred to as the
"Region”) requires a Development Agreement between the Owner and the City regarding
specific conditions and processes to be followed during development of the Lands;

NOW THEREFORE the parties hereto agree as follows:

1. The Owner hereby warrants that it is the registered Owner of the Lands described
in Schedule "A” to this Development Agreement.

2 The Owner agrees that upon the execution of this Development Agreement, the
Lands shall be charged with the performance of the terms of this Development
Agreement and that the performance of such terms shall be binding upon the
Owner, its executors, administrators, successors, assigns, heirs, and successors
in title.

3 The Owner shall indemnify and save harmless the City from and against all
actions, causes of action, interest, claims, demands, costs, charges, damages,
expenses, and loss, which the City may at any time bear, incur, be liable for,
sustain or be put to for any reason of, or on account of, or by reason of, or in
consequence of, the City, as the case may be, entering into this Development
Agreement.

4. The Owner shall undertake or implement all requirements in Paragraphs 5, 6, 7
and 8 of this agreement prior to any tree removal, construction or site alteration to
the satisfaction of the Regional Municipality of Niagara.

B A Tree Savings Plan is to be completed in accordance with definition 1.36 of the
Niagara Region Tree and Forest Conservation Bylaw (By-law No. 30-2008) and
approved by Niagara Region. The Plan shall demonstrate that building envelopes
will be focused on areas outside of the woodland, where possible. This is to be
done in conjunction with the site plan and grading plan.

6. The design of the new lots shall incorporate all Mitigation Measures identified in
section 7.0 (page 22) of the Environmental Impact Study (EIS) prepared by Colville
Consulting Inc., dated October 2018 onto all applicable plans and drawings.

i3 In addition to the Mitigation Measures identified in the EIS by Coleville Consulting,
the design of the new dwellings shall mitigate any impacts of light spillage on the
woodland through design of exterior lighting that is shielded to project light

74



downward instead of skyward.

8. All new lots shall include a tertiary septic system for denitrification and water supply
by cistern.
9. The Owner agrees and acknowledges that the City shall register this Development

Agreement on fitle to the Lands and that such registration may only be removed
with the written consent of the City and the Region.

SIGNED, SEALED & DELIVERED
IN THE PRESENCE OF:
OWNER

Lawrence Barnai

THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY
OF PORT COLBORNE

William C Steele, Mayor

Amber LaPointe, Clerk



SCHEDULE “A” — THE LANDS

Part 1 on Plan 59R-16444

On the West Side of Minor Road

In the City of Port Colbome

In the Regional Municipality of Niagara

76



AN MEMORANDUM
PORT COLBORNE
MAYOR'’S OFFICE 905-835-2900 Ext. 301
TO: Members of Port Colborne City Council
FROM: Nancy Giles, EA to CAO and Mayor and Staff Liaison to the Grant Policy Committee
DATE: August 1, 2019
RE: Recommendations of Grant Policy Committee

The Grant Policy Committee met to review applications for the second intake of 2019. In accordance with
Section 4.3(e) — "During a regular meeting of the Corporation, Council will approve all final
recommendations,” we bring forward the following recommendations for consideration by Council.

Moved by G. Bruno
Seconded by B. Haymes

That donation/sponsorship requests be approved for a total of $10,325 for the second allocation for the
year 2019 as follows:

Community Living Port Colborne Wainfleet — to provide financial assistance to the children of
Port Colborne who are unable to register for recreation programs due to lack of funds - $1,700

Friends of Port Colborne Lighthouses — to assist with the cost of insurance to allow tours of the
Port Colborne Lighthouses - $1,400

Friends of Roselawn Centre — to assist with the cost of purchasing a new stove for the Roselawn
Centre - $1,200 (Note: these funds will only be disbursed if the City proceeds with the project)

Niagara Nutrition Partners - to assist with the purchase of food to run the nutrition programs in
Port Colborne schools - $2,500

Port Colborne Fair Trade Town Committee — to purchase a new banner, advertising and printing
for the Fair Trade Crawl and a 10 year celebration cake - $725

Port Colborne Historical & Marine Museum Auxiliary - to assist with renovations to Arabella’s
Tea Room - $2,800

Respectfully submitted.

77



This page intentionally left blank.

78



PORT COLBORNE GIRLS HOCKEY ASSOCIATION
PORT COLBORNE WAVE

City of Port Colborne
66 Charlotte Street,
Port Colborne
Ontario, L3K 3C8

To: Mayor and City Councillors

Friday, August 30" will be a significant day in Port Colborne as we will be hosting a hockey
ga*i!ne between the Niagara Ice Dogs and the Barrie Colts. This will be the first Major Junior
Hockey game in Port Colborne since the late 60s. We ask the Mayor and the City Council to
declare Friday, August 30, 2019 as “Niagara Ice Dogs Day in Port Colborne.” Along with the
game, there will be a Free Skate, Free Swim and the chance for people to learn on to play
Sledge Hockey. Prior to the game, there will be a free concert at the Vale Centre with the

“Rock of 80s” band.

It is significant that we put on a great show for all those who will be attending from near and
far. It will be the first exposure to many to the Vale Centre and to the City of Port Colborne. It
is anticipated that this event will be a sell out and we are hoping the Ice Dogs will see the
effort that we have put into this event, so that they will want to come back in future.

Thank you for your consideration.

CITY OF PORT COLBORNE

Bryan Elliott RECEI‘."ED

Ice Dogs Game Coordinator

JUN 14 2019

CHIEF ADMINISTRATOR'S
OFFICE




This page intentionally left blank.

80



Rankin Construction Inc.

CONTRACTORS & ENGINEERS

it o
RECERED

JUL 25 2019
Rankin Construction Inc. CORPORATE SERVICES
222 Martindale Rd. DERARTNENT
St. Catharines, Ontario
L2R 7A3
June 18, 2019
Members of Council
City of Port Colborne
66 Charlotte Street

Port Colborne, ON L3K 3C8

Dear Members of Council:

Re: Peer Review for Port Colborne Quarries Site Alteration Permit

On behalf of Rankin Construction Inc., the parent company of Port Colborne Quarries Inc. (PCQ),
I would like Council to know that we have been reflecting on concerns raised by some members
of the community regarding our rehabilitation plan for Pit One at the quarry and as a result have
initiated a series of steps to ensure that the community’s concerns are addressed.

We have developed several pieces of information for councillors and residents to further
understand the quarry rehabilitation efforts. This includes an information brochure to be delivered
to residents, a Frequently Asked Questions document, and a publicly accessible website with

resources like:
e Rehabilitation project background

e Government of Ontario resources on:
o Management of Excess Soil — A Guide for Best Management Practices
o Soil, ground water and sediment standards for use under Part XV.1 of the
Environmental Protection Act
o Aggregate resources — How to Rehabilitate Pits and Quarries
o Importation of Inert Fill for the Purpose of Remediation
e Expert third-party rehabilitation assessments from IBI Group and Golder
Associates Inc.
o The list of Frequently Asked Questions about the project

The website can be found at hitp://www.portcolbornequarries.ca/

As well, we understand the report that was to go to Council June 24, 2019 will be deferred pending
a peer review of all relevant documents related to the rehabilitation program. We welcome
Council’s motion to engage an independent qualified consultant to perform a peer review of our
site alteration permit application and supporting consultants® studies.

81



As an organization committed to environmental stewardship, professionalism and a genuine spirit
of community involvement, in working with all stakeholders, we want to ensure that you and your
constituents have confidence in our rehabilitation plans for Pit One.

We trust that the matrix scoring developed to choose the qualified consultant to conduct the peer
review will be appropriately weighted toward related experience and professional qualifications
and that it will carry no bias or conflict of interest. I am sure you agree that ensuring confidence
from all parties, including Rankin Construction, in the peer review process will help ensure an
outcome we can all support. With this in mind, I would formally request that the companies
sought out possess the following:

Experience throughout the province of Ontario, not just locally in Niagara;
Specific soil management expertise;
A qualified hydrologist as part of the consultant team, to ensure proper analysis on the
aquifer;
e No bias or relationship, previous or current, with any interested parties.

Without the requirements referred to above, the peer review will lack credibility as well as the
confidence all stakeholders need in the review outcome and Council will continue to struggle with

our application.

Finally, be assured we will make our expert consultant team available to the qualified peer reviewer
to seek clarification, discuss any items and answer any questions they may have regarding our
studies and rehabilitation plan.

Please keep us informed of the timelines on the peer consultant selection process.

Sincerely, C/
Tom Rankin, P, Eng., CEO

c. His Worship William C. Steele & Port Colborne City Council,
c/o Amber LaPointe, City Clerk

82



From:
To:

Date:
Subject:

REEERED

JUL 22 2919
<Vance.Badawey.P9@parl.gc.ca> N
<clerks@stcatharines.ca>, <clerk@thorold.com>, <clerk@welland.ca>, COR%%%QE%%%ICES

<cityclerk@portcolborne.ca>
2019-07-22 12:02 PM
Attention: Mayor & Members of City Council

Mayor and Members of City Council,

The Minister of Environment and Climate Change, Catherine McKenna, announced that small-
and medium-sized businesses in Ontario, New Brunswick, Manitoba, and Saskatchewan can
now apply to the SME Project stream of the Climate Action Incentive Fund.

Small and medium-sized businesses in these provinces will be eligible to receive funding of up
to 25 percent of the cost of projects that will make their businesses more productive and
competitive as they reduce energy use, save money, and cut greenhouse gas pollution.

This is the Project fund for larger projects. A second fund for rebates on specific energy-efficient

equipment, likely of more interest to smaller SMEs, will be launched in the coming weeks.

Applications will be accepted for 90 days starting July 17, 2019, or until funding
exhausted. Eligible recipients and Small and medium-sized businesses, with up to 499
employees.

News Release & application details: https://www.canada.ca/en/environment-climate-
change/news/2019/07/small-and-medium-sized-businesses-in-ontario-new-brunswick-
manitoba-and-saskatchewan-can-now-apply-for-funding-for-energy-saving-

projects.html

Eligible project categories include:

Agricultural retrofits

Building retrofits

Changes to agricultural processes to improve energy efficiency
Fuel switching to lower emitting energy sources in agricultural operations
Other energy efficiency measures in the agricultural sector

Enhancements to building envelope (with direct energy savings), including energy
efficient windows/doors/skylights, increased insulation, weatherproofing, and glazing;
Energy efficient lighting system;

Heating, ventilation, and air conditioning (HVAC) equipment/systems/controls;

Water heating retrofits, including high efficiency condensing water heating;
High-efficiency motors and controls;

Energy management controls, including building automation systems; and

Fuel switching to lower emitting energy sources in existing buildings.

83



Electricity, energy or fuel production

o District energy (heating and/or cooling);

e Combined heat and power for own use;

o Renewable energy systems (e.g. solar photovoltaic, wind energy, micro-hydro, stand-
alone storage systems) on-site and for own-use; and

¢ Low-emission fuel production for own-use.

Industrial process improvements

e Retrofitting and upgrading of existing equipment used for industrial processes;
e Fuel switching to lower emitting energy sources;

e Process changes; and

e Waste-heat recovery.

Transportation retrofits

e Heavy-duty vehicle retrofits, including energy efficiency and/or fuel switching to lower
emitting sources; and

e Marine vehicle retrofits, including energy efficiency and/or fuel switching to lower
emitting sources.

Waste

e Energy efficiency measures in waste management.
Please don't hesitate to reach out if you have any questions or comments.
Kind regards,

Vance

Vance Badawey

Member of Parliament

Niagara Centre

Valour Bldg, Room 1170

Cporion mus smumtss Ottawa, Ontaric K1A DAB
i Tel. {613) 995-0938

Fax. {613) 995-5245

vance.badawey@parl.gc.ca

84



RECEIVED
Administration JUL19 2013

s S Office of the Regional Clerk
COR
- ﬂ Region 555 i Brock Way, PO Box 1042, Thorai &%mggg}nces
Telephone: 905-980-6000 Toll-free: 1-800-263-7215 Fax: 905-687-4977
www.niagararegion.ca

July 19, 2019

CL 13-2019, July 18, 2019
PEDC 7-2019, July 10, 2019
PDS 27-2019, July 10, 2019

AREA MUNICIPAL CLERKS
SENT ELECTRONICALLY

Re: Niagara Housing Statement Final Summary Report
PDS 27-2019

Regional Council, at its meeting of July 18, 2019, approved the following recommendation
of its Planning and Economic Development Committee:

That Report PDS 27-2019, dated July 10, 2019, respecting Niagara Housing Statement
Final Summary Report, BE RECEIVED and BE CIRCULATED to the Local Area
Municipalities.

A copy of Report PDS 27-2019 is enclosed for your information.

Yours truly,

it O—

Ann-Marie Norio
Regional Clerk
‘me

CLK-C 2019-181

85



Niagara'/l/ Region 5’35 1207,-3813

Page 1

Subject: Niagara Housing Statement Final Summary Report

Report to: Planning and Economic Development Committee
Report date: Wednesday, July 10, 2019

Recommendations

1. That Report PDS 27-2019 BE RECEIVED for information; and,

2. That a copy of Report PDS 27-2019 BE CIRCULATED to the Local Area
Municipalities.

Key Facts

The purpose of this report is to inform Council of the Niagara Housing Statement
Final Report (“the Report”) which outlines the results of the data collected, known
as the “Niagara Housing Statement Database”.

The Report provides a summary analysis of population, demographic and
housing characteristics, core housing need, and key population sub-groups,
including older adults, immigrant populations, and aboriginal identity, through the
use of graphics, geographical mapping at the sub-municipal level, and other
visual aids intended to assist in the interpretation of the data collected.

The Niagara Region hosted a training and facilitation session for local municipal
planners on June 7", 2019 in order to provide information regarding the contents
and capabilities of the Niagara Housing Statement Database, as well as to
explore the use of an agent-based analysis platform to gain insight into the risks
and rewards of various housing scenarios.

Staff will work to ensure that the Niagara Housing Statement Database is hosted
on the Niagara Region's Open Data portal and website for use by the public.
Additionally, Regional staff will be determining the extent to which further
analysis is required to inform the various studies and projects currently being
undertaken across the Corporation to address housing need and affordability.

Financial Considerations

The Niagara Housing Statement project was funded through the 2018 Council Approved
Operating Budget with contributions from the Planning and Development Services
Department, and the Community Services Department. There are no direct financial
implications arising from this report.

86



PDS 27-2019
July 10, 2019
Page 2

Analysis
Niagara Region Housing Market Analysis Report

In December 2018, the Canadian Centre for Economic Analysis (CANCEA), was
retained by the Niagara Region for the preparation of a database to inform the
comprehensive review of the Niagara Region 10-Year Housing and Homelessness
Action Plan and the development of a Regional Housing Strategy. Overseen by the
Planning and Development Services and the Community Services Departments, the
final dataset provides an accurate assessment of the current and future demand for
ownership, rental, and affordable housing within the Niagara Region, including detailed
demographic and housing trends, income levels, and demographic and housing
characteristics at the sub-municipal levels.

In order to verify and discuss the specific data procured for each of the twelve (12) local
area municipalities, a series of one-on-one consultation meetings were held in March
2019 with local planning staff. The feedback received identified few corrections or gaps
in the data presented, and as such, these consultation sessions were followed by a
presentation from the CANCEA Project Team at the April 17" Planning and Economic
Development Committee meeting (Report No. PDS 17-2019), which outlined the
implications of the preliminary analysis of the data collected on core housing need
within Niagara.

With the final database completed and circulated to local municipal staff, CANCEA has
now prepared a final summary report (see Appendix |) to both provide a more
comprehensive understanding of the demographic and housing trends that can be
inferred from the prepared database, as well as to satisfy the remaining requirements of
the Request for Proposal. The report, which had been reviewed by staff in the Planning
and Development Services Department, Community Services Department, and Niagara
Regional Housing, provides a summary analysis of population, demographic and
housing characteristics, core housing need, and key population sub-groups, including
older adults, immigrant populations, and aboriginal identity, through the use of graphics,
geographical mapping at the sub-municipal level, and other visual aids intended to
assist in the interpretation of the data collected.

Next Steps

The Niagara Region hosted a training and facilitation session for local municipal
planners on June 7, 2019 in order to provide information regarding the contents and
capabilities of the Niagara Housing Statement Database, as well as to explore the use
of CANCEA'’s agent-based analysis platform to gain insight into the risks and rewards of
various housing scenarios. Based on the feedback received at this session, as well as
inter-Departmental discussions, Regional staff will be determining the extent to which

87



PDS 27-2019
July 10, 2019
Page 3

further analysis is required to inform the various studies and projects currently being
undertaken across the Corporation to address housing need and affordability.

Additionally, Regional staff will be working internally to ensure that the Niagara Housing

Statement Database is hosted on the Niagara Region’s Open Data portal and website
for use by the public.

Alternatives Reviewed
N/A

Relationship to Council Strategic Priorities

The new Regional Official Plan will assist in implementing Council’'s Strategic Priority of
Labour-Ready Workforce.

Other Pertinent Reports

e PDS 17-2019 Niagara Housing Statement — Affordable Housing Data

Prepared by: Recommended by:

Alexandria Tikky Rino Mostacci

Planner Commissioner

Planning and Development Services Planning and Development Services

Submitted by:
Ron Tripp, P.Eng.
Acting, Chief Administrative Officer

This report was reviewed by Doug Giles, MCIP, RPP, Director of Long-Range and Community
Planning, Planning and Development Services Department.

Appendices
Appendix 1 Final Report — Niagara Region Housing Market Analysis  Page 04

88



Niagara Region Housing Market Analysis
Trends, current state and forecasts, 1996-2041

June 2019

CANADIAN CENTRE FOR
ECONOMIC ANALYSIS

89



Niagara Region Housing Market Analysis

ABout THE CAnNADIAN CENTRE FOR
Economic ANALYSIS

ABOUT THE REPORT

The Canadian Centre for Economic Analysis
(CANCEA) is a socio-economic analytics and data
firm. CANCEA provides objective, independent
and high data intensity analysis and consulting
services.

CANCEA uses modern techniques in data science,
including agent-based modelling, for econometric
analysis, risk management assessments, and
estimating current and future population and
household characteristics. =~ CANCEA's field
expertise includes market analysis, policy
evaluation, business model optimization, cost-
effectiveness and rate-of-return  analysis,
macroeconomic  analysis,  insurance  risk
evaluation, land use and infrastructure planning,
logistics, and labour market analysis. CANCEA also
provides comprehensive Canadian data services.

At the centre of CANCEA's analytical capabilities is
an agent-based platform called Prosperity at Risk®
that is an extensive, data-driven model of 56,000
locations across Canada. Given the systems focus
behind all of CANCEA’s work, CANCEA has a one-
model approach to its analysis which allows
various disciplines and stakeholders to be
incorporated into a single analysis.

©2019 Canadian Centre for Economic Analysis

Printed in Canada e All rights reserved
ISBN: 978-1-989077-12-2

CANADIAN CENTRE FOR
ECONOMIC ANALYSIS
v

CANCEA does not accept any research funding or
client engagements that require a pre-determined
result or policy stance, or otherwise inhibits its
independence.

In keeping with CANCEA’s guidelines for funded
research, the design and method of research, as
well as the content of this study, were determined
solely by CANCEA.

This information is not intended as specific
investment, accounting, legal or tax advice.

Citation: Niagara Region Housing Market Analysis.
CANCEA. June, 2019.

Page | 2



Niagara Region Housing Market Analysis

TABLE OF CONTENTS

L D TR TR oo s monss igans 18 e Ra R 0 S s Sk i ¥ o o S SR i S e SSRGS 4
List OF Tables cuuimrm s v sy e s T T s S e a T s T e s s N i e 5
LT . 6
FINAINES 81 8 GIANCE 1ivuiieiiieiiet ettt sttt s e b e be e e b e b e s et e b s b as e sesaesbasanen 8
B o o] ) T T T I 8
o T L Lo T m— 8
HOUSINE NBEU ...ttt ettt a e bbb bbb et e bt e b s ma e easenesaeete s bes s neesaab s easeereesbeenesesnesrsersenseans 8
1 T 1117 T [ et 1 o T I 9
DL OB EERINES. ;ncosmiosun camasiorsvmenmnsvinnypumans v e s e s oais o iisysiesiives ek ek 4 50 AV S 9
1.2 MELEDIBlOEY: s s s s s i S S e T e T M tommn n s v svegen 9
2.0 PApulBtIOnantl HOUSEROIS . cussususcrosnssesinscstns crmomisrissiisssssssissssssr simsaivasssatissamisisstsraeisssissaiississ 11
2.1 D TR AR IR THEIAE i i T R i s g S ST va asomsmnspens tr Fre N oo mA s A s AR OB 11
2.2 EMpIoYMent ario INCOMTES <o, wseessvsisssmsiivs s s svsss st sosive s ssssses s riasi s mavassses eros 12
2.3  (CORCIITINE PEIAIKS s sosunsissn scsssmensins s s cvmsanins sssemsssonsimssss corss s sy s X iR ASToeR RS oSSV M SRS AT ED 17
3D HousHE STOCK s simsmimaanimasinssiaie s v i stsis s e ey S s Ao iasn s NSt o5 S apmaass 18
2.1  Dwelling TYpes antl TERURE it vorsiasssmmms s sissve s s v 18
3.2 SREIEI PIICES eeoueiieeeiieiiie sttt ettt s r et b e she s sb et e e s enesbe s e e esesb e e b e e e aeen e e b asnre st e ans 20
3.3  Concluding REMATKS. s imssiis i e e 15 i s B A iR 345 i smarmsan 23
4.0 L o T ES T = Y= =T O STRS 24
4.1 COre HOUSTAE NESH s s st ssis s e e s T s AT IR g TS AR b memannab et 24
A2 AITOT AR osrpemmmovimmssmmvemmorennesests s peumsnsoh e oraa oo ves 0¥ AV s S S S AR A eS 27
4.3 CONCIUAINE ROIMIAEKS .o sivnssnsnssves aunsuwsssisisinsns vossssisimionie s s i il S s VAR S 31
5.0 Sub Population FOEUS st it i e arerse s s es i i man s rma s 32
Bl O CEABUIES s ssnsovssnmsnssivisiis srionsiseynss s s iisas s e i s s s TSN 32
5.2 Single-Person HoUSEhOIAS.......ccouiuiiiimiiiiiiscnesiesssssesssssses st saesssssssssssssssssassessesens 34
53 LoneParent Househlds icimianamininsanmimmsmarmmmrrmsais s i s iaisssssas s tnss 35
5.4  Immigrant and Aboriginal Populations & Other Priority SUBEroups ...c..coceereviricriniiecieeisinnns 36
5.5  CONCITOIMNE RETINORKS sucvsivssuseonsussassnmpsvinseninsumessavessesisssiasinis s oo s s AN 41
6:0 Consultation Feedback. s v s rms s s e s e e s s saaTvassaaves 43
6.1 WhatWelHBETH ..ouunuinsmmcnsyiiimmssimis s s s i s s s s e S s 43
6.2 LOCEI POIICY INTEIESES.....ciirictiiieieitiirecriere st esiete e esseresaeseessesseseerteasssessebessssaeraessanserbeaesseertensnrerens 43
B3  DataBaiS s e i A i e s Ik Bt ts i e SR AT rd Beensmenssy 44
TUDE B TN s i oo s A e B RS RS ESHOR 45
A, Appendix: COmParison TADBIES ... s s s nne s enn 46
AL, Within Niagara BEBION sisrassiniisseirims st msres ievmmiins i it i s essvas s s sivasbonsansanansnss 46
A2, Neighbouring Municlpalitles e s arciayismei s iaiaraismmes 50

CANADIAN CENTRE FOR
ﬁlﬁ ECONOMIC ANALYSIS Page | 3



Niagara Region Housing Market Analysis

LIST OF FIGURES

Figure 1

Figure 2

Figure 3

Figure 4

Figure 5

Figure 6

Figure 7

Figure 8

Figure 9

Figure 10
Figure 11
Figure 12
Figure 13
Figure 14
Figure 15
Figure 16
Figure 17
Figure 18
Figure 19
Figure 20
Figure 21
Figure 22
Figure 23
Figure 24
Figure 25
Figure 26
Figure 27
Figure 28
Figure 29
Figure 30
Figure 31
Figure 32

Househalds by age and B, 2016 it smimassivivseisaiisenisamismmie 11
Population by ageand sex; 2016 and 2041 .......cimissisasamsimsssiiomssssissssiviseomessiss 12
Average and median individual inCoOmes, 2016 .......ccccovivieremriieenenrensninssssseesaens 13
Median household income by dissemination area (legend in ), 2016......ccovvurevnvernneirerinns 13
TOH B aCeUatIoT VDS 20T B ittt e s S i e S A G LA O s 15
Gender and age of employment income recipients with a total income in deciles 1to 4..... 16
Education level of individuals with a total income in deciles 1 to 4 by gender............ccceu... 16
Employment trends and projections, 2001-2041 .......cccoiiiieiieenrinneeenssssssisntinsiee e 17
HEUSIAE AEnSH DY TERRIIE, 2006 5 smismsm i misio s s s G I e resared 18
Percentage of rental stock by dissemination area, 2016........c.ccovemiunnicinimesinnnisseinecinenns 19
Tenure by hiousehold type, 2010w wasmmisanmesmaamisrasinnsgmsvinasia s i 19
Average rents by number of bedrooms reported by CMHC, 1996-2018 ........cccccoevierivenenenns 21
Market rents reported by Padmapper, 2016-2019 .....ccoieceeerierrerreennesnneseeeserenesssesssensenns 21
CMHC primary rental vacancy rates by number of bedrooms, 2014-2018........cccceeevicvinrnne. 22
Core housing need, share by household type, 2016.......cccovieeienininiinie e 24
Core housing need indicators by tenure (number of households), 2016.......cceveriivvenrinenne. 25
Core housing need indicators by tenure (percentage of households), 2016 ........c.ccevvencene. 26
Affordahility:-matrin —OWIEES; 2OL6 s isrmsmssssissmmssnibmmessrssss s s s 28
Affordability matrix = Renters, 2016........c.iimeeerimirsissanssnsssansssnsssnsssssssssssssassssassassssassssssssssasss 29
Percentage of households spending over 30% of income on housing by DA, 2016...............30
Share of population over 65 by dissemination area, 2016.........ccoceveiniiinennenmn.. 32
Older adult core housing need indicators (number of households) by age, 2016 ................. 33
Older adult core housing need indicators (percentage of households) by age, 2016............ 33
Single-person households in core need by age, 2016.........ccvmrnem.. 34
Lone-parent households in core need by age, 2016.......cccovveviieninnniimmimmmenmee e 35
Lone parent core housing indicators by tenure (number of households), 2016.................... 36
Lone parent core housing indicators by tenure (percentage of households), 2016 .............. 36
Population that immigrated before year 2001 by income level, 2016........cccceiiivniiesrinnnnns 37
Population that immigrated in year 2001 or later by income level , 2016........cccocviiiniancenne. 38
Non-immigrant population by income level, 2016........ccccerienencnieniecie e 38
Aboriginal-identifying population by age, 1996-2016 ..., 39
Income, aboriginal-identifying population (CMA), 2016 ......cooveerieriieiiniineiessrin s seesisens 40

CANADIAN CENTRE FOR
\,ﬁrﬁ ECONOMIC ANALYSIS Page | 4



Niagara Region Housing Market Analysis

Figure 33 Share of population with any income and employment income, (CMA), 2016 .........c.coc...... 40

Figure 34 Population living in unsuitable dwelling by age and aboriginal identity, 2016 ..........ccccvuue. 411

LIST OF TABLES

Table 1 Individual and household income deciles for Niagara Region, 2016.......ccccceevvinierninensiinnns 14
Table 1 Housing stock by dWelliNg type; 2006. .. smmvesissms st 18
Table 2 Self-reported dwelling values, 2001-2016 (CMA)........... e et e ettt rar et et e entens 20
Table 3 Recentimarkit prices, 2006-2009 .. uiiame i mmniisoisbensiissitssibssiernereyesseniranss 20
Table 4 Affordable housing units by mandate and type, 2019 .....ccccieiieiininiiicncsiie e snenees 23
Table 5 Households in core need by household type, 2016.......c.ccvviiieiemrreesieriiieesieeereeresseesasassereens 24
Table 6 Core housing need by age of household maintainer and tenure, 2016 .......ccccceevviveereecnnnnne 26
Table 7 Households in core housing need by decile, 2016.........ccccerereriermiensenresernreserneeseseincasssesenes 27
Table 8 Households spending over 30% of income on shelter, 2016.......c.ccccevevevireeiseenecreisnenneenes 30
Table 9 Percent of older adult households of given type in core housing need, 2016...........ccvvereenee 34
Table 10  Percent of older adult households spending over 30% of income on shelter, 2016.............. 34
o cameron Page | 5

93



Niagara Region Housing Market Analysis

GLOSSARY

Census Household: Contains at least one census family.

Census Family: Defined as a married couple or a couple living common law, with or without children of
either and/or both spouses; or a lone parent of any marital status with at least one child living in the same
dwelling. Grandchildren living with their grandparent(s) but no parents are also considered a census
family.

CMA: Stands for Urban Census Metropolitan Area, defined by Statistics Canada as an area consisting of
one or more neighbouring municipalities situated around a major urban core.

CMHC: Stands for Canada Mortgage and Housing Corporation, a Crown Corporation of the Government
of Canada that acts as Canada’s national housing agency.

Core Housing Need: According to CMHC, a household is said to be in core housing need if its housing falls
below at least one of the adequacy, affordability or suitability standards and it would have to spend 30%
or more of its total before-tax income to pay the median rent of alternative local housing that is acceptable
(meets all three housing standards). Housing standards are defined as follows:

Adequate housing is reported by residents as not requiring any major repairs.
Affordable housing costs less than 30% of total before-tax household income.

Suitable housing has enough bedrooms for the size and makeup of resident households,
according to National Occupancy Standard requirements.

DA: Stands for Dissemination Area, a small area composed of one or more neighbouring dissemination
blocks with a population of 400 to 700 persons. This is a geographical resolution used by Statistics Canada.

High-Density Housing: Units in apartment buildings of five storeys or more. In some situations, housing is
mixed with other uses.

LIM-AT: Stands for low-income measure, after tax, and is a metric for determining whether a household
falls below a low-income threshold specific to the household size, based on whether its income is below
50% or median adjusted after-tax income.

Low-Density Housing: Single-detached and semi-detached housing.

MCR: Stands for Municipal Comprehensive Review, a new official plan, or an official plan amendment,
initiated by an upper- or single-tier municipality under section 26 of the Planning Act that
comprehensively applies the policies and schedules of the Provincial Growth Plan.

Medium-Density Housing: Units in row houses, duplex apartments, and apartment buildings of four
storeys or less.

#y CANADIAN CENTRE FOR Page | 6
+? | ECONOMIC ANALYSIS

94



Niagara Region Housing Market Analysis

Multiple-Family Households: Households that consist of two or more census families. There may also be
persons who are not in a census family in this type of household.

National Occupancy Standard: A standard developed by CMHC through consultations with provincial
governments which is used to determine the number of bedrooms required by a household in order to be

suitably housed.
Non-Census Household: Comprises a single person or two or more persons in a non-census family.

Primary Household Maintainer: The first person in the household identified as someone who pays the
rent or mortgage, the taxes, or the electricity bill, and so on, for the dwelling.

St. Catharines-Niagara CMA: Comprises the municipalities of St. Catharines, Niagara Falls, Welland, Fort
Erie, Lincoln, Port Colbarne, Thorold, Pelham, Niagara-on-the-Lake and Wainfleet.

CANADIAN CENTRE FOR
w ECONOMIC ANALYSIS Page | 7

95



Niagara Region Housing Market Analysis

FINDINGS AT A GLANCE

The aim of this study was to develop the Niagara Housing Statement Database in support of the Regional
Housing Study and Housing and Homelessness Action Plan. It compiles the available information about
the current stock of rental, ownership and affordable housing in Niagara Region by type and location. This
information is combined with data about the households themselves, including the type of household,
income level, age of household maintainer, and whether the household faces core housing need or
affordability challenges. The study also provides a forecast to 2041 of the future housing stock based on
the Provincial Growth Plan projections as of May 2019 and current economic trends.

DEMOGRAPHICS

Niagara Region is facing unigue challenges relative to much of Ontario. It already has a significantly older
population than the province, and this demographic aging is expected to continue to trend upwards in
the future. The population aged 65 years or older is expected to more than double by 2041. Single-person
households are the dominant type of households, a trend which is also expected to continue as the
population ages and household sizes decrease.

HOUSING STOCK

Niagara Region’s housing stock is primarily low-density. Single-detached homes are the most common
dwelling type, followed by low-rise apartments and row houses. Medium- and high-density housing
represents 24% of the total stock and houses 71% of the renter population.

HousiINGg NEED

Core housing need affects 13% of households in Niagara Region, or approximately 24,000 households,
according to the most recent figures. Renter households are in core housing need at three times the rate
of owner households and also live in unsuitable, unaffordable and inadequate dwellings at higher rates
than their owner counterparts. Of these components of housing need, affordability is the main challenge
in the Region, as rates of housing unsuitability and inadequacy are low overall. Almost all households
affected by core housing need are in the lower 4 income deciles, and of these, the majority are in deciles
1 and 2, earning less than $29,500 per year.

Similar rates of core housing need exist across most ages of household maintainers. Rates are slightly
higher for households with a maintainer younger than 35 or older than 84. The household types
predominantly affected are single-person households, which are the large majority of households in core
housing need, and lone-parent households.

CANADIAN CENTRE FOR
@!} ECONOMIC ANALYSIS Page | 8



Niagara Region Housing Market Analysis

1.0 INTRODUCTION

1.1 OBIJECTIVES

The aim of this study was to develop the Niagara Housing Statement Database in support of the Regional
Housing Study and Housing and Homelessness Action Plan. It compiles the available information about
the current stock of rental, ownership and affordable housing in Niagara Region by type and location. This
information is combined with data about the households themselves, including the type of household,
income level, age of household maintainer, and whether the household faces core housing need or
affordability challenges. The study also provides a forecast to 2041 of the future housing stock based on
the Provincial Growth Plan projections as of May 2019 and current economic trends.

Through the course of this study, working with Niagara Region, CANCEA:

e Created a comprehensive dataset that:
o combines housing and demographic data in one place for use by Regional and local
municipal planners and policymakers; and
o includes historical forecasts and projections up to 2041 for key housing and
demographic metrics.

e Conducted a housing need analysis to determine:
o how many households are in core need;
o how many households face affordability challenges; and
o which groups are facing pressure in the ownership and rental markets.

o Consulted with local municipalities to:
o confirm that data capture was representative of the local experience;
o identify any relevant gaps;
o provide training on the use of the database; and
o determine the main scenarios of interest to test for the next study phase (scenario-
based analysis).

e Presented findings to the Niagara Region Planning and Economic Development Committee.

This report is intended to provide a curated selection of representative housing and demographic data,
along with graphs and tables to easily visualize this information, and to summarize key findings from the
study.

1.2 METHODOLOGY

The Regional dataset was created using CANCEA’s statistical analysis and data simulation platform, which
makes use of 15 years’ worth of community-level data housed in a linked-path agent database covering
55,000 regions across Canada. The platform is regularly updated to include the most recent Statistics
Canada datasets and census information.

CANADIAN CENTRE FOR
\,ﬁfﬁ ECONOMIC ANALYSIS Page | 9

97



Niagara Region Housing Market Analysis

The population projections have been aligned to the Provincial Places to Grow targets as well as the
numbers generated by the Municipal Comprehensive Review. These population projections, along with
life expectancies and birth rates, are used to determine the number of households and the dwelling sizes
these would require under different conditions and over time.

Information about the current housing stock, the way in which the current population is housed
(affordability, suitability and adequacy) and dwelling formation rates (both market and non-market) are
used to assess the supply of housing over time.

This study and the accompanying dataset draw primarily from Statistics Canada census datasets and
CMHC tables. All population and household counts have been corrected for census undercounts. As a
result, these may be a few percent larger than those found in the census table. All income values are
presented in constant 2015 dollar figures to be consistent with the 2016 census results.

Additional data included was provided by Niagara Region, including:

o Provincial Policy Statement tables;
o Core housing need custom cuts; and
o Affordable housing data.

All figures, tables and statistics included in this report derive from these sources unless otherwise

specified.

# CANADIAN CENTRE FOR Page | 10
- ECONOMIC ANALYSIS



Niagara Region Housing Market Analysis

2.0 POPULATION AND HOUSEHOLDS

2.1 DEMOGRAPHIC TRENDS

2.1.1 HOUSEHOLDS

In Niagara Region, single-person households are the most common type (31%)", followed by couples
without children (28%) and with children (25%). The proportion of single-person households is 1.5 times
the provincial average. Additionally, 41% of singles are 65 years or older, which is 21% higher than the
rest of Ontario.

Figurel  Households by age and type, 2016

Household Maintainer Age by Type (2016)

45,000
40,000
35,000
30,000
25,000
20,000
15,000
10,000

5,000

15t024 25t034 35to44 45to54 55to 64 65t074 75to84 85 and
over

a Couple, with children
& Couple, without children
™ Lone-parent

= WSS

! Non-census households include all non-census family households (see glossary) and are predominantly single-
person households. For simplicity this report will refer to non-census households as singles or single-person
households moving forward.

ﬁﬁ CANADIAN CENTRE FOR Page | 11

ECONOMIC ANALYSIS

99



Niagara Region Housing Market Analysis
2.1.2 POPULATION TRENDS

The age profile of Niagara Region is expected to increasingly skew older as 2041 approaches. By 2041, it
is expected that the population aged 75 and older will be 50% larger than the 14 and under population.
At 180%, the growth rate of the cohort aged 75 years or older is at least 4 times larger than the growth
rate of any other cohort. The older population is projected to also skew female.

Figure2  Population by age and sex, 2016 and 2041

Age Distribution: 2016 and 2041
100,000 80,000 60,000 40,000 20,000 0 20,000 40,000 60,000 80,000 100,000

T i 75 and over

AR

NS 65 to 74
Gt 55 to 64
45to 54

.'s\;“ 1;' % ST TS

KA SN )
RN \.‘\%\" 2510 34
ASaE.s '

a‘;‘t\i‘\%l&\i\ﬁ\\i\ T Oto 14

100,000 80,000 60,000 40,000 20,000 0 20,000 40,000 60,000 80,000 100,000
# Males (2041) u Males (2016) % Females (2041) B Females (2016)

2.2 EMPLOYMENT AND INCOMES

The average individual income in Niagara Region is $41,591, while the median income is $31,433. The
discrepancy between the average and the mean is an indication of the degree of income disparity in the
Region. Incomes are generally higher in the predominantly rural local municipalities and lower in the
larger cities, particularly near the downtown cores, as seen in Figure 4.

In this analysis, incomes are reported both at the individual and household level. To analyze differences
between individuals and households of different income levels, individual and household income deciles
are used. Each population (household) decile contains 10% of the Regional population (households). The
lower-bound income of each decile is the income of the person or household within the decile with the
lowest income, and the upper bound is the income of the person or household with the highest income.
Income deciles for Niagara Region are given in Table 1.

CANADIAN CENTRE FOR
d@# ECONOMIC ANALYSIS Page | 12

100



Niagara Region Housing Market Analysis

Figure3  Average and median individual incomes, 2016

Individual Incomes - All Sources
60,000

50,000
40,000
30,000

20,000

10,000
I lI"A{
0 =

15t0 19 20to 24 25to0 29 30to 34 35to 44 45to 54 55to 64 65t0 74 75 and over

B average income ® median income

Figure4  Median household income by dissemination area (legend in $), 2016

2 i z 5 ST

eamiadian Conta for EROOmc Anaiysit (e csncas. o)

CANADIAN CENTRE FOR
ﬁlﬂ ECONOMIC ANALYSIS Page | 13

101



Niagara Region Housing Market Analysis

Tablel Individual and household income deciles for Niagara Region, 2016

Individual Income Household Income

Decile 1 Less than $8,900 Less than $19,400
Decile 2 $8,900 to $13,999 $19,400 to $29,499
Decile 3 $14,000 to $19,099 $29,500 to $39,799
Decile 4 $19,100 to $24,799 $39,800 to $52,699
Decile 5 $24,800 to $31,399 $52,700 to $68,399
Decile 6 $31,400 to $38,999 $68,400 to $84,299
Decile 7 $39,000 to $48,999 $84,300 to $101,199
Decile 8 $49,000 to $62,799 $101,200 to $122,199
Decile 9 $62,800 to $85,799 $122,200 to $155,899
Decile 10 585,800 or more $155,900 or more

2.2.1 OCCUPATION

In Niagara Region, there is twice as many residents that report having an occupation in sales and service?

as in the next most common occupation type. People in these occupations are more concentrated in lower
income deciles than those in any other occupation type. In fact, over half of the people in sales and service
occupations (about 13,400) have individual incomes below $24,800, placing them in the lower 4 individual
income deciles. The main occupation types are illustrated in Figure 5.

2 This category contains retail and wholesale sales occupations and customer and personal service occupations
related to a wide range of industries, such as accommodation and food service, travel, tourism, and cleaning services.
See the National Occupational Classification (NOC) 2016 Version 1.0 on the Statistics Canada website for the full list
of definitions of occupation types.

p) | CANADIAN CENTRE FOR Page | 14
P | ECONOMIC ANALYSIS

102




Niagara Region Housing Market Analysis

Figure5  Top 5 occupation types, 2016

Top 5 Sectors of Occupations
140,000

120,000

100,000

B Deciles 1-4
# Deciles 5-10

80,000

60,000

# of people

40,000

20,000

Sales and Trades, Business, Education, Management
service transport and finance and law and social,
equipment administration community
operators and
government
services

2.2.2 EMPLOYED, LOWER-INCOME POPULATION CHARACTERISTICS

The population of employment income-earners whose total income is in the lower 4 deciles skews
female. The discrepancy between the share of all men and women with employment income whose
total income is in the lower 4 income deciles increases with age, as shown in Figure 6.

The maximum educational attainment of most of the population whose total income is in the lower 4
deciles® is a high school certificate, followed by a college certificate or diploma and no certificate or
diploma. The subset of this population with a college certificate or diploma or at least some university
skews significantly more female than the population with other educational attainment levels (see
Figure 7).

? This population also includes individuals who do not receive employment income and is therefore slightly larger
than the population represented in Figure 6.

w CANADIAN CENTRE FOR Page | 15

ECONOMIC ANALYSIS



Niagara Region Housing Market Analysis

Figure6  Gender and age of employment income recipients with a total income in deciles 1 to 4

Number and Percentage of Employment Income

Recipients with Total Income in Deciles 1-4

34%
10,000 :
8,000
48%
6,000 39%
4000 ] i e :
2,000 i .

2510 29 30to 34 35to 44 45 to 54 55to 64
® Female Male

Figure7  Education level of individuals with a total income in deciles 1 to 4 by gender

Education Level of Employment Income Recipients with Total Income in

Deciles 1-4 (Ages 25-64)

No certificate, diploma or degree

aanschool |

Apprenticeship or trades certificate :'L

College certificate or diploma )
-

B Female = Male

20,000 15,000 10,000 5,000 0 5,000 10,000 15,000

2.2.3 EMPLOYMENT INTENSITY

The Region is seeing an increasing number of people who are not employed, which correlates to the
demographic aging of the population. Since 2011, Niagara Region has had more people not employed
than people employed in full-time work. In parallel, the local dependency ratio — the proportion of
residents aged 15 or younger and 65 and older relative to those in their working years (15 to 65) — will

also increase.

CANADIAN CENTRE FOR
ﬁ.g ECONOMIC ANALYSIS Page | 16

104



Niagara Region Housing Market Analysis

Figure8 Employment trends and projections, 2001-2041

Niagara 15+ Employment
250,000

200,000 A

150,000
xf/

100,000
=®=Full year, full time

=&~ Full year, part time

50,000
=@=Seasonal

= Not Working

2001 2006 2011 2016 2021 2026 2031 2036 2041

2.3 CONCLUDING REMARKS

The following demographic and employment trends will affect future housing demand in Niagara Region,
including the type of housing, location, tenure, density, etc.

e The demographic aging of the population
o Demographic aging creates a trend towards smaller household sizes.
e The importance of sales and service employment, which is primarily lower-wage
o Over half of the people in sales and service occupations are in the lower 4 individual
income deciles.
o Lower-income households are more concentrated in the larger cities in the Region,
particularly in the downtown areas.
o The ability to house this population can have an effect on the local economy.

CANADIAN CENTRE FOR
#ﬁ ECONOMIC ANALYS1S Page | 17

105



Niagara Region Housing Market Analysis

3.0 HOUSING STOCK

3.1 DWELLING TYPES AND TENURE

The most common type of dwelling in the Region are single-detached houses. Low-density dwellings
represent 73% of all housing in the Region. The composition of Niagara Region’s housing stock by dwelling
type is presented in Table 1.

Table1  Housingstock by dwelling type, 2016

Density Dwelling Type Number of Dwellings
Low Single-detached 126,208
Low Semi-detached 9,734
Medium Row house 13,701
Medium Apartment 5storeys or less 19,975
Medium Duplex Apartment 6,050
Medium Other 486
High Apartment over 5 storeys 9,864

The Region’s housing stock is composed of 74% ownership and 26% rental. The majority of the rental
stock is concentrated in the larger cities in the Region, especially around the downtown cores, with very
little rental stock outside of these areas (see Figure 9). Most ownership stock is low-density housing while
most rental stock is medium- or high-density.

e 9in 10 owners live in low-density housing.
e QOver half of renters live in medium-density housing.

Figure9  Housing density by tenure, 2016

Total Dwellings by Density Ownership Stock Rental Stock

= % high density = % medium density = % low density

CANADIAN CENTRE FOR
ﬁlﬂ ECONOMIC ANALYSIS Page | 18

106



Niagara Region Housing Market Analysis

Figure 10  Percentage of rental stock by dissemination area, 2016

The household types most likely to be renters are single-person and lone-parent households, as shown in
Figure 11.

Figure1l  Tenure by household type, 2016

Tenure by Household Type

-

Multiple-family BE{70 I

0 10,000 20,000 30,000 40,000 50,000 60,000 70,000

B Owner @ Renter

CANADIAN CENTRE FOR
d%ﬁ ECONDMIC ANALYSLS Page | 19

107




Niagara Region Housing Market Analysis

3.2 SHELTER PRICES

3.2.1 OWNERSHIP

In the 2001 to 2016 period, the median self-reported values of single-detached houses and other medium-
density attached dwelling types have increased by 114% and 113%, respectively, in the St. Catharines-
Niagara CMA®. On average, this is an annual increase of about 7.5%. The self-reported value of units in
apartments of five storeys or more has increased by 81% in the same timeframe, a 5.4% average annual

increase.

Market prices, which reflect the prices of the subset of the housing stock that is newly built or resold, have
increased by 36% between 2016 and 2019 in Niagara Region as a whole. On average, thisis a 12% annual

increase, although the increases have been uneven year over year (see Table 3).

Table2  Self-reported dwelling values, 2001-2016 (CMA)

~ Year Single-detached house Apartment 5+ storeys
2001 $139,371 599,225 $112,742
2006 $195,269 $145,380 $160,177
2016 $298,208 $179,421 5240,412
Table3  Recent market prices, 2016-2019°
Year | AllDwelling Types  Change from previous year
2016 $333,030 =
2017 $403,099 21%
2018 $405,063 0%
2019 $454,780 12%
3.2.2 RENTAL

Average rents reported by CMHC include rents paid by all tenants in the rental market, including long-
term tenants whose rents may be below market. Average rents by number of bedrooms in the St.
Catharines-Niagara CMA are shown over time in Figure 12. Between 1996 and 2018, the average year-
over-year increase in CMHC average rents for a 1-bedroom apartment in the St. Catharines-Niagara CMA
was 2.4%. In recent years, between 2016 and 2018, the average year-over-year increase was 4.3%. During
that same timeframe, according to data from Padmapper’s monthly Canadian Rent Reports®, market rents
increased by 9% per year on average in the St. Catharines-Niagara CMA. Market rents are higher in general

* Note that throughout the report CMA indicates that data is for the St. Catharines-Niagara CMA, which includes all
local municipalities of Niagara Region with the exception of Grimsbhy and West Lincoln. Unless CMA is specified, the
data covers Niagara Region in its entirety.
5 Source: Niagara Association of Realtors monthly market reports (January 2016-February 2019), available on the

Niagara Association of Realtor’s Website
§ Available on Padmapper’s Rental Data Blog. Accessed April 4, 2019.

CANADIAN CENTRE FOR
- ECONOMIC ANALYSLS

. Accessed April 3" 2019.

Page | 20

108



Niagara Region Housing Market Analysis

since new tenants will generally be charged a higher rent compared to what a long-term tenant would
pay, and only a subset of all rental units are put on the market in any given year.

Figure 12  Average rents by number of bedrooms reported by CMHC, 1996-2018

Average Rents (CMA)
$1,200
51,000
$800
$600
S400
=@=Bachelor units
=== One bedroom units
S200 .
=4=Two bedroom units
&6 === Three bedroom units
O™~ Ao MMt D OMND O A NN s 1 W S 00
OO OO OO OO0 O 00000 ™ ™ + d - ™ v~
OO0 OO0 0O0000000 GO0
— N AN NN NN NN NSNS NN N NN
Figure13  Market rents reported by Padmapper, 2016-2019
Recent Market Rents (CMA)
51,600
$1,400 :
$1,200
$1,000
.._
S800
=3=1 bedroom units
$600
=4~=72 bedroom units
S400
2016 2017 2018 2019
A sam e ron page | 21

109



Niagara Region Housing Market Analysis

The rental market in the St. Catharines-Niagara CMA appears to have tightened considerably in the past
decade. According to CMHC's yearly Rental Market Reports from 2015 to 2018, which cover the St.
Catharines-Niagara CMA, the average vacancy rate for primary rental units decreased for six consecutive
years from 2011 to 2017, increasing for the first time between 2017 and 2018. Vacancy rates by number
of bedrooms for the 2014-2018 period are reported in Figure 14. In 2016, the turnover rate was reported
to be among the lowest in Ontario, third only to the rental markets in Toronto and Hamilton. Reasons for
this tightening of the rental market, according to CMHC, include increased demand from the immigrant
population and international students, as well as a growing gap between rental prices and ownership
costs that reduces movement out of the rental market and into homeownership.

Figure 14  CMHC primary rental vacancy rates by number of bedrooms, 2014-2018

Primary Rental Vacancy Rate (CMA)

5.0%
—&— 1 bedroom units
..... y— i

p_— #==2 bedroom units
~= 3+ bedroom units
=@ == 3\verage

3.0%

2.0%

1.0%

0.0%

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

3.2.3 AFFORDABLE HOUSING UNITS

In Niagara Region, there are 8,404 affordable units available, which includes public housing units operated
and managed by Niagara Regional Housing; non-profit and cooperative housing programs; rent
supplement units; as well as units provided through the New Development Housing Allowance Program
for private developers (Table 4 provides a breakdown by type and mandate). Almost three-quarters of the
units are mandated for families or seniors®. In terms of size, 50% of units have one bedroom, 25% have
three or more bedrooms, 23% have two bedrooms and the remainder are bachelor units. These are mainly
found in St. Catharines, Niagara Falls and Welland.

7 Available on the CMHC website. Accessed June 20%, 2019.
¥ Applicants aged 55 years and older are eligible for senior housing.

CANADIAN CENTRE FOR Page | 22
P | ECONOMIC ANALYSIS

110



Niagara Region Housing Market Analysis

Table4  Affordable housing units by mandate and type, 2019
Family | Aboriginal | Alternative, None

New

Development 315 325 26 - 43 - 709
NFP / Coop 1024 29 2336 128 84 - 3601
NRH Owned 1642 140 902 - - - 2684
Rent

Supplement - - - - - 1410 1410
Total 2981 494 3264 128 127 1410 8404

3.3 CONCLUDING REMARKS

Niagara Region’s housing stock differs between:

e larger cities and rural communities — Larger cities have the bulk of the housing stock, the high-
and medium-density stock and the affordable housing units in the Region.
e Tenure types — Almost 90% of owner households live in a low-density dwelling compared to just

over 25% of renters.

There is some evidence that recent housing price and rent increases have exceeded long-term average

rates.

e Average rents for a 1-bedroom apartment have increased by 4.3% between 2016 and 2018

compared to the 2.4% 22-year average.

o Self-reported housing values have more than doubled from 2001 to 2016.
e Market prices for homes have increased by 12% per year on average from 2016 to 2018, with a

20% increase between 2016 and 2017.

CANADIAN CENTRE FOR
g ECONOMIC ANALYSIS

Page | 23

111



Niagara Region Housing Market Analysis

4.0 HOUSING NEED

4.1 Corte HousING NEED

Core housing need is the standard indicator of housing need in Canada used by CMHC and Statistics
Canada. A household is considered to be in core housing need if its dwelling does not acceptably meet its
needs, i.e. it is either too small’, in a major state of disrepair or too expensive given its budget, and there
is no alternative acceptable housing that would cost less than 30% of total household income.

Core housing need affected a total of 23,830 households in 2016. Of this number, about 20,000 are single-
person households and 3,250 are lone-parent households.

Figure15  Core housing need, share by household type, 2016

# Single-person
household

i Lone-parent
household

# Couple, with children
household

= Couple, without
children household

= Multiple-family
household

Table5  Households in core need by household type, 2016

O =Hplolfe O DO U 0 o€ el A DI'e H dDIE O

Single-Person Households 34.7% 20,002 Bachelor or 1 bedroom
Lone-Parent Households 17.8% 3,254 2 or more bedrooms
Couples without Children* 0.5% 286 1 bedroom

Couples with Children 0.6% 271 2 or more bedrooms

9 This is calculated based on the National Occupancy Standard. The number of bedrooms required by a household is
derived according to the following (if household members meet more than one criteria, the first conditions listed
take precedence over the subsequent): a maximum of two persons per bedroom; household members living as part
of a married or common-law couple share a bedroom; lone parents have a separate bedroom; household members
aged 18 or over have a separate bedroom; household members under 18 years of the same sex share a bedroom;
household members under 5 years of the opposite sex share a bedroom if doing so would reduce the number of
required bedrooms. The exception to the above is a household consisting of one person living alone. Such a
household would not need a bedroom, i.e. they may live suitably in a bachelor apartment.

9 e smaron page | 24
112



Niagara Region Housing Market Analysis

As shown in Table 5, the household types most vulnerable to core housing need are single-person and
lone-parent households.

e Over 33% of single-person households are in core housing need.

o 18% of lone-parent households are in core housing need.

Breaking down housing need by tenure, we find that:
o there are more renter households in core need than owner households, despite there being about
three times more owner than renter households in Niagara Region; and
e renters experience higher rates than owners of all core housing need indicators (housing
unaffordability, unsuitability and inadequacy).

Of the components of core housing need, affordability is the main challenge in Niagara Region. Dwelling
unsuitability and inadequacy combined affect under 10% of all households, while 24% of households
spend over 30% of their total income on housing and are therefore considered to be living in unaffordable

housing.
Figure 16  Core housing need indicators by tenure (number of households), 2016
Number of Households in Core Housing Need
20,000 S I
15,000 13,601 b
T Wi
10,229 ! SN i ’
10,000 | bl
E 7,008
B 4,385
5,000 A : o [ 2'803 2,685 e .
3FTE 7
|
; | -
In Core Housing  Spending over Unsuitably Inadequately
Need 30% Housed Housed (Major
® Owner  # Renter Repairs)
AP e camaron Page | 25

113



Niagara Region Housing Market Analysis

Figure 17  Core housing need indicators by tenure (percentage of households), 2016

Percentage of Households in Core Housing Need
50%

48%
45%
40% |
35%
0,
25% ‘
20% ", - 16% aid
15% ; 1 : =
{ | (]
10% 7% | ' 6% 5% |
0% | | e ] - |
In Core Housing  Spending over Unsuitably Inadequately
Need 30% Housed Housed (Major
B Owner i Renter Repairs)

Core housing need affects households across all age groups, with tenure and household income level
being the main determinants, as shown in Table 6 and Tahle 7. Almost all households in core housing need
have a total household income below $52,700 (lower 4 income deciles), meaning that the maximum they
can afford to spend per month on shelter is $1,317.%° Of these, 70% of households in core need are in the
lower 2 deciles. The maximum these households can spend is $737 per month.

Table6  Core housing need by age of household maintainer and tenure, 2016

Age Range # in Core Housing % of Households | Renter Households % Renter Households

Need in Core Need 5 in Core Need in Core Need
15to 34 4,031 16% 2,909 24%
35to 64 12,201 12% 6,591 27%
65+ 7,598 13% 4,101 36%

9 This includes all costs required to make a shelter operational, e.g. rent, mortgage payments, property taxes, condo
fees, utilities, etc.

CANADIAN CENTRE FOR
ﬁ.ﬂ ECONOMIC ANALYSIS Page | 26

114



Niagara Region Housing Market Analysis

Table7  Households in core housing need by decile, 2016

Income Decile  Household Income level | Maximum affordable monthly # households in Niagara

housing cost in core need
Decile 1 Less than $19,400 $485 8,557
Decile 2 $19,400 to $29,499 $737 7,545
Decile 3 $29,500 to $39,799 $995 6,295
Decile 4 $39,800 to 552,699 51,317 1,429
Decile 5 $52,700 to 568,399 $1,710 4
Decile 6 $68,400 to $84,299 $2,107 0

Core housing need does not include homelessness. According to the Point in Time count conducted on
March 27, 2018 in Niagara Region, 625 people were experiencing homelessness in shelters, transitional
housing programs and unsheltered locations. This included 144 children aged 15 or younger.

4.2 AFFORDABILITY

A household is considered affordably housed, according to Statistics Canada and CMHC, if it is spending
less than 30% of gross income on shelter costs. This includes expenses to make shelter operational, e.g.
rent, mortgage, condo fees, property taxes, and utilities. It does not include any transportation-related
expenses such as car ownership or public transportation.

In the shelter affordability matrices in Figure 18 and Figure 19, household income is shown on the vertical
axis and monthly shelter costs on the horizontal axis. The number in each square is the sum of households
that have a specific combination of income and monthly shelter costs. The darker the square, the higher
the number of households with that combination. The diagonal blue line represents the affordability
threshold (shelter costs are 30% of total income), meaning that all households below the line are
considered affordably housed.

The concentration of household differs between the two figures — owner households are distributed
across many income levels and are mainly found below or at the affordability threshold, while renter
households are highly concentrated above the line and at household incomes below $40,000.

CANADIAN CENTRE FOR
w ECONOMIC ANALYSIS Page | 27

115



Niagara Region Housing Market Analysis

Figure 18  Affordability matrix — Owners, 2016

Niagara - Owner

Under $§10K
$10K to $19K
$20K to $29K
@
cE> $30K to $39K
£
T $40K to $49K
@]
'—
2 $50K to $59K
¥ o
b
3 $60K to $69K
T
$70K to $79K
$80K to $89K
$90K to $99K
oS o - - - s o @ )
g g 8 & 8 8 B 3
= = = o, o, 0,
Monthly Shelter Costs

Note: Only households with incomes under 5100,000 per year are included

CANADIAN CENTRE FOR
- ECONOMIC ANALYSIS

3000

2400

1800

1200

600

Page | 28

116



Niagara Region Housing Market Analysis

Figure 19  Affordability matrix — Renters, 2016

Niagara - Renter

3000
Under $10K |
$10K to $19K 101
2400
$20K to $29K | b
0] el
g $30K to $39K o
£ i 1800
© $40K to $49K %6
o - 4
'_-_ i
'—g $50K to $59K 1o
ﬁ 1200
3 $60K to $69K 136
T
$70K to $79K 0
600
$80K to $89K 7
$90K to $99K ]
0
S 8 8 § 8 § § & 8
. I~ =] o Tl e e} =} =1
o o e - € N i @ =2
8 g & 8§ & g8 g &
= = = &, &, o,
Monthly Shelter Costs

Note: Only households with incomes under $100,000 per year are included

Renter households in Niagara Region live in an unaffordable dwelling at higher rates than owner
households. Almost half of renter households in Niagara spend over 30% of income on shelter,
compared to 16% of owner households.

Households spending over 30% of income are located all over the Region but mainly concentrated in the

city cores.
CANADIAN CENTRE FOR -
\ﬁfﬁ ECONOMIC ANALYSIS Page | 29

117



Niagara Region Housing Market Analysis

Figure 20  Percentage of households spending over 30% of income on housing by DA, 2016™

Table8  Households spending over 30% of income on shelter, 2016

Household Type Owners Renters
Non census family (incl. singles) 31% 58%
Lone parent 25% 49%
Couple with children 11% 30%
Couple without children 11% 33%
All Household Types 16% 48%

It is important to note that spending over 30% of household income alone does not necessarily indicate a
need. For instance, some households may choose to spend a higher share of their income on housing to
live in a particular dwelling or neighbourhood, or to have access to more bedrooms, despite there being
an appropriate dwelling at a lower cost. Furthermore, households with lower incomes who have other

1 When interpreting this map, note that DAs have a population between 400 and 700. This results in rural DAs taking
up more visual space on the map, as rural municipalities have fewer DAs that are much larger in area while having
approximately equivalent populations to geographically smaller DAs in city centres.

gg CANADIAN CENTRE FOR Page | 30

ECONOMIC ANALYSIS



Niagara Region Housing Market Analysis

sources of wealth or low monthly expenses may also willingly choose to spend a higher share of their
income on housing.

4.3 CONCLUDING REMARKS

According to the most recent numbers, about 24,000 households in Niagara Region are in core housing
need.

e 13,600 of these are renters.
e Affordability is the main driver of housing need in the Region for all tenures.

o Rates of unsuitability and inadequacy are low overall.

o Core housing need predominantly affects single-person and lone-parent households
whether they rent or own, both single-earner household types, which reflects that
housing need is mainly a challenge of affordability.

e Similar rates of core housing need exist across most ages of household maintainers.

o Rates are slightly higher for households with a maintainer younger than 35 or older than

84.

Core housing need and affordability, as defined by spending 30% or more of income on shelter, have
limitations:

e Core housing need does not include the homeless population.

e Core housing need does not include any households living in dwellings that are not counted as
dwellings by the census.

e The definition of suitability is context-dependent and may not always be a reflection of true need.

e Affordability can overstate need (some people spend more by choice).

ECONOMIC ANALYSIS

dg CANADIAN CENTRE FOR Page | 31
L)

119



Niagara Region Housing Market Analysis

5.0 SUB POPULATION FOCUS

5.1 OLDER ADULTS

Niagara Region’s share of adults aged 65 years or older in the population is higher than the provincial
average. This population resides mainly in low-density housing (71%).

Figure 21  Share of population over 65 by dissemination area, 2016

The rate of core housing need among older adults aged 65 years or older is in line with the Regional
average across all age groups. Within this group, segments of the older adult population that have higher
rates of core need are:

e Single-person households, who comprise 96% of all older adult households in core need in Niagara
Region.

e Renter households, who are 5 times more likely to be in core housing need than owners.

e Households whose maintainer is age 85 years or older, 19% of which are considered to be in core
housing need.

CANADIAN CENTRE FOR
ﬁﬁ ECONOMIC ANALYSLS Page | 32

120



Niagara Region Housing Market Analysis

Figure 22  Older adult core housing need indicators (number of households) by age, 2016

Older Adult Households in Core Housing Need

10,000
9,000 | 55 to 64
| 65to 74
8,000 ® 75 to 84
7,000 « 85 and over
6,000
5,000
4,000
3,000
2,000
1,000 1 o
i 5y |
In Core Housing Spending over 30% Unsuitably Housed  Inadequately
Need Housed (Major
Repairs)

Figure23  Older adult core housing need indicators (percentage of households) by age, 2016

Percentage of Older Adult Households in Core Housing Need

30%
m 55 to 64
25% : B 65t0 74
#75t0 84
85 and over
20%
15%
10% K
5% N l
In Core Housing Spending over 30% Unsuitably Housed  Inadequately
Need Housed (Major
Repairs)
AP saamy o ron Page | 33

121



Table9  Percent of older adult households of given type in core housing need, 2016

Niagara Region Housing Market Analysis

Maintainer ‘ Single Person Census Households
55 to 64 36% 1%
65to0 74 34% 1%
75t0 84 27% 1%
85 and over 31% 2%

Table 10 Percent of older adult households of given type spending over 30% of income on
shelter, 2016

Maintainer

Single Person

- Census Households

© 55t064

43% 13%
65to 74 42% 12%
75to 84 35% 10%
85 and over 36% 10%

5.2 SINGLE-PERSON HOUSEHOLDS

Non-census households, which primarily consist of persons living alone, are the most common household
type in Niagara Region. They are also the great majority of households in core need, counting 20,000 in
2016. Among these households:

e  About half are between 35 and 64 years old.
e Qverone third are 65 and over,
e The remainder are under 35.

Figure 24  Single-person households in core need by age, 2016

Core Housing Need: Single-Person Households

CANADIAN CENTRE FOR
w ECONOMIC ANALYSIS Page | 34

122



Niagara Region Housing Market Analysis

5.3 LonNe PARENT HOUSEHOLDS

Lone-parent households are the second most likely household type to be in core need in Niagara Region.
The Region counts a total of 3,250 lone-parent households in core housing need. Of these households,
most are between the ages of 35 to 64, and one in four is below the age of 35.

Figure 25  Lone-parent households in core need by age, 2016

Core Housing Need: Lone-Parent Households

47 HNGEPSy Sk |
. 797 households
SR

65 and over, BB =
211 households
6%

Core need and affordability are a challenge for both renter and owner households of this type, although
renters have about twice the rate of core need and spending over 30% of income of their owner
counterparts, as shown in Figure 26.

CANADIAN CENTRE FOR
\ﬁa ECONOMIC ANALYSIS Page | 35

123



Figure 27

5.4

Niagara Region Housing Market Analysis

Figure 26  Lone parent core housing indicators by tenure (number of households), 2016

4,000
3,500
3,000
2,500
2,000
1,500
1,000

500

60%

50%

40%

30%

20%

10%

0%

IMMIGRANT AND ABORIGINAL POPULATIONS & OTHER PRIORITY SUBGROUPS

Lone Parent Households in Core Housing Need
3,718
i

2,712 |
|
|

et

1,345

| | 35s [

In Core Housing Spending over 30% Inadequately  Unsuitably Housed
Need Housed (Major

® Owner % Renter Repairs)

Lone parent core housing indicators by tenure (percentage of households), 2016

Percentage of Lone Parent Households in Core Housing Need

49%
25% 25% [ 1
o | ‘ o
13% | op % 11%

| =« [
! : TR |
In Core Housing Spending over 30% Inadequately  Unsuitably Housed

Need Housed (Major

B Owner o Renter Repairs)

Priority sub-populations whose housing needs Niagara Region seeks to address include immigrant and
aboriginal populations, as well as persons with a disability and students. However, there exists limited
publicly available data on the housing needs ofimmigrant and aboriginal populations at the present time,

o

CANADIAN CENTRE FOR
ECONOMIC ANALYSIS

Page | 36

124



Niagara Region Housing Market Analysis

and historical census data is generally not available for many of the combinations of parameters. For these
populations, forward projections are not possible. For persons with disabilities, no data regarding housing
needs are presently available, since the Canadian census does not presently collect information about
health and ability status. Capturing data on students presents its own set of challenges, notably because
a student’s permanent address may not be the same as their student address. For this reason, most census
data tables are not able to distinguish students specifically, creating a significant data gap regarding their
housing needs. The available data on immigrant and aboriginal subgroups’ income, employment and
housing needs in Niagara Region are presented below.

5.4.1 IMMIGRANT POPULATION

Data on immigration status are collected at the individual level, while housing data are collected at the
household level, which makes it difficult to consolidate immigration status with housing need. What is
available are data on date of immigration, ages, income levels, occupation types and level of education.

The immigrant population represents 18% of the total population in Niagara Region. Most of the
immigrant population arrived before 1981 and is above the age of 55. The immigrant population that
arrived after 2001 tends to be below the age of 55. A slightly higher percentage of immigrants who arrived
prior to the year 2001 have incomes in the lower deciles than the non-immigrant population, and this
difference increases as the immigration date become more recent (see Figure 28 through Figure 30).

Figure 28  Population that immigrated before year 2001 by income level, 2016

Population: Immigrated Before Year 2001
35,000

30,000
25,000

20,000

15,000

10,000

5,000

42%

25-34 35-44 45-54 55-64 65+
B Deciles 1-4 Deciles 5-10

CANADIAN CENTRE FOR
ﬁa ECONOMIC ANALYSIS Page | 37

125



Niagara Region Housing Market Analysis

Figure29  Population that immigrated in year 2001 or later by income level , 2016

Population: Immigrated 2001-2016
4,500

4,000
3,500
3,000
2,500
2,000
1,500
1,000

500

.

25-34 35-44 4554 55-64 65+
® Deciles 1-4 o Deciles 5-10

Figure30  Non-immigrant population by income level, 2016

Non-Immigrant Population

70,000
60,000
50,000
40,000
30,000
20,000
38%
10,000 43%
|
0
25-34 35-44 45-54 55-64 65+
® Deciles 1-4 @ Deciles 5-10

5.4.2 ABORIGINAL-IDENTIFYING POPULATION

Historical census data are generally not available for many of the combinations of parameters needed to
paint a complete picture of housing need among aboriginal-identifying persons. Data are available on
incomes, occupations, and housing suitability. These are presented below.

CANADIAN CENTRE FO
2 e s on page | 38



Niagara Region Housing Market Analysis

In the 2016 Census, 12,265 persons identified as aboriginal in Niagara Region. This represents 2.7% of the
total population, an increase from 1.0% in 1996. This population also skews significantly younger than the
general population; in 2016, 50% of the general population was under the age of 35, compared with 65%
of the aboriginal-identifying population (see Figure 31).

Figure 31  Aboriginal-identifying population by age, 1996-2016

Aboriginal-ldentifying Population

16,000
14,000
12,000
10,000

8,000 i

00 roE

4,000 7 e T

2,000 I

0 L
1996 2001 2006 2011 2016

®m Under 35 Population ~ ® 35+ Population

Aboriginal-identified persons have median total and employment incomes that are below the population
average (as seen in Figure 32), while the shares of the aboriginal-identifying population receiving any
income and employment income specifically are similar to the general population of Niagara Region
(Figure 33). Relating to housing need, households with an aboriginal-identified maintainer are more likely
than the general population to live in an unsuitable dwelling (i.e. with too few bedrooms). This holds true
for all age groups, as shown in Figure 34.

CANADIAN CENTRE FOR
ﬁlﬁ ECONOMIC ANALYSIS Page | 39

127



Niagara Region Housing Market Analysis

Figure 32  Income, aboriginal-identifying population (CMA), 2016
Median Income (S)
35,000
30,000
25,000
20,000
15,000
10,000

5,000

0
Median Total Income ($) Median Emploment
Income (8)

® Aboriginal Identity = Total Population

Figure 33  Share of population with any income and employment income, (CMA), 2016

With Income (% of People)
100%

80% )

60% |
o B
20%

% With Total Income % With Employment
Income

B Aboriginal Identity = Total Population

# CANADIAN CENTRE FOR
. ECONOMIC AMALYSIS

Page | 40

128



Niagara Region Housing Market Analysis

Figure 34  Population living in unsuitable dwelling by age and aboriginal identity, 2016

Population Living in Unsuitable Dwellings

| Aboriginal
Identity

= Non-Aboriginal
Identify

Bz 0. 5.

Otol4 15to24 25to34 35to44 45to54 55to64 65to74 75years All Ages
years years years years years years years and over

5.5 ConNcLUDING REMARKS

Many households in core need in Niagara Region are over the age of 65, as older adults represent a
significant share of the total population.

Households whose maintainer is 65 years or older:

o are 7,600 of the almost 24,000 households in core housing need;
e have similar rates of core housing need as the Regional average; and
e are more likely to be in core need if they live alone, rent, and/or are 85 years or older.

Lone parent households with any number of children, followed by people living alone are most likely to
be low-income under the LIM-AT measure. This corresponds to the two household types that make up
the majority of households in core housing need in Niagara and highlights the challenge of finding
acceptable housing on a single income.

Limited data regarding immigrant and aboriginal sub-populations are currently available, while no data
are available on the housing needs of persons with disabilities in Niagara Region. Keeping these data
challenges in mind, the data show that within the immigrant population:

e theincome distribution of immigrants who arrived before the year 2000 most resembles the non-
immigrant population in each age group;

e more recent immigrants have a higher instance of being low-income in each age group; and

e recent immigrants skew much younger than the overall population.

The aboriginal-identifying population:
e is much younger than the overall population;
o ami o on page | 41

129



Niagara Region Housing Market Analysis

e ismore likely to live in unsuitable dwellings than the non-aboriginal-identifying population; and
e hasa lower median income than the non-aboriginal-identifying population, while the percentage
of the population receiving any income and employment income is similar.

CANADIAN CENTRE FOR
\_ﬁq}) ECONOMIC ANALYSIS Page | 42



Niagara Region Housing Market Analysis

6.0 CONSULTATION FEEDBACK

6.1 WHAT WE HEARD

As part of this project, CANCEA presented the local housing and demographic data to each municipality
to elicit feedback and gain a local perspective on the trends and patterns seen in the data.

Local housing-related issues that were common to multiple local municipalities in Niagara are reported
by topic.

6.1.1 POPULATION AND HOUSEHOLDS
e  Minimum wage and service industry employees cannot find housing in the municipalities in
which they work. Many commute from neighbouring communities. Some large employers are
independently seeking ways to provide their employees with housing options.

o There is a need for more transportation infrastructure — in the larger cities, public transit is not
frequent enough to provide transportation to and from work for many workers. In smaller
municipalities, it does not reach the industries where people work.

6.1.2 HOUSING STOCK
e [n certain established neighbourhoods, there is resistance to development by long-term
residents, especially to medium and high-density development. This has localized development
in some municipalities to neighbourhoods that are newer or less established.

o Some smaller local municipalities that are looking to grow mentioned the costs associated with
servicing land as obstacles to new development.

6.1.3 HOUSING NEED
e In some municipalities that have aging hotels and motels, these are being used by residents for
long-term stays. This type of housing would not be captured in the data, and residents would
not be counted as being in core need or living in an inadequate dwelling. Although these provide
affordable options in the housing continuum, these “units” may be highly inadequate, needing
major repairs in order to meet the needs of those who live in them.

® |nsome municipalities, the older adult population is the primary or exclusive affordable housing
policy priority.

e The definition of suitahility used by CMHC and Statistics Canada was considered to be
potentially ineffective at capturing how well suited a dwelling is to its inhabitants.

6.2 LocAL PoLiCY INTERESTS

The main housing policy interests that were brought up in the course of consultations were the following:

\ CANADIAN CENTRE FOR
d.# 1Eco~o~uc ANALYSIS Page | 43

131



Niagara Region Housing Market Analysis

e Encouraging the creation of secondary suites as a way to provide additional rental housing in small
and mid-sized municipalities.

e Studying the incentives for developers to create additional affordable housing stock.

e Finding ways to overcome local reluctance towards mixed-density development.

e Discussing the importance of infrastructure investment and other creative servicing solutions.

6.3 DATA GAPS

In conversation with Niagara Region’s local municipalities, the following were identified as relevant data
gaps that, if filled, can help create a more complete picture of the local housing situation.

e The use of short-term rentals (such as Airbnb): this could affect rental and ownership rates seen
in the data in certain communities with active tourism industries.

e The use of motels as long-term, low-cost accommodations: understanding the number and
characteristics of the households that are housed in this way, as well as the features of these
units, can add to the discussion of housing need.

e Housing-specific data on particular priority subgroups, e.g. student, aboriginal, disabled, and
immigrant populations.

e Recent development in communities that have experienced significant growth since the last
census and its effects on housing stock and prices.*

12 Market prices and rents were added to the analysis as a result of these consultations.
CANADIAN CENTRE FOR
d.ﬂ ECONOMIC ANALYSIS Page | 44

132



Niagara Region Housing Market Analysis

7.0 KEY TAKE-AWAYS

e Niagara Region currently has about 24,000 households in core housing need. The key sub-groups
most affected include:

Renter households, 29% of which are in core housing need in the Region;

Singles, who represent 84% of the 24,000 households in core need;

o Lone parents, who represent 14% of the households in core need; and

o]

o Low-income households, specifically in deciles 1-4 who earn less than $52,700 per year.

e The types of housing needed by most households in core need are:
o Bachelor apartments and one-bedroom units for single-person households;
o 2 or more bedroom, family-friendly units for lone-parent households; and
o Affordable housing — spending $737 a month on shelter is unaffordable for 70% of all
households in core need.

e The Region’s aging population which is likely to increasingly skew older will also affect future
housing demand and housing need. The type of dwellings commonly considered appropriate for
this population would be 1-bedroom, senior-friendly accessible housing, suitable for couples and
single-person households. Transportation and location within the community may also be
important considerations.

e At the local level, an effective housing strategy requires considering how economic and
infrastructure policy interacts with housing.

o The type and location of housing development can affect the ability to attract labour to
the area, especially for industries requiring minimum-wage labour.

o Transportation infrastructure can ease labour mobility and widen the radius for people to
find housing.

o Palicies targeting housing, transportation and the economy can affect the type of growth
that the Region will experience and can either exacerbate trends identified or work to
minimize them.

CANADIAN CENTRE FOR
w r ECONOMIC ANALYSIS Page | 45

133



Niagara Region Housing Market Analysis

A. APPENDIX: COMPARISON TABLES

A.1. WITHIN NIAGARA REGION

POPULATION AND HOUSEHOLDS

Niagara St. Regional
Falls Catharines Fort Erie  Thorold = Average

Population growth rate (2016-2041) 41% 24% 96% 24% 40% 50% 34%
Household growth rate (2016-2041) 46% 31% 99% 30% 46% 56% 40%
Expected number of added residents,
thousands (2016-2041) 36.3 329 14.08 12.70 12.44 9.54 156.0
Expected number of added households,
thousands (2016-2041) 16.9 17.2 5.94 6.50 5.82 4.42 74.7
ARMNEEY Negie i st ety 22.7% 23.0% 7.9% 8.7% 7.8% 5.9% 100%
municipality
Under 25 population growth rate & i
(2016-2041) 24% 8% 83% 9% 24% 36% 19%
65 and over population growth rate

b/ 9 Y 1087 139% 105%
(2016-2041) 117% 93% 193% 89% % (]
Dependency ratio (2016) 52% 54% 51% 54% 58% 44% 55%

; - Couple with : Couple no ; :

Most common household type (2016) Singles Singles olifl it Singles hillciren Singles Singles
Proportion of households with a

% o % 34% 25% 31%
maintainer aged 65 and over (2016) ia =ith ki s ) i

w CANADIAN CENTRE FOR Page | 46
- ECONOMIC ANALYSLS

134



Niagara Region Housing Market Analysis

Niagara-on- Port Regional
Grimsby the-Lake Pelham Lincoln Colborne ~ Wainfleet Average

Population growth rate (2016-2041) 34% 51% 47% 32% 17% 13% 34%
Household growth rate (2016-2041) 39% 57% 51% 37% 23% 16% 40%
Expected number of added residents,
thousands (2016-2041) 9.35 8.94 8.05 7.81 3.09 0.83 156.0
Expected number of added
households, thousands (2016-2041) i i S - i - ol
S :

A G Reg o et DB 5.9% 5.5% 4.8% 4.9% 2.4% 0.6% 100%
municipality
Under 25 population growth rate
(2016-2041) 20% 26% 27% 16% 0% 3% 19%
65 and over population growth rate o . ’ i
(2016-2041) 107% 116% 119% 107% 78% 71% 105%
Dependency ratio (2016) 56% 72% 62% 59% 59% 49% 55%

Couple with Couple no Couple no Couple with . Couple no .
Most carimen hislsehold type (2016) children children children children Singles children Singhes
Proportion of households with a
(+] (] 0 20 4 (] 2 (] 319/
maintainer aged 65 and over (2016) 29% S Ram e e A% .
w | CANADIAN CENTRE FOR Page | 47
n ECONOMIC ANALYS]S

135



Niagara Region Housing Market Analysis

EMPLOYMENT & HOUSING

\ [ETETE] St. West

Regional
FortErie ~ Thorold Average

Falls Catharines Lincoln Welland

Employment & Income

Average individual income (2016) $37,869 $38,963 $44,967 $37,126 540,389 537,745 541,591

Median individual income (2016) 529,275 530,110 $36,591 $29,856 530,591 530,912 $31,433

gr‘;eglaogy;l;; ’(Jggfé?t'on full-time 31% 30% 41% 30% 30% 35% 32%

A 15+ lati i

(;:{Z;"’e HRpHiRUmBskRTIng 36% 38% 27% 41% 41% 329% 37%

Expected change in full time employed . » . = 5

15+ population (2016-2041) 2% L 3% - 20% i s

Expected change in non-working 15+ o o o . 0

population (2016-2041) 76% 55% 143% 50% 72% 86% 67%

Housing Stock & Demand

ggggn price, single-detached home $260,041 $280,193 $399,756 $229,411 $229,712 $259,834 $298,208

Median price, other (excluding 5+

storeyr;r[?d mobile) ( € $200,452 $210,341 $299,384 $185,858 $232,654 $224,261 $240,412

Average 1-bedroom rent (2016) S807 $831 N/A $757 §723 $693 (iﬁ:ﬁ)
26%

Rent increase, 1-bedroom (2006-2016) 28% 25% N/A 27% 24% 21% ( CM:\)

Low-density housing stock 72% 63% 90% 72% 85% 79% 73%

Medium-density housing stock 24% 26% 10% 21% 13% 19% 22%

High-density housing stock 4% 11% 0% 7% 2% 2% 5%

% Ownership 72% 67% 90% 70% 79% 73% 74%

% Renters 28% 33% 10.3% 30% 21% 27% 26%

% Core housing need 14% 16% 4% 16% 14% 12% 13%

: o
iiﬁi:dmg over 30% of income on 26% 28% 17% 26% 25% 25% 24%
\ﬁ) CANADIAN CENTRE FOR Page | 48
- FCONOMIC ANALYSIS

136



Niagara Region Housing Market Analysis

Niagara-on- Port Regional
Grimsby the-Lake Pelham Lincoln Colborne Wainfleet  Average
Employment & Income
Average individual income (2016) $53,634 $53,633 $55,892 $50,311 $39,282 $46,750 $41,591
Median individual income (2016) $41,527 $37,208 541,313 537,821 $29,977 $34,498 $31,433
Average 15+ population full-time 3% 29% 329 37% 28% 39% 329
employment (2016)
Average 15+ population not working 31% 399 36% 30% 42% 31% 37%
(2016) b
Expected change in full time employed .
15+ population (2016-2041) 17% 27% 25% 14% -1% 1% 17%
Expected change in non-working 15+ . =
population (2016-2041) 76% 91% 89% 79% 45% 37% 67%
Housing Stock & Demand
Medi - e
(281';;“ i Slige-detacrios e $449,564 $500,714 $400,196 $400,101 $200,065 $300,656 $298,208
Median price, other (excluding 5+
240,412
storey and mobile) $334,955 $401,199 $300,758 $299,958 $199,835 $329,452 $240
$801
Average 1-bedroom rent (2016) S768 N/A N/A $643 $728 N/A (CMA)
" 26%
Rent increase, 1-bedroom (2006-2016) 19% N/A N/A 2% N/A N/A (CMA)
Low-density housing stock 71% 87% 84% 81% 75% 99% 73%
Medium-density housing stock 27% 13% 15% 19% 22% 1% 22%
High-density housing stock 2% 0% 1% 1% 3% 0% 5%
% Ownership 86% 88% 89% 87% 74% 94% 74%
% Renters 14% 12% 11% 13% 26% 6% 26%
% Caore housing need 6% 6% 5% 4% 17% 5% 13%
% Spending over 30% of income on 18% 20% 15% 16% 259% 16% 24%
shelter
ﬁ CANADIAN CENTRE FOR Page | 49
P | ECONOMIC ANALYSIS

137



Niagara Region Housing Market Analysis

A.2. NEIGHBOURING MUNICIPALITIES

POPULATION & HOUSEHOLDS

Haldimand- Niagara

__Region

__ Norfolk

__Hamilton  _Peel _  Halton  Toronto

Population and Households
Population growth rate (2016-2041)* 10% 39% 34% 76% 18% 34%
Household growth rate (2016-2041) 13% 43% 38% 81% 22% 40%
Expected number of added residents,
11.
thousands (2016-2041) 1.0 219 501 431 529 156
Expected number of added households,
thousands (2016-2041) 5.89 95.8 175 162 258 74.7
Under 25 population growth rate
1 22% 9 (] 1 19%
(2016-2041) %o % 22% 61% 3% a
65 and over population growth rate o o 9
(2016-2041) 67% 131% 116% 180% 52% 105%
Dependency ratio (2016) 58% 50% 45% 53% 43% 55%
Family with Family with Family with Family with Non-census Non-census
Id t 201 " - y 2 5
Mast comman household type (2014) children children children children family family
Proportion of households with a 5
2 249 23% 31%
maintainer aged 65 and over (2016) 32 — =05 % ° i

Note: Growth is based on Places to Grow targets

ﬁ CANADIAN CENTRE FOR
ECONOMIC ANALYSIS
fi

Page | 50




EMPLOYMENT & HOUSING

Niagara Region Housing Market Analysis

Haldimand- Niagara
Norfolk Hamilton Peel Halton Toronto Region
Employment & Income
Average individual income (2016) $41,731 $43,966 542,651 564,762 $52,268 $41,591
Median individual income (2016) $33,265 $32,917 $30,715 $42,577 530,089 $31,433
Average 15+ population full-time 34% 34% 359% 40% 33% 32%
employment (2016)
Average 15+ population not working 359% 35% 39% 289% 359 37%
(2016) (] o (] ] o (]
Housing Stock & Demand
Median price, single-
(231:;" FrietSngle-detached e $288,920 $400,815 $697,183 $738,304 $800,687 $208,208
MaclE pics, Sther ascliig st $230,005 $324,885 $479,570 $473,364 $601,891 $240,412
storey and mobile)
5801
Average 1-bdr rent 2016 n/a 5810 $1,101 $1,160 51,137 (CMA)
Low-density housing stock 87% 60% 57% 64% 31% 73%
Medium-density housing stock 12% 24% 24% 25% 25% 22%
High-density housing stock 1% 16% 19% 11% 44% 5%
% Ownership 81% 68% 76% 81% 53% 74%
% Renters 19% 32% 24% 19% 47% 26%
% Core housing need 9% 15% 16% 9% 24% 13%
% Spending over 30% of income on 19% 26% 3% 24% 36% 24%
(4] (] (+]
shelter
w CANADIAN CENTRE FOR Page | 51
‘ ECONOMIC ANALYSIS

139



140



Ministry of Ministére des b r )
Municipal Affairs Affaires municipales
and Housing et du Logement

Office of the Minister Bureau du ministre _—r
Ontario

777 Bay Street, 17" Floor 777, rue Bay, 17° étage

Toronto ON M5G 2E5 Toronto ON M5G 2E5

Tel.: 416 585-7000 Tél. : 416 585-7000

July 22, 2019

Dear Head of Council:

RE: Provincial Policy Statement Review — Draft Policies

| am writing today to announce that my ministry is launching a consultation on proposed
policy changes to the Provincial Policy Statement (PPS). The PPS is an important
part of Ontario’s land use planning system, setting out the provincial land use policy
direction.

Municipalities play a key role in implementing these policies through local official plans,
zoning by-laws and other planning decisions. The Planning Act requires that decisions
on land use planning matters be “consistent with" the Provincial Policy Statement
policies.

The government is consulting on draft policy changes to:

e Encourage the development of an increased mix and supply of housing
Protect the environment and public safety
Reduce barriers and costs for development and provide greater predictability
Support rural, northern and Indigenous communities
Support the economy and job creation

The proposed PPS policy changes support the implementation of More Homes, More
Choice: Ontario’s Housing Supply Action Plan. The Action Plan includes a series of
distinct but coordinated initiatives to address housing supply, including a review of the
Provincial Policy Statement. The proposed PPS changes work together with other
recent changes to the land use planning system — including to the Planning Act through
Bill 108, More Homes, More Choice Act, 2019 (once proclaimed) and A Place to
Grow: Growth Plan for the Greater Golden Horseshoe.

For more information about the consultation, please visit
http://www.mah.gov.on.ca/Page215.aspx where you will find:
e Alink to the posting on the Environment Registry of Ontario (ERO #019-0279),
including the proposed Provincial Policy Statement and questions to consider
e Information on how to provide comments

The consultation is open for 90 days and closes on October 21, 2019.

sanl

141



o e

| look forward to hearing your ideas on the proposed changes to the Provincial Policy
Statement.

If you have any questions about the consultation, please contact the ministry at
planningconsultation@ontario.ca or by calling 1-877-711-8208.

Sincerely,

LA

Steve Clark
Minister

c¢: Planning Head and/or Clerks

142



Ci%of PE IC.@JOEI‘HE)
A JUL 16 2019
<Y CORPORATE SERVICES
| e -3 i . DEPARTMENT
! @Rﬁgmg Community Services
Our Focus: Your Future
Legislative Services
July 16, 2019
File #120203

Sent via Email: ann-marie.norio@niagararegion.ca

Ann-Marie Norio, Regional Clerk

Niagara Region

1815 Sir Issac Brock Way, P.O. Box 1042
Thorold, ON L2V 4T7

Dear Ms. Norio:
Re: Whistleblowing Policy

The Municipal Council of the Town of Fort Erie at its meeting of July 15, 2019 passed the
following resolution:

Whereas the Town of Fort Erie has policies in place to ensure that it is accountable to the
public for its actions and that its actions are transparent to the public, including the
Accountability and Transparency Policy outlined in By-law No. 195-07, and

Whereas whistleblowing by employees in local governments can bring critical knowledge
about misconduct and failed policy outcomes and priorities to the attention of politicians
and/or the public, and

Whereas the provincial government, as well as other municipalities and agencies in
Ontario, have in place policies and/or legislation that provide legal protection from
discriminatory or disciplinary action for employees who disclose wrongdoing of any kind in
the context of their workplace in good faith and to a competent authority, and

Whereas voters in the Regional Municipality of Niagara, including the Town of Fort Erie,
sent a strong message on October 22nd, 2018 for the need for accountability and
transparency in the way local governance is conducted, and

Whereas it is always desirable to build upon and enhance existing policies that further
strengthen public trust in the accountability and transparency of the way their local

government functions;
sl 2

143



Ann-Marie Norio, Regional Clerk

Page two

Now therefore be it resolved,

That: Council directs staff to prepare a report with respect to a whistleblowing policy for the

Town of Fort Erie, and further

That: The Municipal Council of the Town of Fort Erie fully supports whistleblowing and is
committed to protecting whistleblowers, the important information they provide and more

widely, the integrity of the whistleblowing processes. All persons who are considering
reporting their concerns in good faith can be assured that their concerns will be taken
seriously, their identity will be protected and, as an employee of our municipality, that they

will be protected from detrimental treatment, retaliation or employment harassment, and

further

That: This resolution be circulated to Niagara Regional Council, the Councils of the Local

Area Municipalities within the Regional Municipality of Niagara, and the Board of Directors
of the Niagara Peninsula Conservation Authority for their endorsement and support.

Trusting this information will be of assistance to you.

Yours very truly,

Carol Schofield, Dipl.M.A.

Manager, Legislative Services/Clerk
cschofield@forterie.ca

CSudik

.6 Niagara Local Area Municipalities Sent via email

Grant Bivol, Acting Clerk to Authority/Exec. Coordinator CAO & Board, Niagara Peninsula Conservation Autharity

Sent via email: ghivol@npca.ca

144



= | 0rold
43 L 19201
%&P@@ "

. CORPORATE SERVICES
Wheve Ships Climb The Mownian... DEPARTMENT

July 18, 2019

Honourable Doug Ford

Premier of Ontario

Room 281

Legislative Building, Queen's Park
Toronto, ON  M7A 1A1

doug.ford@pc.ola.org

Dear Premier Ford:
Re: Bill 115 - Beer Retailing in Ontario

Please be advised Thorold City Council, at its July 16, 2019 meeting, adopted the following
resolution:

Whereas the Ford government has introduced Bill 115 which cancels the Master Framework
Agreement (MFA) governing beer retailing in Ontario; and

Whereas the cancelling of MFA will cause the loss of jobs up to 7,000 Ontarians workihg for
the Beer Store and may cost taxpayers $1 billion in financial penalties; and

Whereas the legislation also threatens one of the world’s most successful recycling
programs and will certainly download the burden of recycling infrastructure onto local
communities.

Now therefore be it resolved that the City of Thorold and our community allies do everything”
in our power to oppose the changes brought about by Bill 115, and any other related
legislation, up to and including banning the sale of corner store beer or any other location
allowable upon the adoption of Bill 115, and do everything in our power to protect good
paying jobs at the Beer Store, maintain community safety through the responsible sale of
beer, and maintain the Beer Store’s recycling program.

Be it further resolved that a copy of this motion be sent to the Association of Municipalities of
Ontario (AMO), local members of Provincial Parliament, local members of Parliament and all
area municipalities.

City of Thorold
P.0. Box 1044, 3540 Schmon Parkway, Thorold, Ontario L2V 447
www, thorold.com
Tel: 805-227-6613




Page 2
Bill 115 — Beer Retailing in Ontario

Yours truly,

D D_C,U-LQLC_\'U o

Donna Delvecchio
City Clerk

DD:cd

ec: M. Dilwaria, Chief Administrative Officer

J. Burch, MPP, Niagara Centre, JBurch-ap@ndp.on.ca

W. Gates, Niagara Falls, WGates-gp@ndp.on.ca

J. Stevens, St. Catharines, JStevens-gp@ndp.on.ca

S. Qosterhoff, Niagara West, sam.ooterthoff@pc.ola.arg

V. Badawey, Niagara Centre, vance.badawey@parl.qc.ca

C. Bittle, St. Catharines, chris.bittle@parl.gc.ca

D. Allison, Niagara West, dean.allison@parl.gc.ca

Han. R. Nicholson, Niagara Falls, rob.nicholson@parl.gc.ca

A. Norio, Regional Clerk, Region of Niagara, Ann-Marie.Norio@niagararegion.ca

P. Vanini, Executive Director, AMO, pvanini@amo.on.ca
Local Area Municipalities

146



City of Port Colborne
Regular Committee of the Whole Meeting 20-19

Minutes
Date: July 22, 2019
Time: 6:40 p.m.
Place: Council Chambers, Municipal Offices, 66 Charlotte Street, Port Colborne

Members Present: M. Bagu, Councillor

E. Beauregard, Councillor

R. Bodner, Councillor

G. Bruno, Councillor

F. Danch, Councillor

A. Desmarais, Councillor

D. Kalailieff, Councillor

W. Steele, Mayor (presiding officer)
H. Wells, Councillor

Staff Present: D. Aquilina, Director of Planning and Development

B. Garrett, Director of Corporate Services

A. LaPointe, Manager of Legislative Services/City Clerk
C. Lee, Director of Engineering and Operations

S. Luey, Chief Administrative Officer

Also in attendance were interested citizens, members of the news media and WeeStreem.

1.

Call to Order:

Mayor Steele called the meeting to order.

Introduction of Addendum ltems:

Nil.

Confirmation of Agenda:

Moved by Councillor H. Wells
Seconded by Councillor M. Bagu

That the agenda dated July 22, 2019 be confirmed, as circulated or as

amended.
CARRIED.

147



Minutes - Regular Committee of the Whole Meaeting 20-19 Page 2 of 11

4, Disclosures of Interest:

Nil.

5. Adoption of Minutes:

(a) Regular meeting of Committee of the Whole 19-19, held on July 8, 2019

Moved by Councillor R. Bodner
Seconded by Councillor A. Desmarais

(a) That the minutes of the regular meeting of Committee of the Whole 19-
19, held on July 8, 2019, be approved as presented.
CARRIED.

6. Determination of ltems Requiring Separate Discussion:

The following items were identified for separate discussion:
ltem 1, 2, 4, 5, 6, and 11.

7. Approval of ltems Not Requiring Separate Discussion:

Moved by Councillor A. Desmarais
Seconded by Councillor G. Bruno

That Items 1 to 12 on the agenda be approved, with the exception of items
that have been deferred, deleted or listed for separate discussion, and the
recommendation contained therein adopted.

Items:

3, Engineering and Operations Department, Engineering Division, Report
2019-112, Subject: Young & Hopf-Wagner Drain

Committee of the Whole recommends:

That Project 2019-11 Young & Hopf-Wagner Drains be awarded to
CRL Campbell Construction & Drainage Ltd of Wainfleet, Ontario,
for the total tendered price of $696,497.90 plus applicable taxes.
Staff is directed to utilize the bid items as listed within the awarded
Tender Documents, in such a manner as to complete all required
works, all the while, keeping within the annual budget allocations by
Council; and

148



Minutes - Regular Committee of the Whole Meeting 20-19 Page 3 of 11

That funding for Project 2019-11 Young & Hopf-Wagner Drains be
financed on an interim basis, under GL Account: 3-560-33243-3328
and that staff be authorized to initiate billings back to the Municipal
Drains Watershed at the completion of the Watershed works; and

That a by-law, in which the City enters into a Contract Agreement
with the Contractor, be prepared upon final budget approval.

7. Planning and Development Department, Planning Division, Report
2019-117, Subject: Lorraine Road Property Sale

Committee of the Whole recommends:

That Council declares Part 2 and 6 on Plan 59R-10301 as surplus
to the City’s needs; and

That the City enter into an Agreement of Purchase and Sale with
Helen Lliodromitis for $230,000 plus HST and with Paul and
Kathleen Kuronen for $250,000 plus HST; and

That the Mayor, Clerk and City Solicitor be authorized to sign and
execute any and all documents respecting the sale of these
lands.

8. Planning and Development Department, Planning Division, Report
2019-119, Subject: Recommendation Report for Official Plan
Amendment D09-01-1S and Zoning By-law Amendment D14-03-19,
170 Welland Street

Committee of the Whole recommends:

That the Official Plan Amendment, attached to Planning and
Development Department, Planning Division, Report 2019-119 as
Appendix A, changing the designation of the property from “Parks
and Open Space” to “Industrial Areas”, be approved.

That the Zoning By-law Amendment, attached to Planning and
Development Department, Planning Division, Report 2019-119 as
Appendix B, rezoning the land from “P-CH” to “LI-51", be
approved.

That Planning staff be directed to prepare the Notice of Passing
in accordance with the Planning Act and circulate to all applicable
parties.

149



Minutes - Regular Committee of the Whole Meeting 20-19 Page 4 of 11

9. Engineering and Operations Department, Engineering Division, Report
2019-120, Subject: Information Report on Fees for the Engineering and
Operations Department

Committee of the Whole recommends:

That the Fees Schedule for 2019 be established as the 2018
rates and fees plus an adjustment for inflation, based on the
CANADATA index for 2019, (2.7% increase).

That Engineering and Operations staff be directed to track in
2019-2020, all actual costs, for labour, materials and equipment
required in performing a task or supplying a service and then use
that data to annually adjust the rates and fees schedules on an

annual basis.

10. Memorandum from Port Colborne Transit Advisory Committee Re:
Support of Entering into an Agreement with Regional
Transit

Committee of the Whole recommends:

That the recommendation by the Transit Advisory Committee that
the City of Port Colborne enter into an agreement with Regional
Transit for the purpose of increasing the shares of Provincial Gas
Tax, be supported, and that the Region be so notified.

12. Maple Leaf Strategies Re: Support for Rural Investment Tax Credit

Committee of the Whole recommends:

That the creation of a rural investment tax credit being advocated
by the Rural Opportunity and Investment Coalition (ROI), be
supported.

CARRIED.

8. Presentations:

Nil.

9, Delegations:

(a) Cynthia Skinner, on behalf of Friends of Port Colborne Lighthouses
(FOPCL), Proclamation National Lighthouse Day, August 7, 2019

150



Minutes - Regular Committee of the Whole Meeting 20-19 Page 5 of 11

10.

11.

12,

Cynthia Skinner presented a request for Council to proclaim August 7, 2019
as International Lighthouse Day. A copy of the presentation is attached.

Mayor’s Report:

Mayor Steele provided an update to Council including his recent visit to Prince
Edward Island and information on the upcoming Canal Days events within the

City.

Regional Councillor’s Report:

Nil.

Councillors’ ltems:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

Boardwalk on Pleasant Beach (Wells)
In response to concerns regarding the boardwalk at Pleasant Beach,
the Director of Engineering and Operations stated that the boardwalk is

not owned by the City, but that he would call the owners to request that
they make repairs.

Ditch Clearing on Chippawa Road (Desmarais)

In response to a request to clear a ditch on Chippawa Road, the
Director of Engineering and Operations stated that he would follow-up
with the request.

Removal of Signs (Bruno)

Councillor Bruno thanked Engineering and Operations Department staff
for the removal of more than two-hundred signs throughout the City.

Meadow Heights Weed Cutting (Bruno)

Councillor Bruno thanked By-Law Division staff for ensuring that weeds
in the Meadow Heights subdivision were cut properly.

Pine and Fielden Streets — Weed Cutting on Tree (Danch)

In response to a request to remove a large weed, the Director of
Engineering and Operations stated that staff will follow-up with the
request.

Main Street Concern for Pedestrians (Danch)

151



Minutes - Regular Committee of the Whole Meeting 20-19 Page 6 of 11

(9)

(h)

(1)

)

Councillor Danch requested that staff ensure they provide the right of
way to pedestrians while working.

Pleasant Beach Road Speed Limit (Bodner)

Councillor Bodner stated concerns with speeding on Pleasant Beach
Road. He will forward the concern to Mayor Steele for his meeting with
Niagara Regional Police.

Pleasant Beach Road Signage (Bodner)

In response to concerns with the lack of signage on Pleasant Beach
Road for cars who have been towed staff stated that they will look into
this.

Empire Road Construction (Bodner)

In response to concerns regarding stones on Empire Road, the Director
of Engineering and Operations stated that he would follow-up with the
concern.

Centennial Park and New Home Build (Bodner)

In response to concerns regarding the new build near Centennial Park,
the Chief Administrative Officer stated that the beach is groomed
weekly, park staff visit the beach at least twice daily, and that staff have
met with the home owner next to the park to address safety concerns.
Staff confirmed that the owner does own the beach in front of their
home and that any complaint regarding the fence would need to be
addressed by the NPCA.

18. Consideration of ltems Requiring Separate Discussion:

14

Motion by Councillor Wells Re: Review of Noise and Discharge of
Firearms By-laws

Moved by Councillor H. Wells
Seconded by Councillor R. Bodner

That the Director of Planning and Development be directed to update
By-Law No. 4588/119/04, being a by-law to regulate noise and By-
Law No. 2499/115/90, being a by-law to prohibit and regulate the
discharge of guns and other weapons within the City of Port
Colborne; and

162



Minutes - Regular Committee of the Whole Meeting 20-19 Page 7 of 11

That the review includes consideration of the distance from buildings
of discharge and provisions to include reactive targets, (Type S.2)
high hazard Special Purpose Explosives; and

That staff report back to Council with a recommendation in October
2019.
CARRIED.

2.  Motion by Councillor Wells Re: Review of Removal of Topsoil and
Placement of Fill By-law

Moved by Councillor H. Wells
Seconded by Councillor D. Kalailieff

That the Director of Planning and Development be directed to update
By-Law No. 5528/125/10 a by-law to prohibit or regulate the removal

of topsoil, the placing or dumping of fill and the alteration of the grade
of land within the city of Port Colborne; and

That the review includes the new provincial regulations, recent issues
with fill sites, state of the art fill sites, best practices of site alteration
techniques and processes and realistic fee structures proportional to
the complexity of the application and conditions related to the size and
nature of the site in question, and duration of the alteration; and

That staff report back to Council with a recommendation in the winter
of 2019.

Moved in amendment by Councillor G. Bruno
Seconded by Councillor D. Desmarais

That the main motion be amended by adding thereto the following:

That the Director of Planning and Development report back to Council
in August 2019 regarding funding availability for consulting services for
special projects within the department.

The vote was then taken on the main motion, as amended, as follows:

That the Director of Planning and Development be directed to update
By-Law No. 5528/125/10 a by-law to prohibit or regulate the removal

of topsoil, the placing or dumping of fill and the alteration of the grade
of land within the city of Port Colborne; and

That the review includes the new provincial regulations, recent issues
with fill sites, state of the art fill sites, best practices of site alteration
techniques and processes and realistic fee structures proportional to

1583



Minutes - Regular Committee of the Whole Meeting 20-19 Page 8 of 11

the complexity of the application and conditions related to the size and
nature of the site in question, and duration of the alteration; and

That staff report back to Council with a recommendation in the winter
of 2019; and

That the Director of Planning and Development report back to Council
in August 2019 regarding funding availability for consulting services for
special projects within the department.

CARRIED.

4, Engineering and Operations Department, Engineering Division,
Report 2019-113, Subject: Schihl Municipal Drain Meeting to
Consider

Neal Morris, P. Eng. Of K. Smart Associates Ltd presented to Council
information regarding the Schihl Municipal Drain and answered questions
as required.

Moved by Councillor R. Bodner
Seconded by Councillor E. Beauregard

That the Mayor and Clerk be directed to execute a by-law to
provisionally adopt the Schihl Municipal Drain Engineer’s Report,
dated March 28, 2019, prepared by Neal Morris, P. Eng. of K. Smart
Associates Limited, under Section 4, Chapter D.17 of the Drainage
Act R.S.0. 1990.

That staff be directed to advance the Schihl Municipal Drain
Engineer's Report to that of the Court of Revision, as per Section
46(1), Chapter D.17 of the Drainage Act R.S.0O. 1990.

That Councillor Wells and Councillor Bodner be appointed as a
member of the Schihl Municipal Drain Court of Revision and Mayor
Steele be appointed as an alternate.

CARRIED.

5. Community and Economic Development Department, Parks and
Recreation Division, Report 2019-114, Subject: By-law Exemption
Request — Canal Days Marine Heritage Festival Bass Pro Outdoor
World Shooting Range

Moved by Councillor H. Wells
Seconded by Councillor A. Desmarais

That a temporary exemption to By-law 2499/115/90, Being a By-
law to Prohibit and Regulate the Discharge of Guns and Other

154



Minutes - Regular Committee of the Whole Meeting 20-19 Page 9 of 11

11.

Weapons within the City of Port Colborne be approved,
specifically for the purpose of permitting Bass Pro Outdoor World
to offer a BB gun shooting range attraction during the 2019 Canal
Days Marine Heritage Festival, as outlined in Community and
Economic Development Department, Parks and Recreation
Division, Report 2019-114, Subject: By-law Exemption Request -
Canal Days Marine Heritage Festival Bass Pro Outdoor World
Shooting Range.

CARRIED.

Corporate Services Department, Clerk’s Division, Report 2019-116,
Subject: Appointments to Boards and Committees

Moved by Councillor M. Bagu
Seconded by Councillor E. Beauregard

That Nancy Busch be appointed to the Accessibility Advisory
Committee for a term ending December 21, 2023.

That Wade Smith and Gregg Dame be appointed to the Active
Transportation Committee for a term ending December 31, 2023.

That Kevin Reles and Angela Doyle be appointed to the
Economic Development Advisory Committee for a term ending
December 31, 2023.

That Trent Doan, Steven Rivers, and Norbert Gieger be appointed
to the Environmental Advisory Committee for a term ending
December 21, 2023.

That Nancy Busch and Heidi Grzesina be appointed to the Senior
Citizen Advisory Council for a term ending December 31, 2023.

That Jack Hellinga be recommended to Council of the Region of
Niagara to be appointed to serve on the Niagara Peninsula
Conservation Authority Board.

CARRIED.

Memorandum from the Environmental Advisory Committee, Re: Vale
Community-Based Action Plan

Moved by Councillor G. Bruno
Seconded by Councillor H. Wells

That Council supports the recommendation of the Environmental
Advisory Committee as follows;

155



Minutes - Regular Committee of the Whole Meeting 20-19

That whereas Vale and the Ministry of the Environment,
Conservation and Parks (MECP) disagree on the application of
Ontario Regulation 153/04 to lands where Vale’s proposed action
plan applies and this may have profound implications where
landowners apply to develop their lands, and;

The Port Colborne Environmental Advisory Committee, therefore,
recommends to Council that staff be directed to examine the
additional planning and design requirements, if any, where
applications for approval under the Planning Act are concerned in
the area to which the Vale’s action plan applies. The review
should determine what additional investigations and potential
remedial actions the Region of Niagara, the Regional Health
Department or its successor, and the MECP may require during
the review of planning applications when a landowner makes
application under the Planning Act to develop their lands. This
review should also include comments from each of Regional
Planning and Public Health staff and the MECP as to what their
requirements may be and where they could apply these, if any
are required, be supported, and that the Region be so notified.

Moved in referral by Councillor G. Bruno
Seconded by Councillor H. Wells

That consideration of the Memorandum from the Environmental

Advisory Committee, Re: Vale Community-Based Action Plan be
referred to the Director of Planning and Development for review;
and

That the Director of Planning and Development report back with
comments to Council on August 26, 2019 Committee of the Whole
meeting.

CARRIED.

14. Notice of Motion:

13.

Councillor Desmarais provided notice of her intention to introduce a motion at the
August 12, 2019 Committee of the Whole/Council meeting with respect to
becoming a living wage employer.

Adjournment:

Moved by Councillor F. Danch
Seconded by Councillor E. Beauregard

Page 10 of 11

156



Minutes - Regular Committee of the Whole Meeting 20-19 Page 11 of 11

That the Committee of the Whole meeting be adjourned at approximately
7:44 p.m.
CARRIED.

AL/

157



ey Morna B&\{ Qu\\ Colborme

[+ s yood ol hack o rzqoest Ral Cour®T Gguin
dacore  Ligt HoweDuy G P@:\ Glhenne Sor 7Y fugust

Qo W é@;o BYR  cornmuiines L‘L_,IO-QL 3 wides n C&Mmﬁﬂ%
Gﬁ\x¥\\@uam ond. cus Cohneced \(ﬁLs.\rot‘i' LA

P Lkﬁ\r\‘r_\\ﬁ\lﬁ loows oo sy @ standond Qodwe, ond g

Mogor dnouss dusrtng Qo Ways . Yy had anawen gaer
polectial dnas 00t 0l Sesds do dbbin Lhwal wam-
voootRoy Geeensy | LL%HV Yene  coluwe. o he a W\Q(VF;) r wold-
e, dnews, Yo oeuld Q0 Do Cosnal h@qs Qna, L\L&\;&-\r\m&(&
@c:w\ QP@@@\QL( Calohndled - and ol ‘\=QQ "%\P& A—%& s syt
highthowsshased ond @laboctad o oadd wo b, Waw Radulo

badhdRowe vsssland 15 acsuple teaske lalur iAo ust, Van

m,@ clubs opurie Y_w»m U@W@@Mﬂ l'éiQVLdeCl " eSS
aud gresiiigs worddwido. And e den'} Jost hale ong |-
heuso - Lo hous. 3, Q\)S&Ms\ Gy M\Qﬂ\@\\. - 14&51\/\ radups —
Sow dwold WWIT il Robege. hong obsoldn,. Det.
bolan o voo) disadtor Ocaurs, Col @Mﬂzs leng daod, ‘18
o how, adio &JU\M\Q\ aud TR calle Fou- | ond elid,
And s is a Qrowp 00 ﬂm&&m. 20, 3 L%\\z\rm
E&gu@ﬁ Ouponda O %LC{‘Q ﬂw@ﬁ\_—m W oLoT Qh{hm.
sy 1) "(“JLGLB@\(\C\&?\-Q Occess ko Q k@lﬁvk\%u&% u)\TP\Qqu o
o vued, o ukclude an 9ducsMmal Q@mfpomw‘h. et

o Sc—b@@\ ®Q,Urt;‘ S, g q @T@ﬂ\ all 0&1 ouy gckf@@ﬁs
and ot o, %Ocmtﬁ &(\Eﬂfﬂtm aloout s @mﬁc %&mf |
\rﬁmg%gf /)/L&gm %'&LWL cnd &Qdo\ﬁ

; 158



C_mﬁ Nows oW e Lo @U\C&‘-ﬂliu\cr \ltm:} Qoﬂ;s} (,f)[\/ Q BW\@_H
O PGUP é% L olndoers Coudd mean %L&Q\\ Q \(m%e Sgcda_
opOeTion | Q&;@&L‘ \‘v%q Cogudd 08} P—)t\-\_ \D\q UNCRO 68

Re QL ad TR visibore coflor Yioe coudd be QM}\L%&
%U‘&oiﬁm A Conar e fars . Stsnasy %\“&Qﬂo, botR hic b&[
angl Ysownm  Napors LLSJ[I;%\FRM;!“ Upsilis o Wow
o oxammd, N nd TRe Volundear Qrowp woul & “Ron Agke -
on o b&w@ YR Scones ‘M\pp@n_M nale,

Nowo, “tRak ot ) Rboy . fudls no corsbuaed Y kaepung
heme, omd e & Qb q R\\Q} , N\oum{ U%\r\w\mm QuAe i
Bals, R Quabode Ught Rome. w reslored - and R
Do puiod oo curs, Loks e 0nision whed Quus

e sly 1o tRLeat o hdtespler midas Brow

B eedcusall M&R}u& T Do ON. |

Tor nows l O\ %\acﬁ We Can Qd(_nmw(ndlg&

L\x gﬁu{?MQﬂ

H—Q& b‘/\(do DU
Gﬁ_ i m&%j&kﬂ@%g&ﬁ)

189



N

! . T

PORT COLBORNE

K. SMART ASSOCIATES LIMITED
CONSULTING ENGINEERS & PLANNERS

T

FORFERIE

File No. 02-210

160



PROJECT BACKGROUND

¢ K.Smart was appointed in 2002 to prepare a Section 4 report to resolve the flooding
problems along the ditch.

— Environmental consultations

— Five public meetings

— Landowner flooding concerns

— Discussion between Town of Fort Erie and City of Port Colborne

* The proposed drain route follows the route of an existing 1909 Award Drain.

161



o e wra —
/ g [Seasim CON 15 NR # CON 14 NR [\
- 2 0 T N | i SRS . R i
CITY 0ff PORT COLBORNE ; (mumgmstose e | [ 3
’ g 7

WATERSHED

=114 s i |
*
Py = e PLAN
Z IE - i (% LA
{ i = 'i' T = 1] ”h m
s ? D Bl L ] I i w— s
e L A9 S31-167 @
o ) ——— "W cenrpay RALWAY) B Hl M1=172-22 4D 31166 2 31-148 s Bl Koo Rl
= -Ralayy 172~ 31-1e547 @ g5
o -! T 3 -172-24 318517 A& aba & &
§ ,T-@D an 3 0 6-456 s oD A T ¥ g ( 3 :
2 g 6-113 i R9PE G ra— 7 i l
v Py s 1 1t e g o 5
| § il 35 P 3
2 &= mi @

!-_;l

T

===[ebris Removal

a-162-0
ap OpED

oK ROAD

L BLACK CREEK
DRAIN 2014
'\L—..-::_::-_—_——w—»— m—=Ditch
Excavation

Fe ek
0 0 ERIE

3-137-m

HOLLOWAY oF
(TOVMLINE RD.) | [Ray ROAD @vn:?“
!

E =162 mﬁfr‘& O By T, ST POINT ABNO NOAS. CROSSING,
5 oy 177.265
[T s
g5 @ e i m== VVatershed
'-:—;,g,‘: : | B Boundary
: =k J1-160-04 Kﬂ:ﬁsm'&nmwummmu

- 1 4

i — tZ::;ﬁFJ—L\;J?
‘—2'"—‘—*7‘:.-?_

e ——— -

162



PROJEGT DETAIL BREAKDOWN

* Total length of drain:
— Main Drain 3,54Im

* Total watershed area affected:
— Main Drain 299.5 ha

* Total estimated cost of the project (including Net HST): $ 392,980

* Total estimated construction costs (excluding HST): $ 222,750
* Total City of Port Colborne assessment: $ 66,486
* Total Town of Fort Erie assessment: $ 72291
* Total Regional assessment: $44,777
* Total landowners assessment (City of Port Colborne): $ 71,763
* Total landowners assessment (Town of Fort Erie): $ 137,663

* There are two special assessments to the roads.

* Burger Road $ 25,235
* Regional Road 98 $ 63,335

163



OBJECTIVE OF MEETING

* This meeting is to provide landowners and council the opportunity for questions to the
engineer on aspects of the design (size and alignment of the drain, etc.).

 Allow landowners opportunity to add or remove their name from the petition.

— If landowners remove their names from the petition the engineer must determine if petition is still
valid.

* No assessment appeals will be considered at this meeting, but will be heard by the Court of
Revision (later date to be determined).

COUNCIL ACTIONS

* Council can refer the report back to the engineer to make changes or

* Council can give first and second reading to the by-law and set a date for the Court of
Revision

164



TR

o TR o

THANK YOU
QUESTIONS

K. SMART ASSOCIATES LIMITED

CONSULTING ENGINEERS & PLANNERS

RAR

PORT COLBORNE

e B e i e AT L T L S G e R T AR TN
e s N e S S STl AT R TR

R S

Ty
= s

165



This page intentionally left blank.

166



N

City of Port Colborne
Regular Meeting of Council 22-19

H Monday, August 12, 2019
following Committee of the Whole Meeting
PORT COLBORNE Council Chambers, 3™ Floor, 66 Charlotte Street

Agenda
Call to Order: Mayor William C. Steele
Introduction of Addendum Items:
Confirmation of Agenda:
Disclosures of Interest:
Adoption of Minutes:
(a)  Special meeting of Council 20-19, held on July 22, 2019.
(b)  Regular meeting of Council 21-19, held on July 22, 2019.
Determination of ltems Requiring Separate Discussion:
Approval of Items Not Requiring Separate Discussion:

Consideration of Iltems Requiring Separate Discussion:

Proclamations:
(a) Niagara Ice Dogs Day in Port Colborne

10. Minutes of Boards, Commissions & Committees:

(a)  Minutes of the Grant Policy Committee of February 13, 2019

11. Consideration of By-laws:

12. Adjournment:

167



Council Agenda August 12, 2019

Council Items:

Notes Item | Description / Recommendation

WCS MB EB 1. | Motion by Councillor A. Desmarais Re: Living Wage Employer

RB GB FD Whereas more and more people working for low wages are facing
impossible choices such as whether to buy food or heat the house,
AD DK HW whether to feed the children or pay the rent. The results can be

spiralling debt, constant anxiety and long-term health problems. In
many cases the adults in a family are working long hours, often at two
or three jobs, just to pay for basic necessities, and

Whereas the living wage is the hourly rate of pay that enables wage
earners living in a household to:
* Feed, clothe and provide shelter for their family

* Promote healthy child development

» Participate in activities that are an ordinary element of
life in the community

= Avoid the chronic stress of living in poverty, and

Whereas the living wage for the Niagara Region has been calculated
to be $17.99 per hour (The Niagara Poverty Reduction Network —
Calculating the Living Wage in the Niagara Region 2018), and

Whereas we, the Corporation of the City of Port Colborne strive to
make decisions and take actions that have a positive impact on our
community, our staff, and the people we serve.

Therefore Be It Resolved That:

The Corporation of the City of Port Colborne becomes a Living Wage
Employer at the Supporter Level immediately; and

That Council directs Chief Administrative Officer Scott Luey to work
with responsible departments to achieve Leader Level status at the
time of the 2020 budget deliberations.

Note: Notice of Motion was given at the July 22, 2019 Council
Meeting.

168




Council Agenda

August 12, 2019

WCS MB EB Engineering and Operations Department, Engineering Division,
Report 2019-124, Subject: Clarence Street Crosswalk,

RB  GB FD Investigation Regarding Safety Concerns

AD DK HW That staff be directed to implement Option “A”, the temporary
installation of median delineators on Clarence Street, east and west
of Catharine Street and to install additional signage stating “Stop for
Pedestrians”, at an estimated installation price of $3,000, the funds
to cover the cost of this works be taken from G/L # 0-500-74210-
32185.

WCS MB EB Chief Administrative Officer Department, Report 2019-126,
Subject: Transit Update

RB GB FD

K HW That Chief Administrative Officer Report 2019-126, Subject: Transit

AD DK H Update, be received for information.

WCS MB EB Planning and Development Department, Planning Division,
Report 2019-122, Subject: Recommendation Report: Proposed

RB  GB FD Expansion of the Downtown Central Business District
Community Improvement Plan

AD DK HW
That the expansion of the project area for the Downtown Central
Business District Community Improvement to include 176 Elm Street,
be approved.

WCS MB EB Planning and Development Department, Planning Division,
Report 2019-123, Subject: Environmental Advisory Committee

RB GB FD Memorandum on the Vale-Community-Based Action Plan

AD DK HW That the Director of Planning and Development be directed to send a
letter to the Ministry of the Environment, Conservation and Parks
requesting clarification with respect to the safe soil levels of the Port
Colborne Community Based Risk Assessment Chemicals of Concern
and levels for use in Ontario Regulation 153/04.

WCS MB EB Planning and Development Department, Planning Division,
Report 2019-127, Subject: Proposed Development Agreements

RB  GB FD for Lawrence Barnai, 1628 Minor Road

AD DK HW

That two development agreements be entered into with Lawrence
Barnai for 1628 Minor Road and that the Mayor and Clerk be
authorized to sign and execute said agreements.

169



Council Agenda August 12, 2019

Miscellaneous Correspondence

WCS MB EB | 7. | Memorandum from Nancy Giles, EA to CAO and Mayor and
Staff Liaison to the Grant Policy Committee Re:
RB GB FD Recommendations of Grant Policy Committee

AD DK HW That the memorandum from Nancy Giles, EA to CAO and Mayor and
Staff Liaison to the Grant Policy Committee Re: Recommendations
of Grant Policy Committee, be received for information; and

That donation/sponsorship requests be approved for a total of $10,
325 for the second allocation for the year 2019 as follows:

Community Living Port Colborne Wainfleet — to provide financial
assistance to the children of Port Colborne who are unable to
register for recreation programs due to lack of funds - $1,700

Friends of Port Colborne Lighthouses — to assist with the cost of
insurance to allow tours of the Port Colborne Lighthouses - $1,400

Friends of Roselawn Centre — to assist with the cost of purchasing
a new stove for the Roselawn Centre - $1,200 (Note: these funds will
only be disbursed if the City proceeds with the project)

Niagara Nutrition Partners — to assist with the purchase of food to
run the nutrition programs in Port Colborne schools - $2,500

Port Colborne Fair Trade Town Committee — to purchase a new
banner, advertising and printing for the Fair Trade Crawl and a 10
year celebration cake - $725

Port Colborne Historical & Marine Museum Auxiliary — to assist
with renovations to Arabella’s Tea Room - $2,800.

WCS MB EB | 8. | Bryan Elliott, Ice Dogs Game Coordinator Re: Request for
Proclamation of Niagara Ice Dogs Day in Port Colborne

RB GB FD
That Friday, August 30, 2019 be proclaimed as “Niagara Ice Dogs
AD DK HW Day” in the City of Port Colborne, in accordance with the request
received from Bryan Elliott, Ice Dogs Game Coordinator.

WCS MB EB 9. Rankin Construction Inc. Re: Peer Review for Port Colborne
Quarries Site Alteration Permit

RB GB FD

That the correspondence received from Tom Rankin, P. Eng., CEO
AD DK HW Rankin Construction Inc. Re: Peer Review for Port Colborne
Quarries Site Alteration Permit, be received for information.

170




Council Agenda

August 12, 2019

WCS MB EB | 10. | Vance Badawey, Member of Parliament, Niagara Centre Re:
SME Project Stream of the Climate Action Incentive Fund for

RB  GB FD Small and Medium Sized Businesses

AD DK HW That the correspondence received from Vance Badawey, Member of
Parliament Niagara Centre Re: SME Project Stream of the Climate
Action Incentive Fund for Small and Medium Sized Businesses, be
received for information.
Click on the attached link to view the news release and application
details: https://www.canada.ca/en/environment-climate]
change/news/2019/07/sma[|—and-medium—sized-businesses-in-ontario1
hew-brunswick-manitoba-and-saskatchewan-can-now-apply-for-funding/
for-energy-saving-projects.html

WCS MB EB | 11. | Niagara Housing Statement Final Summary Report (Report PDS
27-2019)

RB GB FD -

© That the correspondence received from the Niagara Housing

AD D Statement Final Summary Report, be received for information.

WCS MB EB | 12. | Ministry of Municipal Affairs and Housing Re: Provincial Policy
Statement Review — Draft Policies

RB GB FD

AD DK HW That the correspondence received from Steve Clark, Minister,

Ministry of Municipal Affairs and Housing Re: Provincial Policy
Statement Review — Draft Policies, be received for information.

Outside Resolutions — Requests for Endorsement

WCS MB EB | 13. | Town of Fort Erie Re: Whistleblowing Policy
RB GB FD That the resolution received from the Town of Fort Erie Re:

AD DK HW Whistleblowing Policy, be received for information.

WCS MB EB | 14. | City of Thorold Re: Bill 115 — Beer Retailing in Ontario

it GE FD That the resolution received from the City of Thorold Re: Bill 115 —
AD DK HW Beer Retailing in Ontario, be received for information.

Responses to City of Port Colborne Resolutions

171



https://www.canada.ca/en/environment-climate-change/news/2019/07/small-and-medium-sized-businesses-in-ontario-new-brunswick-manitoba-and-saskatchewan-can-now-apply-for-funding-for-energy-saving-projects.html

Council Agenda

August 12, 2019

Consideration of By-laws
(Council Agenda Item 11)

By-law No. Title

6710/74/19 | Being a By-law to Authorize Entering Into Two Development
Agreements with Lawrence Barnai regarding 1628 Minor Road

6711/75/19 | Being a By-law to Amend By-law 1847/112/86, as Amended, to Permit
an Expansion to the Downtown Central Business District Community
Improvement Plan Project Area to include 176 Elm Street

6712/76/19 | Being a By-law to Adopt, Ratify and Confirm the Proceedings of the
Council of The Corporation of the City of Port Colborne at its Regular
Meeting of August 12, 2019

172



The Corporation of the City of Port Colborne
By-law No. 6710/74/19

Being a by-law to authorize entering into two
development agreements with Lawrence Barnai
regarding 1628 Minor Road

Whereas The Council of the Corporation of the City of Port Colborne is
desirous of entering into two development agreements with Lawrence Barnai
regarding the property legally known as Concession 2 Part of Lot 23 in the City of
Port Calborne in the Regional Municipality of Niagara; municipally known as 1628
Minor Road.

Now therefore the Council of The Corporation of the City of Port Colborne
enacts as follows:

1. That The Corporation of the City of Port Colborne enters into two
Development Agreements with Lawrence Barnai, which development
agreements are attached hereto as Schedule "A" and Schedule “B";

2. That the Mayor and the Clerk are hereby authorized and directed to sign the
said development agreements and the Clerk is hereby authorized to affix
the Corporate Seal thereto.

Enacted and passed this 12th day of August, 2019.

William C. Steele
Mayor

Amber LaPointe
City Clerk

173




Schedule "A"

THIS DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT made this day of ,2019.

BETWEEN:

LAWRENCE BARNAI
hereinafter referred to as the "OWNER";

and

THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF PORT COLBORNE
hereinafter referred to as the "CITY";

WHEREAS the Owner desires to develop the lands described in Schedule “A" attached
hereto (hereinafter referred to as the "Lands”);

AND WHEREAS on December 11, 2018 the Committee of Adjustment for the City
approved the creation of one residential building lot (Application B14-18-PC);

AND WHEREAS the Regional Municipality of Niagara (hereinafter referred to as the
“Region”) requires a Development Agreement between the Owner and the City regarding
specific conditions and processes to be followed during development of the Lands;

NOW THEREFORE the parties hereto agree as follows:

1 The Owner hereby warrants that it is the registered Owner of the Lands described
in Schedule “A" to this Development Agreement.

2. The Owner agrees that upon the execution of this Development Agreement, the
Lands shall be charged with the performance of the terms of this Development
Agreement and that the performance of such terms shall be binding upon the
Owner, its executors, administrators, successors, assigns, heirs, and successors
in title.

3. The Owner shall indemnify and save harmless the City from and against all
actions, causes of action, interest, claims, demands, costs, charges, damages,
expenses, and loss, which the City may at any time bear, incur, be liable for,
sustain or be put to for any reason of, or on account of, or by reason of, or in
consequence of, the City, as the case may be, entering into this Development
Agreement.

4, The Owner shall undertake or implement all requirements in Paragraphs 5§, 6, 7
and 8 of this agreement prior to any tree removal, construction or site alteration to
the satisfaction of the Regional Municipality of Niagara.

5. A Tree Savings Planis to be completed in accordance with definition 1.36 of the
Niagara Region Tree and Forest Conservation Bylaw (By-law No. 30-2008) and
approved by Niagara Region. The Plan shall demonstrate that building envelopes
will be focused on areas outside of the woodland, where possible. This is to be
done in conjunction with the site plan and grading plan.

6. The design of the new lots shall incorporate all Mitigation Measures identified in
section 7.0 (page 22) of the Environmental Impact Study (EIS) prepared by Colville
Consulting Inc., dated October 2018 onto all applicable plans and drawings.

s In addition to the Mitigation Measures identified in the EIS by Coleville Consulting,
the design of the new dwellings shall mitigate any impacts of light spillage on the
woodland through design of exterior lighting that is shielded to project light

174



downward instead of skyward.

8. All new lots shall include a tertiary septic system for denitrification and water supply
by cistern.
9. The Owner agrees and acknowledges that the City shall register this Development

Agreement on title to the Lands and that such registration may only be removed

with the written consent of the City and the Region.

SIGNED, SEALED & DELIVERED
IN THE PRESENCE OF:

OWNER

Lawrence Barnai

THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY
OF PORT COLBORNE

William C Steele, Mayor

Amber LaPointe, Clerk

175



SCHEDULE “A" = THE LANDS

Part 2 on Plan 59R-16444

On the West Side of Minor Road

In the City of Port Colborne

In the Regional Municipality of Niagara

176



Schedule "B"

THIS DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT made this day of ,2019.

BETWEEN:

LAWRENCE BARNAI
hereinafter referred to as the "OWNER”;

and

THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF PORT COLBORNE
hereinafter referred to as the “CITY™;

WHEREAS the Owner desires to develop the lands described in Schedule “A" attached
hereto (hereinafter referred to as the "Lands”);

AND WHEREAS on December 11, 2018 the Committee of Adjustment for the City
approved the creation of one residential building lot (Application B13-18-PC);

AND WHEREAS the Regional Municipality of Niagara (hereinafter referred to as the
"Region”) requires a Development Agreement between the Owner and the City regarding
specific conditions and processes to be followed during development of the Lands;

NOW THEREFORE the parties hereto agree as follows:

1.

The Owner hereby warrants that it is the registered Owner of the Lands described
in Schedule A" to this Development Agreement.

The Owner agrees that upon the execution of this Development Agreement, the
Lands shall be charged with the performance of the terms of this Development
Agreement and that the performance of such terms shall be binding upon the
Owner, its executors, administrators, successors, assigns, heirs, and successors
in title.

The Owner shall indemnify and save harmless the City from and against all
actions, causes of action, interest, claims, demands, costs, charges, damages,
expenses, and loss, which the City may at any time bear, incur, be liable for,
sustain or be put to for any reason of, or on account of, or by reason of, or in
consequence of, the City, as the case may be, entering into this Development
Agreement.

The Owner shall undertake or implement all requirements in Paragraphs 5, 6, 7
and 8 of this agreement prior to any tree removal, construction or site alteration to
the satisfaction of the Regional Municipality of Niagara.

A Tree Savings Plan is to be completed in accordance with definition 1.36 of the
Niagara Region Tree and Forest Conservation Bylaw (By-law No. 30-2008) and
approved by Niagara Region. The Plan shall demonstrate that building envelopes
will be focused on areas outside of the woodland, where possible. This is to be
done in conjunction with the site plan and grading plan.

The design of the new lots shall incorporate all Mitigation Measures identified in
section 7.0 (page 22) of the Environmental Impact Study (EIS) prepared by Colville
Consulting Inc., dated October 2018 onto all applicable plans and drawings.

In addition to the Mitigation Measures identified in the EIS by Coleville Consulting,
the design of the new dwellings shall mitigate any impacts of light spillage on the
woodland through design of exterior lighting that is shielded to project light

177



downward instead of skyward.

8. All new lots shall include a tertiary septic system for denitrification and water supply
by cistern.
9. The Owner agrees and acknowledges that the City shall register this Development

Agreement on title to the Lands and that such registration may only be removed

with the written consent of the City and the Region.

SIGNED, SEALED & DELIVERED
IN THE PRESENCE OF:

OWNER

Lawrence Barnai

THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY
OF PORT COLBORNE

William C Steele, Mayor

Amber LaPointe, Clerk

178



SCHEDULE “A” = THE LANDS

Part 1 on Plan 59R-16444

On the West Side of Minor Road

In the City of Port Colborne

In the Regional Municipality of Niagara

179



This paae intentionally left blank.

180



The Corporation of the City of Port Colborne
By-law no. 6711/75/19

Being a by-law to amend By-law 1847/112/86, as amended, to permit an
expansion to the Downtown Central Business District Community
Improvement Plan project area to include 176 Elm Street

Whereas the Council of The Corporation of the City of Port Colborne designated
the “Central Business District” as a Community Improvement Plan project area by By-
law 1847/112/86 passed pursuant to Section 28(2) of the Planning Act on September
29, 1986; and

Whereas the Council of The Corporation of the City of Port Colborne amended
the Central Business District Community Improvement Plan project area established by
By-law 1847/112/86 by enacting By-law 5296/51/09; and

Whereas the Council of The Corporation of the City of Port Colborne is desirous
to further amend By-law 1847/112/86 in order to expand the boundary for the Central
Business District Community Improvement project area to include 176 Elm Street;

Now therefore the Council of The Corporation of the City of Port Colborne enacts
as follows:

1. That By-law 1847/112/88, be hereby amended by replacing Schedule “A” of By-
law 5296/51/09 with Schedule “A" attached hereto.

Enacted and passed this 12th day of August, 2019.

William C. Steele
Mayor

Amber LaPointe
City Clerk

181




J DIU_U_[_UJ—[—' W L—T_j | Schedule A

ELGIN ST
} = S I
|
|

-
e

— PARK 51
[ : -
m

| I (R S |/ e R T
[ELDEN AVENI
—

]
}_

SRR e e S S
FIELD! AVE
FOGHORN L. % FOGHORN LANEWAY
IN|

TR N—
1 A

[

1

m VEM
T _omvmne

g
=

|
=
}

182



The Corporation of the City of Port Colborne
By-Law no. 6712/76/19

Being a by-law to adopt, ratify and confirm
the proceedings of the Council of The
Corporation of the City of Port Colborne at
its Regular Meetings of August 12, 2019

Whereas Section 5(1) of the Municipal Act, 2001, provides that the powers of
a municipality shall be exercised by its council; and

Whereas Section 5(3) of the Municipal Act, 2001, provides that a municipal
power, including a municipality's capacity rights, powers and privileges under section
9, shall be exercised by by-law unless the municipality is specifically autharized to do
otherwise; and

Whereas it is deemed expedient that the proceedings of the Council of The
Corporation of the City of Port Colborne be confirmed and adopted by by-law;

Now therefore the Council of The Corporation of the City of Port Colborne
enacts as follows:

1. Every action of the Council of The Corporation of the City of Port Colborne
taken at its Regular Meeting of August 12, 2019 upon which a vote was taken
and passed whether a resolution, recommendations, adoption by reference, or
other means, is hereby enacted as a by-law of the City to take effect upon the
passing hereof; and further

2. That the Mayor and Clerk are authorized to execute any documents required
on behalf of the City and affix the corporate seal of the City and the Mayor and
Clerk, and such other persons as the action directs, are authorized and
directed to take the necessary steps to implement the action.

Enacted and passed this 12th day of August, 2019.

William C. Steele
Mayor

Amber LaPointe
City Clerk

183




This page intentionally left blank.

184



A

PORT COLBORNE

August 12, 2019
Moved by Councillor
Seconded by Councillor

WHEREAS on Friday, August 30" this will be a significant day in the City of
Port Colborne, as we will be hosting a hockey game between the Niagara Ice Dogs and
the Barrie Colts;

AND WHEREAS this will be the first Major Junior Hockey game in Port Colborne
since the late 1960’s;

AND WHEREAS the City of Port Colborne in conjunction with the Niagara Ice
Dogs will be hosting a Free Concert with the Rock of 80's Band, a Free Skate, a Free Swim
and also the chance to learn and to play Sledge Hockey, all located at the Vale Health
and Wellness Center;

NOW THEREFORE, I, Mayor William C. Steele, proclaim Friday, August 30, 2019
as “Niagara Ice Dogs Day” in the City of Port Colborne. * PORT icipate,

William C. Steele




| s page intentionally left blank.

186



City of Port Colborne
Special Council Meeting 20-19

Minutes
Date: July 22, 2019
Time: 6:30 p.m.
Place: Council Chambers, Municipal Offices, 66 Charlotte Street, Port Colborne

Members Present: M. Bagu, Councillor
E. Beauregard, Councillor
G. Bruno, Councillor
R. Bodner, Councillor
F. Danch, Councillor
A. Desmarais, Councillor
D. Kalailieff, Councillor
W. Steele, Mayor (presiding officer)
H. Wells, Councillor

Staff Present: D. Aquilina, Director of Planning & Development
B. Garrett, Director of Corporate Services
A. LaPointe, Manager of Legislative Services/City Clerk
C. Lee, Director of Engineering & Operations
S. Luey, Chief Administrative Officer
H. Mahon, Planning Technician/Clerk (minutes)

Also in attendance were interested citizens, members of the news media and WeeStreem.
1. Call to Order:
Mayor Steele called the meeting to order.

2. National Anthem:

Those in attendance stood for O Canada.

3. Confirmation of Agenda:

No. 128 Moved by Councillor Wells
Seconded by Councillor Bruno

That the agenda dated July 22, 2019 be confirmed, as circulated or as amended.
CARRIED.

187



Minutes — Special Council Meeting 20-19 Page 2 of 4

4. Disclosures of Interest:

Nil.

5. Public Hearing Under the Planning Act:
Planning and Development Department, Planning division, Report No. 2019-115,
Public Meeting Report for Proposes Amendment to include 176 Elm Street to the
Downtown Central Business District Community Improvement Plan (CBD CIP)
Project

i) Purpose of Meeting:

Dan Aquilina advised that the purpose of this meeting, pursuant to Sections
17 & 28 of the Planning Act, is to present a proposed expansion to the
Downtown Central Business District Community Improvement Plan.

i) Method of Notice

Mr. Aquilina advised that Notice of the Public Meeting was administered in
accordance with Section 17(15) and 22(1) of the Planning Act as
amended, Section 3 of Ontario Regulation 543/06.

The Notice of Public Meeting was published in the Thursday June 20,
2019 edition of Niagara This Week. No written comments were received.
Mr. Aquilina also advised that a Public Open House had been held on
June 27 where a total of 3 people attended. Two of whom were the
owners of the property and the third person being Councillor Bagu.

iii) Explanation of Procedure

Mr. Aquilina advised that the procedure to be followed this evening will be
to present Planning and Development Services Department Report 2019-
115, to hear any comments from Council to Planning Staff, to open the
meeting to the public for comments and/or questions, and to announce the
requirements of the Planning Act for written notice request of passage of
the proposed addition to the Community Improvement Plan.

iv) Presentation of the Community Improvement Plan

Mr. Aquilina provided some background information and made reference to
the Power Point presentation which identified the proposed expansion to
include 176 Elm Street.

Mr. Aquilina noted that the Downtown Central Business District Community
Improvement Plan (CBD CIP) was adopted in 2010. Prior to the adoption,

188



Minutes — Special Council Meeting 20-19 Page 3 of 4

the CBD CIP project area was approved in 2009 by By-law. In 2011 the
CBD CIP was expanded to the northerly intersection of Sugarloaf Street
and included the block of properties bounded by Kent and Victoria streets
on the east side of King Street. The expansion included to the south side
of Princess Street between Elm Street and Fielden Avenue.

Mr. Aquilina noted that the CBD CIP has been the most successful to date
of all the CIP’s. There has been considerable investment made by the
property owners which has resulted in significant fagade improvements.

V) Questions of Clarification to Planning Staff/Consultant
Nil.

vi)  Oral Presentations and/or Questions from the Public
Nil.

vii)  Announcement Respecting Written Notice of the expansion of the
Community Improvement Plan
Mr. Aquilina advised that if anyone wishes “to be notified of the adoption of
the proposed Community Improvement Plan they must make a written
request to the clerk. Only those persons and public bodies that give the
clerk a written request for the adoption by-law will be given notice.”

viii)  Explanation of Future Meetings
Mr. Aquilina advised that this concludes the Statutory Public Hearing, held
pursuant to Sections 17 and 28 of the Planning Act. The proposal will be
placed on the August 12, 2019 Council Meeting for Council's
consideration.

6. Adjournment:
No. 129 Moved by Councillor Bodner

Seconded by Councillor Beauregard

That the Council meeting be adjourned at approximately 6:40 p.m.

CARRIED.
William C. Steele Amber LaPointe
Mayor City Clerk

189



Minutes — Special Council Meeting 20-19 Page 4 of 4

Minutes prepared by the Department of Planning and Development.

/hm

190



e Nk 2L

|
i
o
it
}

E
i
1 ‘:*-'

| G anet e LR L LA |
{ " . i -

3
1 i

Downtown Central Business District

Community Improvement Plan

Proposed Expansion

Public Meeting - City Council
July 22, 2019




Emstmg PrOJect Area

L

J

|

et

ELGIN 8T.

1[0

ELRd

[T T

UMY S L e L R e
FIELDEN AVE. -

|
#mw

o
‘w;@.,m%

=

il
| S

A

ACELAIDE

T

192



Proposed Prolect Area with 176 Elm St.

| DAL L) [ {18 et

e

__j'l Ik

193



176 Elm St.

194



Date:

Time:

Place:

Members Present:

Staff Present:

City of Port Colborne
Regular Council Meeting 21-19
Minutes

July 22, 2019
7:44 p.m.
Council Chambers, Municipal Offices, 66 Charlotte Street, Port Col

M. Bagu, Councillor

E. Beauregard, Councillor

G. Bruno, Councillor

R. Bodner, Councillor

F. Danch, Councillor

A. Desmarais, Councillor

D. Kalailieff, Councillor

W. Steele, Mayor (presiding officer)
H. Wells, Councillor

D. Aquilina, Director of Planning and Development

B. Garrett, Director of Corporate Services

A. LaPointe, Manager of Legislative Services/City Clerk
C. Lee, Director of Engineering and Operations

S. Luey, Chief Administrative Officer

borne

Also in attendance were interested citizens, members of the news media and WeeStreem.

1. Call to Order:

Mayor Steele called the meeting to order.

2. Introduction of Addendum ltems:

Nil.

3. Confirmation of Agenda:

No. 130

Moved by Councillor G. Bruno
Seconded by Councillor H. Wells

That the agenda dated July 22, 2019 be confirmed, as circulated or as amended.

CARRIED.

4. Disclosures of Interest:

195



Minutes - Regular Council Meeting 21-19 Page 2 of 8

Nil.

5. Adoption of Minutes:

(a)
(b)

No. 131

(a)
(b)

Special meeting of Council 18-19, held on July 8, 2019.
Regular meeting of Council 19-19, held on July 8, 2019.

Moved by Councillor E. Beauregard
Seconded by Councillor D. Kalailieff

That the minutes of the special meeting of Council 18-19, held on July
8, 2019, be approved as presented.
That the minutes of the regular meeting of Council 19-19, held on July
8, 2019, be approved as presented.

CARRIED.

6. Determination of Iltems Requiring Separate Discussion:

Nil.

7. Approval of Items Not Requiring Separate Discussion:

No. 132

Moved by Councillor H. Wells
Seconded by Councillor M. Bagu

That Items 1 to 12 on the agenda be approved, with the exception of items that
have been deferred, deleted or listed for separate discussion, and the
recommendation contained therein adopted.

Items:

1. Motion by Councillor Wells Re: Review of Noise and Discharge of
Firearms By-laws

Council resolved:

That the Director of Planning and Development be directed to update
By-Law No. 4588/119/04, being a by-law to regulate noise and By-
Law No. 2499/115/90, being a by-law to prohibit and regulate the
discharge of guns and other weapons within the City of Port
Colborne; and

That the review includes consideration of the distance from buildings

of discharge and provisions to include reactive targets, (Type S.2)
high hazard Special Purpose Explosives; and

196



Minutes - Regular Council Meeting 21-19 Page 3 of 8

That staff report back to Council with a recommendation in October
2019.

2. Motion by Councillor Wells Re: Review of Removal of Topsoil and
Placement of Fill By-law

Council resolved:

That the Director of Planning and Development be directed to update
By-Law No. 5528/125/10 a by-law to prohibit or regulate the removal

of topsoil, the placing or dumping of fill and the alteration of the grade
of land within the city of Port Colborne; and

That the review includes the new provincial regulations, recent issues
with fill sites, state of the art fill sites, best practices of site alteration
techniques and processes and realistic fee structures proportional to
the complexity of the application and conditions related to the size and
nature of the site in question, and duration of the alteration; and

That staff report back to Council with a recommendation in the winter
of 2019; and

That the Director of Planning and Development report back to Council
in August 2019 regarding funding availability for consulting services for
special projects within the department.

-, Engineering and Operations Department, Engineering Division, Report
2019-112, Subject: Young & Hopf-Wagner Drain

Council resolved:

That Project 2019-11 Young & Hopf-Wagner Drains be awarded to
CRL Campbell Construction & Drainage Ltd of Wainfleet, Ontario,
for the total tendered price of $696,497.90 plus applicable taxes.
Staff is directed to utilize the bid items as listed within the awarded
Tender Documents, in such a manner as to complete all required
works, all the while, keeping within the annual budget allocations by
Council; and

That funding for Project 2019-11 Young & Hopf-Wagner Drains be
financed on an interim basis, under GL Account: 3-560-33243-3328
and that staff be authorized to initiate billings back to the Municipal
Drains Watershed at the completion of the Watershed works; and

That a by-law, in which the City enters into a Contract Agreement
with the Contractor, be prepared upon final budget approval.

197



Minutes - Regular Council Meeting 21-19 Page 4 of 8

4. Engineering and Operations Department, Engineering Division,
Report 2019-113, Subject: Schihl Municipal Drain Meeting to
Consider

Council resolved:

That the Mayor and Clerk be directed to execute a by-law to
provisionally adopt the Schihl Municipal Drain Engineer’s Report,
dated March 28, 2019, prepared by Neal Morris, P. Eng. of K. Smart
Associates Limited, under Section 4, Chapter D.17 of the Drainage
Act R.S.0. 1990.

That staff be directed to advance the Schihl Municipal Drain
Engineer's Report to that of the Court of Revision, as per Section
46(1), Chapter D.17 of the Drainage Act R.S.0. 1990.

That Councillor Wells and Councillor Bodner be appointed as a
member of the Schihl Municipal Drain Court of Revision and Mayor
Steele be appointed as an alternate.

5. Community and Economic Development Department, Parks and
Recreation Division, Report 2019-114, Subject: By-law Exemption
Request — Canal Days Marine Heritage Festival Bass Pro Outdoor
World Shooting Range

Council resolved:

That a temporary exemption to By-law 2499/115/90, Being a By-
law to Prohibit and Regulate the Discharge of Guns and Other
Weapons within the City of Port Colborne be approved,
specifically for the purpose of permitting Bass Pro Outdoor World
to offer a BB gun shooting range attraction during the 2019 Canal
Days Marine Heritage Festival, as outlined in Community and
Economic Development Department, Parks and Recreation
Division, Report 2019-114, Subject: By-law Exemption Request -
Canal Days Marine Heritage Festival Bass Pro Outdoor World
Shooting Range.

6. Corporate Services Department, Clerk’s Division, Report 2019-1186,
Subject: Appointments to Boards and Committees

Council resolved:

That Nancy Busch be appointed to the Accessibility Advisory
Committee for a term ending December 21, 2023.

198



Minutes - Regular Council Meeting 21-19 Page 5of 8

That Wade Smith and Gregg Dame be appointed to the Active
Transportation Committee for a term ending December 31, 2023.

That Kevin Reles and Angela Doyle be appointed to the
Economic Development Advisory Committee for a term ending
December 31, 2023.

That Trent Doan, Steven Rivers, and Norbert Gieger be appointed
to the Environmental Advisory Committee for a term ending
December 21, 2023.

That Nancy Busch and Heidi Grzesina be appointed to the Senior
Citizen Advisory Council for a term ending December 31, 2023.

That Jack Hellinga be recommended to Council of the Region of
Niagara to be appointed to serve on the Niagara Peninsula
Conservation Authority Board.

7. Planning and Development Department, Planning Division, Report
2019-117, Subject: Lorraine Road Property Sale

Council resolved:

That Council declares Part 2 and 6 on Plan 59R-10301 as surplus
to the City's needs; and

That the City enter into an Agreement of Purchase and Sale with
Helen Lliodromitis for $230,000 plus HST and with Paul and
Kathleen Kuronen for $250,000 plus HST; and

That the Mayor, Clerk and City Solicitor be authorized to sign and
execute any and all documents respecting the sale of these
lands.

8. Planning and Development Department, Planning Division, Report
2019-119, Subject: Recommendation Report for Official Plan
Amendment D09-01-19 and Zoning By-law Amendment D14-03-19,
170 Welland Street

Council resolved:

That the Official Plan Amendment, attached to Planning and
Development Department, Planning Division, Report 2019-119 as
Appendix A, changing the designation of the property from “Parks
and Open Space” to “Industrial Areas”, be approved.

199



Minutes - Regular Council Meeting 21-19 Page 6 of 8

That the Zoning By-law Amendment, attached to Planning and
Development Department, Planning Division, Report 2019-119 as
Appendix B, rezoning the land from “P-CH”" to “LI-51", be
approved.

That Planning staff be directed to prepare the Notice of Passing
in accordance with the Planning Act and circulate to all applicable
parties.

9. Engineering and Operations Department, Engineering Division, Report
2019-120, Subject: Information Report on Fees for the Engineering and
Operations Department

Council resolved:

That the Fees Schedule for 2019 be established as the 2018
rates and fees plus an adjustment for inflation, based on the
CANADATA index for 2019, (2.7% increase).

That Engineering and Operations staff be directed to track in
2019-2020, all actual costs, for labour, materials and equipment
required in performing a task or supplying a service and then use
that data to annually adjust the rates and fees schedules on an
annual basis.

10. Memorandum from Port Colborne Transit Advisory Committee Re:
Support of Entering into an Agreement with Regional
Transit

Council resolved:

That the recommendation by the Transit Advisory Committee that
the City of Port Colborne enter into an agreement with Regional
Transit for the purpose of increasing the shares of Provincial Gas
Tax, be supported, and that the Region be so notified.

11. Memorandum from the Environmental Advisory Committee, Re: Vale
Community-Based Action Plan

Council resolved:

That consideration of the Memorandum from the Environmental

Advisory Committee, Re: Vale Community-Based Action Plan be
referred to the Director of Planning and Development for review;
and

200



Minutes - Regular Council Meeting 21-19

9.

meeting.
12. Maple Leaf Strategies Re: Support for Rural Investment Tax Credit
Council resolved:
That the creation of a rural investment tax credit being advocated
by the Rural Opportunity and Investment Coalition (ROI), be
supported.
CARRIED.

That the Director of Planning and Development report back with

comments to Council on August 26, 2019 Committee of the Whole

Proclamations:

(a)

International Lighthouse Day, August 7, 2019

No. 133 Moved by Councillor R. Bodner

Seconded by Councillor A. Desmarais

Whereas the 7% of August is International Lighthouse Day, therefore
we seek recognition here by having Lighthouse Day declared in Port

Colborne;

And Whereas, this recognition acknowledges our rich marine based

history, culture and industry;

And whereas Port Colborne is unique, having 2 lighthouses connected

by a tunnel;

And whereas we are able to have tours to same, through co-operative
inter-agency agreements, thus meeting the public’s ever growing

interest in lighthouses.

And whereas this public interest re-enforces Friends of Port Colborne
Lighthouses efforts to increase access and gain stewardship so that
they may be properly preserved, restored, maintained and shared with

the public for future generations;

Now therefore, |, Mayor, Wiliam C. Steele, proclaim August 7%

“Lighthouse Day” in the City of Port Colborne.

CARRIED.

Minutes of Boards, Commissions & Committees:

Nil.

Page 7 of 8

201



Minutes - Regular Council Meeting 21-19 Page 8 of 8

10.

11.

/AL

Consideration of By-laws:

No. 134Moved by Councillor D. Kalailieff
Seconded by Councillor E. Beauregard

That the following by-laws be enacted and passed:

e 6704/68/19 Being aby-law to adopt amendment no. 6 to the Official Plan
for the City of Port Colborne

e B6705/69/19 Being a by-law to amend Zoning By-law 6575/30/18
respecting lands legally described as Part Lot 27
Concession 1, formerly in the Township of Humberstone,
now in the City of Port Colborne, Regional Municipality of
Niagara, municipally known at 170 Welland Street

e 6706/70/19 Being a by-law to authorize entering into an agreement of
purchase and sale with Hellen Dlliodromitis for the sale of
Part 2 on Plan 59R-10301 and with Paul and Kathleen
Kuronen for the sale of Part 6 on Plan 59R-10301

e 6707/71/19 Being a by-law to authorize entering into a contract
agreement with CRL Campbell Construction & Drainage
Ltd. of Wainfleet, ON Re tender 2019-11, Young & Hopf
Wagner Drains

e B6708/72/19 Being a by-law to provide for a Section 4 Engineer's
Report for a drainage works in the City of Port Colborne in
the Regional Municipality of Niagara known as the Schihl
Municipal Drain

e 6709/73/19 Being a By-law to Adopt, Ratify and Confirm the
Proceedings of the Council of The Corporation of the City of
Port Colborne at its Regular Meeting of July 22, 2019

CARRIED.

Adjournment:

No. 135 Moved by Councillor F. Danch
Seconded by Councillor E. Beauregard

That the Council meeting be adjourned at approximately 7:47 p.m.
CARRIED.

William C. Steele Amber LaPointe
Mayor City Clerk

202



Mo

iiysr Port ICoibomo

i SEIVED
Ry AUG 0 1 2019 MEMORANDUM
I, - . . CORPORATE SERVICES

PORT COLBORNE FrARTENT
MAYOR’S OFFICE 905-835-2900 Ext. 301
TO: Amber LaPointe, City Clerk
FROM: Nancy Giles
DATE: August1, 2019
RE: Minutes of Grant Policy Committee

Please find attached the minutes of the February 13, 2019 meeting of the Grant Policy
Committee that were approved at our July 31, 2019 meeting.

203



February 13, 2019
MEETING OF THE GRANT POLICY COMMITTEE

Minutes of the Grant Policy Committee held on February 13, 2019 at 3:00 p.m. in the
Library at City Hall, 66 Charlotte Street, Port Colborne.

The following Committee Members and Staff were present:

Committee Members Chairman Bea Kenny

Mayor William Steele

Councillor Eric Beauregard

Gary Bruno (arrived at 3:20)

Brenda Haymes

Nancy Giles, Executive Assistant to the Mayor/CAO
CALL TO ORDER:

Chairman Kenny called the meeting to order at 3:08 p.m.

ELECTION OF CHAIR AND CO-CHAIR

Moved by B. Steele
Seconded by B. Haymes

That Bea Kenny be nominated as Chair and Eric Beauregard be nominated as Vice-
Chair.
CARRIED.

APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA

Moved by B. Haymes
Seconded by E. Beauregard

That the agenda as presented be approved.
CARRIED.

APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF THE JULY 30, 2018 MEETING

Moved by B. Haymes
Seconded by B. Kenny

That the minutes of the July 30, 2018 meeting be approved as presented.
CARRIED.

Mesting of the Grant Policy Committee February 13, 2013 Page 1

204



CORRESPONDENCE

Thank you letters were received from Niagara Health Foundation, and Friends of the
Port Colborne Lighthouses.

DONATION/SPONSORSHIP APPLICATIONS

The purpose of the meeting was to review the donation/sponsorship applications
received from various organizations.

Moved by B. Steele
Seconded by B. Haymes

That donation/sponsorship requests be approved for a total of $18,510 maximum for
the first allocation for the year 2019 as follows:

Air Race Classic Terminus Committee $1,300
Education Foundation of Niagara $1,500
Niagara Health Foundation $1,800
Port Cares $2,300
Port Colborne Feline Initiative $2,500
Port Colbarne Lions Club $1,600
Port Colborne Operatic Society $2,150
St. James St. Brendan’s Anglican Church $1,660
Women's Place of South Niagara $2,000
YMCA of Niagara $1,600
CARRIED.

Letters will be sent to all applicants advising them of the committee’s decision and
inviting them to a future council meeting.

OTHER BUSINESS

CHANGES TO GRANT POLICY

Moved by E. Beauregard
Seconded by B. Haymes

That this committee look into amending the grant policy, section 3.0 — adding 1 f to
clarify the eligibility requirements.
CARRIED.

Nancy to get a copy of Fort Erie’s policy.

Meeting of the Grant Policy Committee February 13, 2019 Page 2

205



Moved by B. Haymes
Seconded by G. Bruno

That this committee recommends funds from this fund not be used to re-fund other
organizations.
CARRIED.

It was felt that an accountability report was needed.

ADJOURNMENT:

Meved by G. Bruno
Seconded by B. Haymes

That we do now adjourn. Time of adjournment 4:15 p.m.

CARRIED.

~ \ Lo , ‘H—\)
CHARMAN SECRETARY
Meeting of the Grant Palicy Committee February 13, 2019 Page 3

206



	Committee of the Whole Agenda
	Committee Items
	Delegations
	Item 1 Councillor Desmarais Re Living wage Employer
	Calculating the Living Wage in Niagara Region
	A Guide to Becoming a Living Wage Employer
	Item 2
	Item 3
	Item 4
	Item 5
	Item 6
	Item 7
	Item 8
	Item 9
	Item 10
	Item 11
	Item 12
	Item 13
	Item 14
	Regular Committee of the Whole Meeting 20-19 Minutes
	Regular Council Agenda
	Council Items
	By-laws Council Agenda
	Proclamation - Niagara Ice Dogs Day
	Special Council Meeting 20-19 Minutes
	Regular Council Meeting 21-19 Minutes
	Grant Policy Committee Meeting Minutes



